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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FET FET
For the year ended 31 December HE+ZHA=1+—H
EFE
Revenue KA 928,785 859,095
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8 w5 (177,290) 5,457
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners wmAa AEWN (B8 a5F (170,916) 14,778
(Loss)/earnings per share gk (B8 &F
Basic (in HK cents) B (B (2.75) 0.24
Diluted (in HK cents) #E (B (2.75) 0.24
Average shareholders’ equity THREER 1,206,940 1,257,268
Average capital employed THEFAER 1,836,993 1,953,705
At 31 December R+-—B=+—H
Total indebtedness "RIETS 1,224,564 1,317,165
Shareholders’ equity et 1,128,680 1,285,199
Capital employed FRER 2 1,692,488 1,981,497
Ratio tE=
Return on average capital employed S SE )= ENEIEES 3 (9.65)% 0.28%
Return on average equity S SL i CIETES 4 (9.30)% 0.76%
Total debt to total capital MEEHEEARLEEK 5 52.58% 50.90%
Notes: MI5E
1) Total indebtedness = total interest bearing borrowings 1) WER =t EEEBEEE
2) Capital employed = shareholders’ funds + non-controlling 2) BAER = REES + JEERES + IER
interests + non-current liabilities F}aE
3) Return on average capital employed = (loss)/profit for the 3) FHFAEARRRE = FE (B8 &5
year/average capital employed S EHFBAE R
4) Return on average equity = net (loss)/profit attributable to 4) FHERORE = BB ARG BB &
owners/average shareholders’ equity FIPEE TR RS
5) Total debt to total capital = debt/(shareholders’ funds + non- 5) MEBREERLE - 8F RERES +

controlling interests + debt)

4 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ("Year”), the
Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$928.79
million (2020: HK$859.10 million), representing an increase
of 8.11% over last year. Gross profit of the Group was
approximately HK$161.08 million (2020: HK$143.67
million). The loss (net of tax) was approximately HK$177.29
million (2020: profit (net of tax) was HK$5.46 million). The
change from net profit to net loss was mainly attributable
to the combined effect of increase in revenue which lead to
increase in gross profit, increase in provision for additional
penalty relating to default construction payment included
in administrative expense, increase in fair value gain on
investment properties, increase in net allowance of expected
credit loss, increase in impairment loss on goodwill, increase
in share of loss of associates and increase in taxation. Loss
per share for the Year was HK2.75 cents (2020: Earnings per
share was HK0.24 cents).

The Group will continue to control the costs and focus
on existing resources to further strengthen and grow the
Group’s business both organically and through acquisitions
when appropriate opportunities arise. The Group considered
the business mix has been diversified during the past few
years. The Group will focus on the existing businesses and
will expand by self-development and investing in similar
business. Investments would be carefully selected among
all the choices we explored and would be operated with
experienced business partners.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Wine and Liquor Business

The Group’s wine and liquor business was principally
engaged in the sale and distribution of wine and liquor in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

During the Year, there was no revenue generated from the
wine and liquor business (2020: HK$0.65 million) as our
sale points and delivery services were interrupted and even
temporarily suspended during the coronavirus outbreak. Since
the duration of the coronavirus outbreak remains uncertain,
the Group will continue to review the development of this
business segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEER RN

Trading of Food Products Business

Trading of food products business recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$399.54 million (2020: HK$432.22 million)
and accounted for 43.02% (2020: 50.31%) of the total
revenue. Gross profit of this business segment for the Year
was approximately HK$9.13 million (2020: HK$5.70 million).

Construction and Development Business

Following the successful bid for the land use rights of a land
parcel in Lianyungang, Jiangsu in PRC on 5 December 2017,
the Group already obtained the Land Planning Permit and
the Construction Planning Permit for the “Seafood Food
City” during the year 2018. The commercial housing pre-
sale permit of phase one of the Seafood Food City was also
obtained and sales of the properties in that project started
in the second half of 2019. However, the outbreak of novel
coronavirus affected the sales plan and construction plan. It
is expected that the whole construction of the Seafood Food
City on the Land Parcel will be delayed to second half of
2022.

Rental Business

The rental business was engaged in the leasing of logistic
facilities in Hong Kong and office facilities in the PRC. This
business recorded a revenue of approximately HK$271.66
million (2020: HK$256.88 million) and accounted for
29.25% (2020: 29.90%) of the total revenue. Gross profit
of this business segment for the Year was approximately
HK$98.24 million (2020: HK$94.87 million). After few years
of development, this segment becomes one of the core
businesses of the Group. The Group has rental business in
Beijing, Shanghai and Hong Kong and will keep on exploring
and investing in potential renting facilities.

Financial Leasing Business

The financial leasing business recorded a revenue of
HK$20.47 million (2020: HK$13.84 million) and accounted
for 2.20% (2020: 1.61%) of the total revenue. Gross profit
of this business segment for the Year was approximately
HK$17.69 million (2020: HK$12.16 million).

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Mineral Products Business

The mineral products business includes the flotation selection
of non-ferrous metals mines and sales of mineral products.
This business segment recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$237.11 million (2020: HK$155.51 million) and accounted
for 25.53% (2020: 18.10%) of the total revenue. The Group
expects the market of this business will remain fine and the
revenue contributed by this segment will represent a larger
portion of the Group’s revenue. Gross profit of this business
segment for the Year was approximately HK$36.02 million
(2020: HK$30.94 million).

Business Co-operation

()

(ii)

*

On 24 February 2021, the Company entered into a
strategic cooperation agreement (the “Cooperation
Agreement”) with Yueyang Guansheng Industry
Development Co., Ltd.* (EHREREBRKREERERER
‘A8]) (“Yueyang Guansheng”, together with the
Company, the “Parties”) in respect of the proposed
global procurement of feed ingredients (the “Strategic
Cooperation”).

According to the Cooperation Agreement, the Parties
agreed to cooperate closely in respect of the global
procurement of (i) non-genetically modified soybeans
and (ii) both genetically modified and non-genetically
modified yellow corn. The term of the Cooperation
Agreement commenced on 1 March 2021 and will
end on 31 December 2022. The implementation of
the Strategic Cooperation between the Parties is
subject to the execution of formal sales and purchase
contract(s). Details of the Cooperation Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 24 February 2021.

On 27 May 2021, the Company entered into a
strategic cooperation framework agreement (the
“Framework Agreement”) with Yishikangte Health
Management Co., Ltd.* (BFERFEETERRA
B]) ("Yishikangte”, together with the Company, the
“Parties”) in respect of the proposed establishment
of an e-commerce platform (the “Platform™) for the
sale of food products and wine and liquor through the
Platform (the “Strategic Cooperation”).

For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEER RN

According to the Framework Agreement, the Parties shall  RIFEZRBZ I H BINBAREZIBZE
utilise their respective advantages and cooperate based on B WEEERBEAMEERNIEZI LEE-
the concept of industry and capital integrated development.  5TAIAREERUTEESE :

8

The Parties agreed to cooperate in the following area:

o jointly establish a limited liability company in
Shenzhen, PRC with a registered capital of RMB10
million, to act as the project entity for the Strategic
Cooperation (the “Project Company”). The
shareholding ratio of the Company and Yishikangte
in the Project Company shall be 60% and 40%,
respectively;

o Yishikangte shall be responsible for the development
of the Platform for the Project Company and the
organisation of online and offline sales team, with
a view to achieve an annual sales amount of RMB4
billion through the Platform.

o the Company shall supply products such as Wuchang
rice, aged and collectible liquor for sales on the
Platform, and the actual products shall be agreed by
the Parties separately; and

o the products to be supplied by the Company may
be changed at any time based on sales and market
conditions, and the products can be selected or
customised through mutual negotiation between the
Parties.

Details of the Framework Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 May 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group achieved a revenue of approximately HK$928.79
million (2020: HK$859.10 million), representing an increase
of 8.11% over last year. Gross profit of the Group was
approximately HK$161.08 million (2020: HK$143.67 million).
The loss (net of tax) was HK$177.29 million (2020: profit (net
of tax) was HK$5.46 million).

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses were approximately
HK$23.72 million (2020: HK$19.86 million), representing an
increase of 19.43% from last year and 2.55% (2020: 2.31%)
of the Group’s revenue. The increase was mainly due to the
general growth in sales volume of the Group.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses were approximately HK$108.47
million (2020: HK$85.05 million), representing an increase
of 27.54% from last year and 11.68% (2020: 9.90%) of the
Group's revenue. The increase was mainly due to the increase
in the provision for additional penalty relating to the default
construction payment and increase in legal and professional
fees of the Group.

Finance Costs

Finance costs were approximately HK$101.84 million (2020:
HK$103.05 million), representing a decrease of 1.17%
from last year and 10.96% (2020: 11.99%) of the Group's
revenue.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
there were trade deposits of HK$320.70 million (2020:
HK$239.36 million) paid for food products and mineral
products. The amounts of approximately HK$24.61 million
(2020: HK$24.22 million) were the progress payments for
the investment targets. HK$42.98 million (2020: HK$37.08
million) was paid as rental deposit for the rental business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEER RN

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of issued shares
of the Company was 6,225,125,683 shares. There was no
change in the number of issued shares of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
the ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 22 January 2021, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$800,000,000 divided into 8,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each to HK$1,600,000,000 divided into
16,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each by the creation of
an additional 8,000,000,000 shares.

Pursuant to

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net assets to
owners of the parent of approximately HK$1,128.68 million
(2020: HK$1,285.20 million). Net current assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$219.54 million (2020: HK$370.48 million). The current
ratio (calculated as current assets to current liabilities) for the
Year was 1.18 (2020: 1.37).

The Group’s unpledged cash and cash equivalents as at
31 December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$27.43
million (2020: HK$26.12 million), which were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, and the Group's pledged
deposits as at 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$Nil
(2020: HK$18.86 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's total bank and other
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$521.00 million
(2020: HK$393.02 million). All of the Group's bank and other
borrowings were denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. Included in bank and other borrowings was default
payment for other borrowing of approximately HK$236.10
million (2020: HK$191.30 million). The Company keeps
negotiating with creditors of other borrowings for extension
of repayment period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The bank loans, other borrowings and amounts due to
related parties are charged at fixed interest rates. The gearing
ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2021 (calculated as
net debt divided by equity attributable to owners of the
parent plus net debt) was 41.39% (31 December 2020:
33.58%). The ratio was at reasonably adequate level as at
31 December 2021. Having considered the Group's various
measures, arrangements and current unpledged cash and
cash equivalents, bank and other borrowings, banking
facilities, possible fund raising and the business operation
income, the management believes that the Group’s financial
resources are sufficient for its day-to-day operations. The
Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purposes during the Year.

The Group's business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Fluctuations in Renminbi may impact the Group’s results
and net assets value as the Group’s consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s
treasury policy is to manage its foreign currency exposure
only when its potential financial impact is material to the
Group. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign
exchange position and, if necessary, utilize hedging tools, if
available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.

Charge on Assets and Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2021, no deposit was pledged to banks
to secure the Group's bills payable (2020: HK$18.86 million).

The shares of two subsidiaries of the Company with net
assets of HK$30.61 million (2020: HK$23.76 million) as at
31 December 2021 were pledged for a secured bond since
August 2017. As the secured bond was maturated, the
bondholder has the right to take over the control of the
two subsidiaries. The Company is in negotiation with the
bondholder for extension of repayment of the bond and as
at the date of this annual report, the two subsidiaries are still
under the control of the Company.

Investment properties with fair value of approximately
HK$328.92 million (2020: HK$308.43 million) was pledged
to the bank for the Group’s borrowings and bills payables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEER RN

ANALYSIS OF MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the Year, the sales to the top 5 customers amounted
to HK$373,442,000, representing an increase of 8.73% from
HK$343,450,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Our top 5 customers in the Year represented approximately
40.21% of our total revenue as compared to approximately
41.34% in 2020. Our largest customer accounted for
approximately 11.92% of our total revenue in the Year
as compared to approximately 24.47% in 2020. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in trading of food
products. The other 4 customers represented 28.29% are
the customers of staple food and mineral products. Our top
5 customers are companies engaged in the trading of food
and mineral products in the PRC. Our management visited
these customers frequently and understand the demand of
these customers. Therefore, the Group developed a stable
relationship with these major customers. The Group has
1 to 5 years business relationship with these customers
and our management has confident to keep the long-term
relationship. They are required to prepay for the goods and
services at the agreed commercial terms. Therefore, there was
no related doubtful debts.

During the Year, the purchases from the top 5 major suppliers
amounted to HK$315,715,000, representing a decrease of
about 24.52% from HK$418,297,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Our top 5 suppliers in the Year represented approximately
41.12% of our total purchases as compared to approximately
58.47% in 2020. Our largest supplier accounted for
approximately 13.24% of our total purchases in the Year
as compared to approximately 31.01% in 2020. The Group
had always been searching for suppliers with competitive
terms. All the top 5 suppliers are suppliers of staple food and
mineral products in the PRC and the Group is required to
prepay for the goods.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Reliance on a Small Number of Key Suppliers

The Group’s five largest suppliers, which accounted for
41.12% of the Group's total purchases, are all related to the
purchases of staple food and mineral products. There is no
assurance that these major suppliers shall continue to provide
the products to us at price acceptable to our Group. In the
event that our Group were unable to retain these suppliers,
or procure replacement suppliers, our business, results of
operations, profitability and liquidity might be adversely
affected. However, the Group has established strong business
relationship with these major suppliers. The Group has also
been diversifying its business into other industry including
logistic warehouse business and mining business. Therefore, it
is expected that the risk of concentration on key suppliers can
be reduced in the future.

Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of extension
of its return period relative to the expected return period or
occurrence of losses on any particular investment attributable
to changes of external factors. The Group is well aware of
the importance of exploring various business opportunities
and territories on a continual basis, and has also implemented
such strategy as the top agenda of the Year. Key concern
of projects investment framework will be balancing risk and
return across different investments, and thus risk assessment
is a core aspect of the investment decision process. Proper
investment assessment and due diligence procedures have
been set up and detailed analysis will be made before
approving investments. Regular updates on the progress of
the investments of our Group would be submitted to the
Board.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions originally denominated and settled in Renminbi,
of which foreign exchange risk is considered insignificant.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily with
respect to certain of its bank deposits which are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. Renminbi
experienced certain fluctuation against Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars during the year 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEER RN

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did
not carry out any hedging activity against foreign currency
risk. Any substantial exchange rate fluctuation of foreign
currencies against Renminbi may have a financial impact on
the Group.

LITIGATIONS

(i) HCA 1867 of 2015
On 18 August 2015, the Company received a
writ of summons issued from the High Court of
Hong Kong (the "Writ") relating to a claim by Mr.
Qu Shuncai (“"Mr. Qu”), a former Director of the
Company. Pursuant to the Writ, Mr. Qu claims against
the Company for the sum of HK$6,069,000 being
damages for the Company’s wrongful refusal of the
issue of 2,500,000 shares of the Company to him
upon his exercise of the share options. The trial will
be heard before Judge from 8 December 2022 to 14
December 2022.

(ii) HCCW 243 of 2019 & HCMP 1284 of 2019

On 15 August 2019, the Company received a
winding up petition (“Petition”) filed by Mr. Qiu
Zhen (“Petitioner”) for an order that the Company
may be wound up by the High Court of Hong
Kong pursuant to the Companies (Winding Up and
Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws
of Hong Kong). The Petition was filed against the
Company for being unable to repay a debt of amount
HK$21,140,987. Details of the Petition were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 15
August 2019 and 22 August 2019. Subsequently, the
legal representatives of the Company filed a Notice
of Originating Summons to the Court (under HCMP
1284 of 2019) returnable before a High Court Judge
on 19 September 2019 for an order to direct the
Petitioner to withdraw the Petition or otherwise to be
restrained from taking further step to prosecute the
Petition on the ground that the Petition is an abuse of
process of the court. On 23 March 2020, leave was
granted to the Company to withdraw the Originating
Motion. As to the winding up proceedings itself, the
parties reached full and final settlement and the Court
had, by its Order dated on 8 March 2021, dismissed
the Petition, details of which were disclosed on the
announcement of the Company dated 8 March 2021.
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(iii)

(iv)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition to the main action relating to the winding
up petition, the Company successfully obtained a
Validation Order of the Court dated 17 January 2020,
under which any transfer of the issued and fully paid
up shares in the Company since 13 August 2019 shall
not be avoided by 5.182 of the Companies (Winding
Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32)
in the event of a winding-up order being made against
the Company. Details of the said Order were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 15 May
2020. Further, the Company also obtained another
Validation Order of the Court dated 6 January 2021,
under which payments of HK$569,558.00 made out
of the Company’s bank accounts for the purpose of
paying the legal expenses of the Company shall not be
avoided.

HCMP 1348 of 2019

On 28 August 2019, the legal representatives of the
Company filed a Notice of Originating Summons to
the Court (under HCMP 1348 of 2019) to apply to the
Court to dispute a Statutory Demand dated 24 July
2019 issued on behalf of Madam 75 & & for the sum
of HK$20,094,520.55. The case has been adjourned
sine die.

HCA 1948 of 2019

On 24 October 2019, the Company received a writ
of summons (under HCA 1948 of 2019) issued on
behalf of Gemini Funds Limited for an order to direct
the Company to deliver up the share certificate of
5,000,000 (Bonus) Shares issued in January 2016
and damages to be assessed. The said Gemini
Funds Limited has also taken out an application for
summary judgment against the Company returnable
before a Master of the High Court on 9 April 2020.
The legal representative of the Company filed an
Acknowledgment of Service on 6 November 2019,
and the Company has filed a notice to the Court
to oppose the application by the said Plaintiff to
enter judgment against the Company. The hearing
was heard before a Judge on 21 January 2021 and
pursuant to the Judgement, the Company delivered up
the said share certificate to the Plaintiff on 24 March
2021. At the same time, the Company filed a Notice
to Appeal on 18 February 2021.

(iii)

(iv)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREwRKIDN

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

HCA 947 of 2020

On 15 June 2020, the Company received a writ
of summons issued on behalf of JJANG SHENGLI
(ZB7) ("JIANG") under HCA 947 of 2020.
According to the Statement of Claim, JIANG being
the plaintiff, claims against the Company for the
sum of HK$15,700,000 and the bond interest.
The legal representatives of the Company filed an
Acknowledgment of Service on 22 June 2020 and
stated our intention to contest the proceedings.
Subsequently, the parties reached full and final
settlement and signed a Settlement Agreement on 25
March 2021, and the action was wholly discontinued
on 31 March 2021.

HCA 1128 of 2020

On 7 July 2020, the Company received a writ
of summons issued on behalf of FANG XIANGZAI
(F&E)("FANG") under HCA 1128 of 2020.
According to the Statement of Claim, FANG being
the plaintiff, claims against the Company for the
sum of HK$30,575,000 and the agreement interest.
The legal representatives of the Company filed an
Acknowledgment of Service on 22 July 2020 and
stated the intention to contest the proceedings.
Subsequently, the parties reached full and final
settlement and signed a Settlement Agreement dated
1 April 2021, and the action was wholly discontinued
on 4 May 2021.

HCMP 1296 of 2021

On 7 September 2021, the legal representatives of the
Company filed a Notice of Originating Summons to
the Court (under HCMP 1296 of 2021) to apply to the
Court to dispute a Statutory Demand dated 12 August
2021 issued on behalf of Madam LIN TONG (#%f)
for the sum of HK$4,747,254.03. The case has been
adjourned sine die.
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(viii)

(ix)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On the same subject matter, Madam LIN TONG (#£f¥)
through her legal representatives in Cayman Islands
issued a Statutory Demand on 28 October 2021 to the
Company'’s registered address in the Cayman lIslands.
Then on 13 December 2021, a winding up petition
was issued out of the Grand Court of the Cayman
Islands and returnable on 3 March 2022, under which
the said LIN TONG petitioned to wind up the Company
unless the amount HK4,942,814.80 was paid. The
Company then settled the matter with the Petitioner,
and the winding up petition had been withdrawn by
the consent of the parties on or about 3 March 2022.

HCCW 115 of 2022

On 25 April 2022, the Company received a petition
("Petition”) filed by Ms. Yan Huijuan (“Petitioner™) for
an order that the Company may be wound up by the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “High Court”) pursuant to the Companies
(Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance
(Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong). The Petition was filed
against the Company for being unable to repay a
debt of amount HK$5,251,773.03. The Petition wiill
be heard before the High Court at 9:30 am on 6 July
2022. Details of the Petition were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 April 2022.

(2021) Su 0707 Caibao No. 139

On 31 August 2020, the Company’s subsidiary,
Lianyungang Huajin Huahong Industrial Co., Ltd. (&
EBESERETEAMRAT) received a civil judgment
(REH T Z)issued on behalf of Jiangsu Pinpai Real
Estate Co., Ltd. CI&kmIKEX=HBRAE) ("Pinpai”)
under (2021) Su 0707 Caibao No. 139 ((2021)&
0707841%1395%) . According to the civil judgment
(RE#ESE), Pinpai being the plaintiff, requested
to freeze the bank accounts of Lianyungang Huajin
Huahong Industrial Co., Ltd.. The case has now been
appealed to the Lianyungang Intermediate Court for
retrial. Pinpai is now negotiating settlement with our
Lianyungang Huajin Huahong Industrial Co., Ltd., but
both parties have not reached full and final settlement
yet.

(viii)

(ix)
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(x) (2021) Yue 0304 Minchu No. 13651, (2021) Yue 03
Minzhong No. 23004 and (2022) Yue Minshen No.
4179
On 26 May 2021, the Company’s subsidiary,
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food Distribution Ltd.
("Green Food”) (RYIIE R4 BB REZXARER
B]) received a civil judgment (RZEH7RAE) issued on
behalf of Shenzhen Zhongdun United Investment
Technology Co., Ltd. (RIIFEBERFEERA
&) (“Zhongdun”) under (2021) Yue 0304 Minchu
No. 13651 ((2021)20304E#]136513%) . According
to the civil judgment (EE#7R&), Zhongdun
being the plaintiff, requested to (i) cancellation of
contract no. 20200403-002 “Rice Sales Contract”;
(i) return the contract deposit of RMB3,400,000 to
Zhongdun; (iii) pay the interest of the above deposit
of RMB3,400,000; and (iv) bear all litigation costs. The
case has been appealed to the Shenzhen Intermediate
People’s Court of Guangdong Province and on 25
October 2021, Green Food received a civil judgment
under (2021) Yue 03 Minzhong No. 23004 ((2021)
B3R #£230045%) . According to the civil judgment,
(a) the issue in (i) above being upheld; (b) the issue
in (iii) above being cancelled; (c) referring to the issue
in (ii) above, Green Food has to return RMB760,000
together with interest to Zhongdun; and (d) reject
the issue in (iv) above. Green Food has applied to the
Higher People’s Court of Guangdong Province for
retrial on 8 April 2022 under (2022) Yue Minshen No.
4179 ((2022) B R F41795%) .

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 178
(2020: 140) employees in Hong Kong and the PRC with total
staff costs amounting to approximately HK$14.66 million
(2020: HK$9.74 million). Remuneration of employees is
offered at competitive standards, generally structured with
reference to market terms and individual qualifications. The
Company has adopted the share option scheme aiming to
provide incentives to participants for their contributions to
the Group, and to enable the Group to recruit and retain
quality employees to serve the Group on a long-term basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always recognised the importance of
shareholders’ transparency and accountability. It is the belief
of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
that shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the "Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31
December 2021, except where otherwise stated in this
report.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performances. Daily operations and execution
are delegated to the management. The Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(@) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to directors
and employees; and

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The executive directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) provide the Group with a wide range of expertise
and experience. Their participation in Board meetings bring
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group's
strategy, performance, conflicts of interests and management
process, to ensure that the interests of all shareholders are
taken into account. The independent non-executive directors
ensure that the Board accounts for the interests of all
shareholders and that all issues are considered in an objective
manner.

The Board believes that the balance between executive
and non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to
provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Group. The Company considers that the
Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as directors in the best interests of
the Company and that the current Board size is adequate for
its present operations.

At 31 December 2021, the Board comprised five executive
directors, namely Mr. Li Jiehong (Chairman), Mr. Ke
Xionghan, Mr. Zeng Jixiang, Mr. Yu Zicong and Mr. Chen
Chen; one non-executive director, namely Ms. Ho Wing Yan;
and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Chong Cha Hwa, Mr. Yang Yunguang and Mr. Chen Zhifeng.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at
all times met the requirement of the Listing Rules relating
to at least one of the independent non-executive directors
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise under
Rule 3.10(2).
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During the period from 22 January 2021 to 16 May 2021,
the Company failed to meet the following requirements as a
result of the retirement of Mr. Liu Tao as an independent non-
executive director on 22 January 2021:

(a) at least three independent non-executive directors on
the board of directors under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules;

(b)  the independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the board of directors under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules;

(c) the audit committee comprising a minimum of three
members under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules;

(d)  the remuneration committee comprising a majority of
independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.25
of the Listing Rules; and

(e) the nomination committee comprising a majority
of independent non-executive directors under code
provision A.5.1 of the CG Code (which has been
amended to Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules since 1
January 2022).

On 17 May 2021, Mr. Chen Zhifeng was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and a member of each
of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. Following Mr.
Chen’s appointment, the Company fully complied with the
requirements under the above mentioned rules and code
provision.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors and considers them to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.
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The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of directors’ liability.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 (which has been renumbered as code
provision C.2.1 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code
requires that the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

The Company did not officially have a position of chief
executive officer since 24 June 2016. During the year ended
31 December 2021, Mr. Li Jiehong, the Chairman of the
Board, provided leadership to the Board to ensure that
the Board works effectively and all important issues were
discussed and dealt with in a timely manner. The Board will
continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's structure
as business continues to grow and develop in order to assess
whether any changes, including the appointment of a chief
executive officer, are necessary.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The procedures of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid in the articles of association of the
Company. The procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director are available on the website
of the Company.

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, one-third of the directors for the time being, shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting.
The non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors are appointed for specific term ranging from two to
three years.

Article 99 of the Company's articles of association provides
that directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting after their appointment, and shall
be subject to re-election by the shareholders.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

FABEMEFEEREEERR

EFERITERARE
TEBEATHZTIEXEA2MF (BEZE
T HE-RA-HECENRKATIRXE
C2.11%) RE > TRATHRHAZABEREE
7o WARER— AREFRE-

ARBEZTE-—ANFANAZTHAELE
EFRARUTHEBHZBU-BE_T_—F
+TZA=+—HLEEE EFEXFEFTHB
TEEREERE HMREFTAMEFKRR
EERRENEBRNRMREE BEFTF
BEXDUBERNEERMEERNAER
RIBZRA UMD EE2FREAEE
(BRESETEBE) -

EFZEZE-EEME

ZE EERERERZZREFANRETRTZ
HEERMER - RREEMASEESFEZE
RN A B 4B ER -

REARBDZEBSEMASB16F &
RRAFAEGLER=ZD2Z—EFARER
FFRITEETRBIUFATESNRELR
HBNFME=Fo

RRBZHBERMAERRE FIER
BHERTRNIENESTEFUMEREZ
EXZ IHRKEEHEZERZ T —ERE
RERLE WRKHKRREE



BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee to oversee different aspects of
the Company’s affairs. The terms of reference of these
committees are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee since
2001. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Group's financial statements, overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting, risk management and internal control systems,
and making recommendations to the Board. Meetings of the
Audit Committee shall be held at least twice a year.

At 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chong Cha
Hwa, Mr. Yang Yunguang and Mr. Chen Zhifeng. Mr. Chong
Cha Hwa is the chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there were two
meetings held by the Audit Committee to (i) review with
external auditors the external audit findings, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and the
Listing Rules and statutory compliance; (ii) discuss auditing
and financial reporting matters, including review of the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the unaudited financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 with recommendations to the
Board for approval; (iii) review the independence of the
auditors; (iv) review and make recommendations to the Board
on the auditors’ re-appointment and remuneration; and (v)
review the Group's risk management and internal control
systems.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy. No individual director or any
of his/her associates is involved in decisions relating to his/
her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee has
adopted the model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) (which
has been renumbered as code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) since 1
January 2022) of the CG Code to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management. Meetings of the
Remuneration Committee shall be held at least once a year.

At 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee
comprised one executive director, namely Mr. Li Jiehong; and
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chong
Cha Hwa and Mr. Chen Zhifeng. Mr. Chong Cha Hwa is the
chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there were three
meetings held by the Remuneration Committee to (i)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the directors and senior management; and
(ii) review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the new directors.

Details of the remuneration paid to directors and members
of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2021 are disclosed in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors, making recommendations to the Board
on nominations, appointment of directors and Board
succession with reference to the board diversity policy and
the nomination policy of the Company.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

Selection Criteria: Selection of candidates will be based on
the Company’s Nomination Policy as well as the following
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board, having due regard to
the benefits of diversity on the Board and also the needs
of the Board without focusing on a single diversity aspect.
The Board’'s composition will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report annually.

Review: The Nomination Committee will review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time. It will discuss any revisions
to the Board Diversity Policy and make recommendation to
the Board for approval.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy sets out the key selection criteria and
nomination procedures of the Nomination Committee in
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors.

Nomination Criteria: In assessing the suitability of the
candidate to the Board regarding the appointment or re-
appointment of any existing director(s), the Nomination
Committee will consider the following factors: the
candidate’s character, integrity and competent to act as
director, skills, knowledge, and experience in the commercial
and professional fields which are relevant to the principal
business of the Group, availability to devote time and
attention to the Board; and with due regard to the Board
Diversity Policy.
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Nomination Procedures and Requirements: The Nomination
Committee shall convene a meeting to invite nominations
of candidates from directors (if any) or it may also nominate
candidates for its consideration. The Nomination Committee
shall use adequate due diligence in making recommendation
regarding the appointment or re-appointment of any existing
director(s) for the Board’s consideration and approval. The
procedures for shareholders’ nomination of any proposed
candidate for election as a director should follow the
“Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director”. The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for election at a general meeting.

Review: The Nomination Committee will review the
Nomination Policy from time to time. It will discuss any
revisions to the Nomination Policy and make recommendation
to the Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee considered that the Board
has sufficient diverse expertise, particularly in corporate
management, financial control, business development and
human resources management, for the Company’s business.
Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least
once a year.

At 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
comprised the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Jiehong,
and two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Chong Cha Hwa and Mr. Chen Zhifeng. Mr. Li Jiehong is the
chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there were three
meetings held by the Nomination Committee to (i) review the
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors with
reference to the requirements under the Listing Rules; (iii)
nominate the retiring directors for re-election at the annual
general meeting held on 25 June 2021; (iv) review the Board
Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy; and (v) nominate
the proposed candidates for appointment to the Board and
Board committees.

The directors” attendance at the above committees’ meetings
held in 2021 is set out in the section below.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

EEEFRER  RREECRECHEEZR
FEFRAEEANWA) TFH] BITRAEE
AUEER -RHZECRBEBEMUSE
AREMNEZEEANREEZTAESTTIRHE
BEEUAMEBRAE - RERBEEANSE
EEFCREFEAEIRRERGEEESHNE
Fl - EFREARMEREREANRREAE L
BEEZEZ VEEZARKRTE#-

%57 [ RBEEGRARIE IR AEER ) 516
RABRZEFESIURBDESSRERE
DU /e o

RYEZEERN EFTALEEE - MHE
I EBERMANBEREESTTEZEZT
EEREUBNERAEH - RHEEEA

SEELRT-REHo

RW_BE_—F+_B=+—H %L E"
RESREEEIFTHBEE  UEMA
BUERITEE BIRRELERREEL
) FHEBREBZEZEGEE-

BHE_ZE_—F+_B=+—HILEFEE &
HEREEERT=RgH U EEgE
e B R (N2 R EmRA 2R ET
EEIIERITES 2B/ (IRBREE
ER_E_—FAB_+tEHBTZRERE
FRAGLEHEE; (WVBEREETEMEZTIEK
RREABR , RVILEEENESEZEEN
BZEMIRLERBREA

EEBE S ERRT FREEEE
B BERER T

I8y



MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, there were seven Board
meetings held by the directors, four of which were regular
Board meetings to (i) review and discuss the matters relating
to the Group’s development strategies, investment projects,
business operations and financial performance, and (ii)
approve the annual results for 2020 and the interim results
for 2021. The other three Board meetings were held to
consider certain ad hoc and other corporate matters. Under
code provision A.1.3 (which has been renumbered as code
provision C.5.3 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code,
notice of at least 14 days should be given of a regular board
meeting to give all directors an opportunity to attend. During
the Year, certain regular Board meetings were convened
with less than 14 days’ notice to enable the directors to
react timely and make expeditious decisions in respect of
transactions which were of significance to the Group's
business. As a result, the aforesaid regular Board meetings
were held with a shorter notice period than required with no
objection by the directors. The Board will do its endeavours
to meet the requirement of this code provision in future. In
addition to Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board met
with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of other directors.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. Minutes of meetings of the Board
and Board committees with appropriate details are available
to all directors for inspection. Draft minutes are circulated to
all directors for comment and approval after the Board and
committee meetings.

All directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain
independent professional advisers if necessary. They also have
unrestricted access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or director arise, the matter is discussed in an
actual meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written
resolution. Independent non-executive directors with no
conflict of interest are present at meetings dealing with
conflict issues. Board committees, including the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees, follow all the
applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings
for committee meetings.
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Details of directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board BEFEHEREEC —F&+-“A=+—H
committees meetings and general meetings held during the  EEE 21T Z%%ﬁﬁ H EELEEER
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out as follows: REEARGZEREINUWT :
Attendance/Eligible to attend
HERY AEREERY
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General

Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings®
Name of directors ESiL EZ883 ENZE%8E FWZEEEE RLZE9E: REAEY
Executive Directors HiTEZE
Mr. Li Jiehong (Chairman) FHERE (ZE) 717 - 33 33 02
Mr. Ke Xionghan RIS ELE 17 - - - 02
Mr. Zeng Jixiang BEHLE 017 - - - 012
Mr. Yu Zicong RTBERE 017 - - - 012
Mr. Chen Chen® BREEY 013 - - - 0/0
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Ms. Ho Wing Yan MLt 17 - - - 02*
Independent Non-executive Directors B FFH77EE
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa ERERE 577 0 33 3R 02
Mr. Yang Yunguang BEREE 77 22 - - 021
Mr. Chen Zhifeng® BE gL 5/5 171 11 11 (AN
Mr. Liu Tao® ELLY 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
- The director is not a committee member - ZEZSTIIFEZEFHE
# The director attended the extraordinary general meeting held #: EEEBRETFRCHERZZEZ—F—A8

on 22 January 2021 by electronic means.
*: The director attended the annual general meeting held on 25
June 2021 by electronic means.

(@) According to the Company's articles of association, there is
no provision to provide that attendance by the director at
a general meeting by electronic means may be counted as
physical attendance.

(b) Mr. Chen Chen was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 27 September 2021.
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(0 Mr. Chen Zhifeng was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company with effect from 17 May 2021.

(d) Mr. Liu Tao retired as an independent non-executive director
of the Company and ceased to be a member of each of the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company at the conclusion of the
extraordinary general meeting held on 22 January 2021.

Under code provision E.1.2 (which has been renumbered as
code provision F2.2 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code,
the chairman of the board should attend the annual general
meeting. Mr. Li Jiehong, the Chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 25 June 2021 in person due to government measures
on travel restrictions caused by COVID-19 outbreak.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All newly appointed directors have been provided with an
induction on their appointment to the Board so as to ensure
that each of them has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that they are
fully aware of their responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has provided relevant
materials published by professional bodies or regulators to
the directors to keep them abreast of the latest development
of legal, regulatory and corporate governance. The Company
has also devised a training record in order to assist the
directors to record the training they have undertaken and
they are requested to provide a training record to the
Company.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the
training that the directors received for the year ended 31
December 2021 is summarized as follows:

BEBERAABDREFILHE EFRHEE_T
T+ A=+ HLEFEEZZEIIR
I

Attending seminars/
conferences/courses/
readings relevant to
the business,
corporate governance
or directors’ duties

BEBRER-
TEEAREEHEZ
FEXE tHetg
Name of directors EEN4 32 RERRAMR
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Li Jiehong TR E v
Mr. Ke Xionghan MR E v
Mr. Zeng Jixiang BEFRE
Mr. Yu Zicong FTHR&E
Mr. Chen Chen® PR R ST 4@ v
Non-executive Director FRITEE
Ms. Ho Wing Yan Ik iR s £ v
Independent Non-executive Directors B IFRITER
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa SRREFLE v
Mr. Yang Yunguang BRI 4
Mr. Chen Zhifeng® [ERES $8 S 4 4
Mr. Liu Tao® 2B EC
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Notes:

(a) Mr. Chen Chen was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 27 September 2021.

(b) Mr. Chen Zhifeng was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company with effect from 17 May 2021.

(@) Mr. Liu Tao retired as an independent non-executive director
of the Company and ceased to be a member of each of the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company at the conclusion of the
extraordinary general meeting held on 22 January 2021.

Under code provision A.6.5 (which has been renumbered as
code provision C.1.4 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills, and should provide a record of the training they
received to the issuer. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Company did not receive the training record from Mr.
Liu Tao, who retired on 22 January 2021, nor the Company
received the training records from Mr. Zeng Jixiang and Mr.
Yu Zicong, both of whom resigned on 28 January 2022.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code on ethics and securities
transactions (the “Code"”), which incorporates a code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company are also subject to the
compliance with the Code. Having made specific enquiry of
all existing directors, the Company confirms that the directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the
Code and the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced
assessment of the Group's performance and prospects. The
directors also acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group. The Group had defaulted in
repayments of its debts, including: i) default in repayment
of principal amount of secured bonds of HK$109,000,000
and interests thereon of approximately HK$32,700,000 (the
"Defaulted Secured Bonds”); ii) default in repayment of
principal amount of unsecured bonds of HK$127,600,000
and interests thereon of approximately HK$14,982,000 (the
“Default Unsecured Bonds”), of which a holder claims the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$5,252,000 including
interest thereon, has filed a petition against the Company;
and iii) default in settlement of construction payables
which, including additional penalties thereon, amounted to
approximately HK$101,814,000 (the “Defaulted Construction
Payables”), in respect of which the Group had received
a notice from the contractor of the event of default and
demand for payment. In addition, the Group had outstanding
bank and other borrowings other than the Defaulted Secured
Bonds and Defaulted Unsecured Bonds of approximately
HK$224,449,000 as at 31 December 2021 which were due
for repayment or renewal in the next twelve months after 31
December 2021 and incurred a loss for the year ended 31
December 2021 of approximately HK$177,290,000. These
events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth
in note 2.2 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Save for disclosed above, for the purpose of the Company’s
financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Board was
not aware of any other events or conditions that might cast
significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern.
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In the light of the following various measures or
arrangements to improve the working capital and liquidity
and cash flow position of the Group together with the
expected results of the other measures, including:

(a)

(e)

Management is endeavoring to improve the Group’s
operating results and cash flows through various
cost control measures and will focus on the existing
business;

The Group is negotiating with its secured and
unsecured bondholders to extend the repayment dates
for the principal and the interests amounts of the
Defaulted Secured Bond and the Defaulted Unsecured
Bonds. In the opinion of the Directors, the majority
of the holders of the Default Secured Bond and the
Default Unsecured Bond will not proceed with legal
actions against the Group and instead will agree upon
new repayment terms to be agreed between the
Group and the secured bondholder and the unsecured
bondholders;

The Group may consider to dispose non-financial
assets and properties if required,;

A substantial shareholder of the Company has agreed
to continuously provide financial support for the
continuing operations of the Group so as to enable
it to meet its liabilities when they fall due and carry
on its business without a significant curtailment of
operations in the twelve months from the date of
approval of consolidated financial statement; and

The Company is negotiating with investors for
obtaining further financing when necessary including
but not limited to equity financing, bank borrowing
and issuance of new convertible bonds to improve the
liquidity of the Group.

the directors are of the view that the Group will have
sufficient working capital for its current requirements and it
is reasonable to expect the Group to remain a commercially
viable concern. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to these
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 66 to 70 of this annual report.

Management’s position and basis on the going concern
assumption, and its view on the Disclaimer

As detailed in Note 2.2 to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“Note
2.2"), conditions existed as at 31 December 2021 indicating
the existence of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt regarding the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. In view of such circumstances, the
management of the Group (the “Management”) has
given careful consideration to Group’s current liquidity,
performance and available sources of financing in considering
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
Management has also taken or will continue to implement
the measures as further detailed in Note 2.2 to mitigate the
Group's liquidity pressure and to improve the conditions of
cash flow. Taking into account the successful and continued
implementation of such measures, the Management and also
the Directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient
working capital for a period of not less than 12 months from
31 December 2021, and hence it is appropriate to prepare
the Group's consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Management and Directors are of the
view that the Group will, based on the action plan devised,
have sufficient cash resources to satisfy future working capital
and other financing requirements as and when they fall
due for the period of not less than twelve months from 31
December 2021.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends
on the outcome of these measures, which are subject to
multiple uncertainties, including: i) defaulted in repayment
of principal amount of secured bonds of HK$109,000,000
and interests thereon of approximately HK$32,700,000 (the
“Defaulted Secured Bonds”); ii) defaulted in repayment of
principal amount of unsecured bonds of HK$127,600,000
and interests thereon of approximately HK$14,982,000 (the
“Default Unsecured Bonds”), of which a holder claims the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$5,252,000 including
interest thereon, has filed a petition against the Company;
and iii) defaulted in settlement of construction payables
which, including additional penalties thereon, amounted to
approximately HK$101,814,000 (the “Defaulted Construction
Payables”), in respect of which the Group had received
a notice from the contractor of the event of default and
demand for payment. In addition, the Group had outstanding
bank and other borrowings other than the Defaulted Secured
Bonds and Defaulted Unsecured Bonds of approximately
HK$224,449,000 as at 31 December 2021 which were due
for repayment or renewal in the next twelve months after 31
December 2021.

The Audit Committee after considering all factors above
concurs with the Management and the Board on preparation
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis, the validity of which depends on the outcome of
the measures under management’s assumptions, which
are subject to multiple uncertainties. In all other respects,
in the opinion of the Auditor, the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Action plan to address the Disclaimer

Details of the action plan of the Group to address the
Disclaimer

In order to address the uncertainties which may cast
doubt regarding the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, and with a view to removing the Disclaimer, the
Company had taken and intends to continue to implement
the measures as further detailed in Note 2.2 to mitigate the
liquidity pressure and to improve its cash flows, including:

(i) Continuing our ongoing efforts in convincing the
holders of the Defaulted Secured Bonds not to take
any actions against the Group for immediate payment
of the principals and interest;

(ii) Continuing our ongoing efforts in convincing the
holders of the Defaulted Unsecured Bonds not to take
any actions against the Group for immediate payment
of the principals and interest;

(i) Continuing our ongoing efforts in convincing the
holders of the Defaulted Construction Payables not
to take any actions against the Group for immediate
repayment of the debts and penalties;

(iv)  Continuing our ongoing efforts in extension the bank
and other borrowings upon maturity;

(v) Management is endeavoring to improve the Group’s
operating results and cash flows through various
cost control measures and will focus on the existing
business;

(vij  The Group may consider to dispose non-financial
assets and properties if required,;

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

CEEERTERNITEHE
K& F[olfE AR T R R T8 5T 85 IE

HEIEREERAERFELEERNELS
BN EERE  UAFIGEEZRTER &
ABEHRDMIL A EREBIEMN 2. 2PT 571
i LURE R B E RO RNERERERE
(R

() HETEHSHRRENEBREST
EATEHRAERRRERATEUE
RIBMEEAZRAE ;

(i) HMEBTESHRRENERREST
BATEHAEERNERMTHUE
KRIBMBEEAEZRAE ;

(i) HMEIESDRBRIERIRERFTEA
FEHTEBRRBEMITIHUERT
BMEEEH REE ;

(v, HBESHRNRTKRAEMEEZIRER
HIEH ;

(v EBERBRNNBBERIAMAIES
RAXAEENEERERRTME B
REERIFERESR

(v FEEJEEEZELEFEREER
MEWHRE



(vii) A substantial shareholder of the Company has agreed
to continuously provide financial support for the
continuing operations of the Group so as to enable
it to meet its liabilities when they fall due and carry
on its business without a significant curtailment of
operations in the twelve months from the date of
approval of consolidated financial statement; and

(viii)  The Company is negotiating with investors for
obtaining further financing when necessary including
but not limited to equity financing, bank borrowing
and issuance of new convertible bonds to improve the
liquidity of the Group.

The Management and Directors believe that the current
action plans are the most commercially practicable plans and
measures in addressing the Group's liquidity matters and
going concern. The Management and the Directors will focus
on the current action plans and the implementation thereof,
while keeping viable options open as they continue their
efforts in addressing the going concern issue and Disclaimer.

Impact of the Disclaimer on the Company’s financial
position

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans
and measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as
a going concern, and adjustments would have to be made
to write down the carrying value of the Group's assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities.
The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Audit committee’s view on the Disclaimer

The audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) had critically reviewed the Disclaimer and also
the management’s position and action plan of the Group to
address the Disclaimer. The Audit Committee is in agreement
with the Management with respect to the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, and in particular the actions
or measures to be implemented by the Management of the
Group with a view to remove the disclaimer of opinion in
2022 financial statements.
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Removal of Disclaimer

Based on the Company'’s discussion with the Auditor, as the
Disclaimer relates to a going concern issue, in preparing the
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2022,
the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern and the appropriateness
of preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis, based on the conditions and
circumstances as at 31 December 2022. In accordance with
the Hong Kong Standards on Auditing, sufficient appropriate
audit evidence should be made available regarding the
appropriateness of the Management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
Group's financial statements, so that to enable the Auditor
to conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
multiple uncertainties exist regarding the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Management’'s assessment of the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern as at 31 December 2022
should be based on the conditions and circumstances as at
31 December 2022 and cash flow projections covering a
period of not less than 12 months from 31 December 2022.
As such, the Auditor is unable to ascertain whether the
Disclaimer can be removed for the next financial year at this
stage.

Assuming all the above plans or actions can be completed
as planned and no new circumstances and conditions have
occurred, subject to satisfactory completion of review of the
Management's assessment of the Group’s going concern,
together with sufficient and appropriate evidence, the
Disclaimer may be removed in connection with the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ending 31 December 2022.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited, in respect of their audit services provided to the
Group was HK$1,400,000.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Goals and Obijectives

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk management
and internal control systems are designed for managing
risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Board has delegated its responsibilities of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems, and the management has to ensure
the effectiveness of these systems.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Group's risk governance structure and the main
responsibilities of each level of the structure are summarized
below:

The Board is responsible to determine the business strategies
and objectives of the Group, and evaluates and determines
the nature and extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives; ensures that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems; and oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems.
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Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to
perform its responsibilities of risk management and internal
control systems; overseeing the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis; reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems at least annually, and such review
should cover all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance control; ensuring the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget for the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions; and considering major
findings on risk management and internal control matters,
and reports and makes recommendations to the Board.

The senior management designs, implements and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems; identifies, evaluates and manages the risk
that may potentially impact the major processes of the
operations; monitors risk and take measures to mitigate risk
in the day-to-day operations; gives prompt responses to and
follow up the findings on risk management and internal
control matters raised by the internal auditor or external
risk management and internal control adviser; and provides
confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Internal auditor is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems; and reports to the Audit Committee on the
findings of the review and makes recommendations to the
Board and management to improve the material systems
deficiencies or control weaknesses identified.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and considers them effective and
adequate.
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Risk Management Process

In addition to the Board's responsibilities, the Company has
developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks and to resolve material internal
control defects. Senior management is responsible for the
annual risk reporting process. Internal auditor will meet with
various members of the senior management to review and
assess risks and discuss solutions to address material internal
control defects, including any changes relevant to a given
year. Risks are compiled, ratings are assigned and mitigation
plans are documented. The risk assessment is reviewed by
certain members of senior management and presented to the
Audit Committee and the Board for their review.

Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management
based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risk on the
Company’s financial results; (ii) the probability that the risk
will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which a risk could
occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the
risks as follows:

o Risk elimination — senior management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

° Risk mitigation — senior management may implement
a risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood, velocity or the severity of the risk to an
acceptable level.

o Risk retention — senior management may decide that
the risk rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable
for the Company and that no action is required. The
risk would continue to be monitored as part of the risk
management program to ensure the level of risk does
not increase to an unacceptable level.
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Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by the
internal auditor who reports directly to the Audit Committee.
Internal auditor plays an important part in the assessment
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reports directly to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis.

The internal auditor conducts internal reviews on material
controls and compliance with policies and procedures of the
Group at both operational and corporate levels. Plans and
tools for corrective actions and control improvement are
identified and communicated with operations management
to address an issue, non-compliance or deficiencies identified.
The internal auditor monitors the implementation of his
recommendations by operations management and reports
the outcomes to the Audit Committee.

The Group is fully aware of its obligation of handling and
dissemination of inside information under the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group has a set of procedures
and controls in place to preserve the confidentiality of inside
information relating to the Group. All Board members and
senior management, who are likely to possess the Group's
inside information because of their offices or employments
in the Group, are required to follow the guidelines of the
code of conduct and the staff handbook to keep unpublished
inside information strictly confidential.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Chan Kwong
Leung, Eric, who is engaged and appointed by the Company
from an external secretarial services provider and his primary
corporate contact persons at the Company during the Year
were Mr. Li Kwok Pong (from 1 January 2021 to 30 June
2021) and Mr. Kwan Yiu Ming Patrick (from 1 July 2021
to 31 December 2021), both the Financial Controllers of
the Company. For the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr.
Chan Kwong Leung, Eric has complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Under code provision E.1.5 (which has been renumbered as
code provision F.1.1 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code,
the issuer should have a policy on payment of dividends and
should disclose it in the annual report. As the Company is still
in its development phase and the performance will continue
to be impacted by the relevant industry and economic
outlook in the foreseeable future, the Board is of the
opinion that it is not appropriate to adopt a dividend policy
at this stage. The Board will review the Company’s status
periodically and consider to adopt a dividend policy if and
when appropriate.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to article 72 of the Company’'s articles of
association, any two or more shareholders or any one
shareholder which is a recognised clearing house (or
its nominee) holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can deposit a written request
at the head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Room 225, 2/F, Mega Cube, 8
Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong, or
the registered office of the Company at P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands for the
attention of the Board or Company Secretary to convene an
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM").

The Company will verify the request with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Board will be asked to convene an EGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders in
accordance with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules
and the Company'’s articles of association. In the event that
the request has been verified as not in order, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
an EGM will not be convened as requested.
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If within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition,
the Board does not proceed duly to convene an EGM, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the EGM in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board in writing for the attention of the Board or Company
Secretary via the followings:

Address :  Room 225, 2/F, Mega Cube,
8 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax : (852) 2880 5398

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents for the year ended 31 December
2021.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant
information to shareholders in a timely manner. The
Company also recognises that people other than
shareholders, such as potential investors and the investment
community generally may have an interest in information
about the Company.

Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational
and financial performance information to shareholders
and the annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. All
the shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of
20 clear business days’ notice of the date and venue of the
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company
complied with the requirements concerning voting by poll
under the Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures
and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll are explained
by the chairman of general meeting at the meeting. All
resolutions proposed at general meeting are voted separately.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements
and notices of general meetings, as well as the terms of
reference of Board committees can be downloaded from the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly
by the Company’s management to reflect current regulatory,
community and investor requirements. In particular, the
policy will be updated in response to the changes in internal
structure, legislative, regulatory and market developments.
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The directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Mr. JIANG Jianjun, aged 52, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company and the Chairman of the Board in
January 2022. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Jiang was a consultant of the Group for
the period from August 2019 to January 2022, the executive
director of the Company for the period from March 2013
to August 2019, the Chairman of the Board for the period
from May 2013 to December 2018 and the managing
director of the Company for the period from May 2013 to
March 2014. He has been engaged in property investment
and management since 1995. He also has experience in
distribution of wine and liquor.

Mr. KE Xionghan, aged 57, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in June 2016. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ke graduated
from the Department of Law of Huazhong University of
Science and Technology. He is the president of Shenzhen
Tiantianwang Taige Technology Co. Ltd.* (IR KL
B AERAF), a company mainly engaged in the import
and export business of electronic products and mineral
products. Mr. Ke was the general manager of Indonesia
Huaming Yang International Trading Company* (ENJE ZBE[5
EPR & 5 /A E)) and worked in the Bank of China, Zhanjiang
Branch for over 20 years, during which period, he served as
the section chief of Retail Business Department, Company
Business Department and Credit Management Department as
well as the president of the sub-branch.

Mr. CHEN Chen, aged 22, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in September 2021. He graduated
from Wuhan Sports University (E0£#8 B 2 %) majoring in
sport training. Mr. Chen is currently working in Dongguan
Junjing Hardware Products Company Limited* GRET S
AEREBERAF).

*  For identification purposes only
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Mr. ZHAO Wanjiang, aged 44, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company and the Vice-chairman of
the Board in January 2022. He is currently the department
head of Human Resources of Beidahuang Trading Group Co.,
Limited* Qb AT BEBBRABEEE (A7) #EK) and
a director of Beidahuang Business Group (HK) International
Trade Co., Limited (“Beidahuang HK"), a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Ms. HO Wing Yan, aged 40, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company in April 2015. She holds
a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration in Applied
Economics from Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master
Degree of Corporate Governance from The Open University
of Hong Kong (currently known as Hong Kong Metropolitan
University). Ms. Ho is an Associate Member of both The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute (“HKCGI") (formerly
known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries)
and The Chartered Governance Institute. She is also a holder
of the Practitioner's Endorsement issued by HKCGI. Ms.
Ho is a director of BMI Listed Corporate Services Limited
and is responsible for managing the business operations of
the company secretarial and administrative services for the
reputable listed groups in various industries. She has extensive
experience in a diversified range of professional corporate
services for Hong Kong and offshore companies from various
business sectors. Ms. Ho particularly specializes in corporate
governance advisory, corporate restructuring, corporate
financing and directors’ professional development with
emphasis on listed companies and she continues to advise
on these matters on a consultancy basis. Ms. Ho actively
participates in the formulation and execution of strategy at
the companies. She has been providing practical professional
services to companies listed on the Main Board and the GEM
of the Stock Exchange for over 10 years.

*  For identification purposes only
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Mr. LI Dawei, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company in January 2022. He graduated from
Mineral Processing and Utilization Engineering Department of
Coal Chemical Technology, Heilongjiang Mining Institute (£
B IBEESRBYNMIANAIRRZBEECITIEERR). M.
Li is a senior accountant. He is currently the general manager
of Tianjin Dahuang Electronic Commerce Co., Limited* (<
BATMBTFEFBEMRAT)and a senior management of the
member companies of Beidahuang HK.

Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa, aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
December 2018. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants. Mr. Chong holds a
bachelor degree of management with honours from the
University of Science, Malaysia. He has more than 20 years
of experience in the accounting and finance area servicing
private and publicly listed companies in Hong Kong and the
Southern Asia region. Mr. Chong is currently an independent
non-executive director of Sino Energy International Holdings
Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange. From October 2020 to April
2021, he was an executive director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. YANG Yunguang, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in July
2018. He holds a Master's Degree in National Economics
from Northwest University. Mr. Yang has served as senior
management positions of insurance companies in the PRC
since 1989. He has 30 years of experience in the financial
industry and corporate management.

Mr. CHEN Zhifeng, aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
May 2021. He graduated from Zhanjiang Ocean University
(currently known as Guangdong Ocean University) majoring
in Business English. Mr. Chen is currently a manager of
Shenzhen Qianhai Badi Industrial Company Limited* G&3IlIF
B8\ M BB /AE]). He has over 7 years of experience
in property leasing and management in the PRC.

*  For identification purposes only
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 71 to
231.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the Year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,
is set out on page 232. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 is provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 18 of
this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Financial Highlights on page 4 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the Year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the Year are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to approximately HK$339.49
million, representing the share premium account of the
Company of approximately HK$1,669.30 million less the
accumulated losses as at 31 December 2021 of approximately
HK$1,329.81 million. Under the Companies Act of the
Cayman Islands (as amended), the share premium account
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, sales attributable
to the largest customer of the Group amounted to
approximately 11.92% of the total sales and the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 40.21% of the
Group's total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, purchases
attributable to the largest supplier of the Group amounted
to approximately 13.24% of the total purchases and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 41.12% of the
Group's total purchases.
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jbk?%%@%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂ (Beidahuang Agribusiness Group
Co., Ltd*) and REIREBILATHEEEBREEAE
(Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang Business Trade Liability
Group Co., Ltd*) were deemed substantial shareholders of
the Company through their corporate interests in Beidahuang
Business Group (HK) International Trade Co., Limited for
the Year and up to the date of this report, and held about
51.00% equity interest in BEIATREREERQT
(Tongliao Beidahuang Cereals Trading Co., Ltd.*), which
was one of the Group’'s five largest suppliers during the
Year. Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors of the
Company or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company) had any
interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. JIANG Jianjun (Chairman) (appointed on 28 January 2022)

Mr. KE Xionghan
Mr. CHEN Chen (appointed on 27 September 2021)

Mr. LI Jiehong (Chairman)  (resigned on 28 January 2022)

Mr. ZENG lixiang (resigned on 28 January 2022)

Mr. YU Zicong (resigned on 28 January 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHAO Wanjiang
(Vice-chairman)

Ms. HO Wing Yan

Mr. LI Dawei

(appointed on 28 January 2022)

(appointed on 28 January 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa
Mr. YANG Yunguang

Mr. CHEN Zhifeng (appointed on 17 May 2021)

Mr. LIU Tao (retired on 22 January 2021)

*  For identification purposes only
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In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Ke Xionghan and Ms. Ho Wing Yan will retire
by rotation and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with article 99 of the Company's articles of
association, Mr. Jiang Jianjun, Mr. Zhao Wanjiang and Mr. Li
Dawei will retire and being eligible, have offered themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 46 to 48 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party subsisted at any time during the
Year or at the end of the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “"SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFXEHRS

BESY
FRBESTUNFEEREART 2T
AERBAEF 2 EENITHEN -

EFENRMREMRGP 2

N _E_—F+_"_BA=+—H ' FFBEFNXE
NEIHEMAE AR (TRREBSFRPERAE
XVEB) Z B 1n ~ ABRARD BB A 0
BN IRIERE S MG RAIE352FRERAE
BYREZERAM WiRE EHRAMER
T8 EmBETAESETHESIZNEE
FR) (M2#<rR)) BRITHEAR B KB
FrzmRXBWT .

REQATEBERZEE

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

BERMYUE SHhREGEE

Approximate
Directly Through percentage of
beneficially controlled the Company's
owned Through spouse corporation Total issued shares
EAREBETRA
Name of directors ESfy ERBHERA BBRR BRREREE @5t ZEEAL
Mr. Li Jiehong TEERE 224,000 44,592,000¢ 13,752,0000 58,568,000 0.94%
Mr. Ke Xionghan licde b 4,240,000 - - 4,240,000 0.07%
4,464,000 44,592,000 13,752,000 62,808,000 1.01%

Notes: MIsE

(@) These 44,592,000 shares were held by Ms. Deng Xiaohe, the
spouse of Mr. Li Jiehong.

(b) These 13,752,000 shares were held by Sino Insight Holdings
Limited (”Sino Insight”). As Sino Insight was wholly owned
by Mr. Li Jiehong, Mr. Li Jiehong was deemed to be
interested in the 13,752,000 shares held by Sino Insight by
virtue of the SFO.

() #%3544,592,0008 R {7 A F RIS AL 2 Fo 8
eSSt STk

(b) %5513,752,00002 B (0 HERER B R A
(TER ) B - HRERRFTHBLES
EA AL RIFESREBERG > =4
B EW R AN ERPTRFA 213,752,000
PR o
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Long position in share options of the Company:

REQGEREZER:

Number of

share options

directly

beneficially

owned

BEiZERER

Name of directors EENES ZHEREHEB
Mr. Li Jiehong ZHEBRE 900,000
Mr. Ke Xionghan R T 4,060,000
Mr. Zeng Jixiang BEELE 900,000
Mr. Yu Zicong RFERE 900,000
Ms. Ho Wing Yan EE/qnn 900,000
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa SRRESLE 900,000
Mr. Yang Yunguang *%;F—Efzf’ﬁi 900,000
Mr. Chen Zhifeng [FRES #8504 900,000
10,360,000

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none
of the directors had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the following interests in shares
of 5% or more of the issued shares of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position: G~
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s
Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held  issued shares
GERTBET
Rin Z B4
e, i S RkEDNEE FRERHHUB A
Jiang Jianjun Beneficial owner 456,173,182 7.33%
IEE Ban#BA
Interest of controlled corporation 458,331,044@ 7.36%
SEREE RS
Li Zhuoxun Interest of spouse 914,504,226" 14.69%
REE [y
Beidahuang Business Group (HK) International Trade  Beneficial owner 660,000,000 10.60%
Co., Limited (formerly known as Beidahuang
(HK) International Trade Co., Limited)
("Beidahuang HK")
TATHEER (&8 BREZERAR BaEEA
IR AT (B8 EREZBERRAE)
(MERFREE))
Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang Business Trade Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000 10.60%
Liability Group Co., Ltd* (“Beidahuang Business
Group”)
BRIEERLATHBEREREEAT REREERT
(MEAREEER))
Beidahuang Agribusiness Group Co., Ltd* (formerly Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000 10.60%

known as Heilongjiang Beidahuang Agribusiness
Group Corporation*) (“Beidahuang Group”)

LTAGRREERRAT REHEEED
FRERRIILATREEERLR)
(MEATRER))

* (B

*  For identification purposes only
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Notes:

(a) These 458,331,044 shares were held by King Wei Group
(China) Investment Development Limited (“King Wei")
as to 237,051,044 shares and China Silver Investments
Development Limited (“China Silver”) as to 221,280,000
shares. As King Wei and China Silver were wholly owned by
Mr. Jiang Jianjun (“Mr. Jiang”), Mr. Jiang was deemed to be
interested in the 237,051,044 shares held by King Wei and
the 221,280,000 shares held by China Silver respectively by
virtue of the SFO.

(b) Ms. Li Zhuoxun is the spouse of Mr. Jiang and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Mr. Jiang
and his controlled corporations namely King Wei and China
Silver by virtue of the SFO.

(@) These 660,000,000 shares were held by Beidahuang HK,
which was wholly owned by Beidahuang Business Group
which in turn was wholly owned by Beidahuang Group.
Accordingly, each of Beidahuang Business Group and
Beidahuang Group was deemed to be interested in the
660,000,000 shares held by Beidahuang HK by virtue of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person,
other than the directors of the Company whose interests are
set out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares” above, had registered an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

*  For identification purposes only
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2017
Scheme"”) pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 June 2017
(the “Adoption Date”). The purpose of the 2017 Scheme is
to provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of, the Group. The 2017 Scheme, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
the Adoption Date. The total number of shares available
for issue under the 2017 Scheme is 509,705,563 shares
representing approximately 8.19% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this report. Further details of the
2017 Scheme are disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the Year, 509,640,400 share options were granted
and no share options were exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the 2017 Scheme.
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The following table discloses movements in the Company's TRIEBEAXRATIRE T —tE8E
share options granted under the 2017 Scheme during the B2 BERENED !

Year:
Number of share options
fEREHE
Exercise
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At price
Name or category 1January  duringthe  duringthe  during the  during the 31 December Date of grant of  Exercise period of of share
of participants 2021 Year Year Year Year 2021 share options share options options?”
i
N - -3
B -F +=B ki
2HERLHER —B—H FREL FRIE FRGEH EREH =t—-0 BRERHBESH BRETEDH fIfefE”
HK$
per share
SRET
Directors
gz
Mr. Li Jiehong - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
FHEBRLE
Mr. Ke Xionghan - 4,060,000 - - - 4,060,000 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
MEBELE
Mr. Zeng lixiang - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
BEHTE
Mr. Yu Zicong - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
RFBEL
Ms. Ho Wing Yan - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
[BE7$ces
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
RRERE
Mr. Yang Yunguang - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
BEAREE
Mr. Chen Zhifeng - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
BE#EE
- 10,360,000 - - - 10,360,000
Other Employees
HitfES
In aggregate - 102,280,400 = = - 102,280,400 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
@5t
Consultants
R
In aggregate - 397,000,000 - - - 397,000,000 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
st
- 509,640,400 - - - 509,640,400
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Notes:

(a) The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar
changes in the Company'’s share capital.

(b) The closing price of the Company's shares immediately
before the date on which the share options were granted
(i.e. 11 June 2021) was HK$0.078 per share.

The directors have estimated the values of the share options
granted during the Year, calculated by using the binomial
option pricing model as at the date of grant of the share
options:
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Number of
share Theoretical
options granted value of
Grantees EEA during the Year share options
FREHZ fERiEZ
FEREHE EwmEE
HK$
BT
Mr. Li Jiehong FHIBEE 900,000 33,227
Mr. Ke Xionghan MR S 4,060,000 149,890
Mr. Zeng Jixiang BEELE 900,000 33,227
Mr. Yu Zicong RTELE 900,000 33,227
Ms. Ho Wing Yan sk &+ 900,000 33,227
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRESE 900,000 33,227
Mr. Yang Yunguang BENEE 900,000 33,227
Mr. Chen Zhifeng PRES 2 5E 900,000 33,227
Other Employees Higs 102,280,400 3,350,000
Consultants A 397,000,000 13,800,000

The fair value of the share options of the directors and
employees granted during the Year was approximately
HK$3,732,000 of which these share options vested
immediately and the Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$3,732,000. Share options granted to
consultants will be vested conditional upon the achievement
attainment of specified performance targets by respective
grantees agreed with the Company. No share-based payment
expense was recognised as it is unlikely that these grantees
meet the performance target.

FRARLNESFAEEBERENAAENS
3,732,000 ZSERENERBEAE S
EEMET BRI Z3,732,0008 7T & T
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The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the Year was estimated as at the date of grant using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the share options were granted. The following
table lists the inputs to the model used:

FRARLHNRECGEBRENAAENRRE
HHAEA ZEAERMGH  ERRIZLE
R IR TR R AR 1 o SR IV EFT AR B 3 A
i

Grant date B 11 June 2021
T —F
~A+—H

Share price I 1E HK$0.068

0.0687%& 7T

Exercise price TEE HK$0.100

0.1007%& 75

Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 B B A1) 2 (%) 0.16

Expected volatility (%) TAHAR 18(%) 107

Exercise multiple ITEBE

— Directors —E% 3.9
— Other employees —HitEs 2.5
— Consultants — A 3.8

Expected dividend yield (%) FEEARR B = (%) 0

Post-vesting exit rate (%) SR EB BB (%) 0

Life of share options (year) FERRIEFHR (7F) 3

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility of
the Company'’s share prices. Expected dividends were based
on historical dividends.

At the end of the Year and at the date of approval of
these financial statements, the Company had 509,640,400
share options outstanding under the 2017 Scheme, which
represented approximately 8.19% of the Company’s shares
in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 509,640,400 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional equity
amount of HK$50,964,040 (before issue expenses).

The values of share options calculated using the binomial
model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to
the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number
of assumptions of the expected future performance input
to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model
itself. The value of an option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the variables
used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of
an option.
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Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2021 were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any of the directors or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's bank
loan of HK$80,919,000 and bills payables of HK$30,267,000
were guaranteed by the investment properties of the Group,
Mr. Jiang Jianjun (the ex-director and substantial shareholder
of the Company as at 31 December 2021, Mr. Jiang Jianjun
was appointed as an executive director on 28 January 2022)
and his wife and related parties.

The personal guarantees made by Mr. Jiang Jianjun and his
wife and related parties as guarantors in favour of the Group
in the abovementioned bank loan constituted connected
transaction of the Company in the form of financial
assistance under the Listing Rules. According to Rule 14A.90
of the Listing Rules, such financial assistance received by the
Group is fully exempt from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as the directors consider
that it is conducted on normal commercial terms or better
and it is not secured by the assets of the Group.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 10 June 2019, the Company entered into a new
framework agreement (“New Framework Agreement”) with
BEILATEEABRAT (Tongliao Beidahuang Cereals
Trading Co., Ltd.*, the “Supplier”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Supplier Group”) in relation to the supply of green and
organic food products including but not limited to corn,
cooking oil, and cereals and oils. The Supplier is a subsidiary
of ILRFEHIMDAERAT (Beidahuang Marketing Co.
Ltd.*) which is a substantial shareholder of FIIIILAFT4E
BERIEEBRAT (Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food
Distribution Limited*) (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company). Thus, the Supplier Group is a connected person of
the Company and the transactions contemplated under the
New Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The New Framework Agreement was duly passed by way
of poll at the extraordinary general meeting held on 8
October 2019. The aggregated annual caps for transactions
contemplated under the New Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2019, 2020
and 2021 are RMB150 million, RMB150 million and RMB150
million respectively as disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 10 June 2019 and the circular of the
Company dated 19 September 2019. During the year ended
31 December 2021, there was a total purchase of staple food
amounting to RMB79,549,000.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

a. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

b. on normal commercial terms; and

C. according to the agreement governing them on terms

that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

*  For identification purposes only
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For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company’s auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited,
have been engaged to report on the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2021 in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and a
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided to the Stock
Exchange. The auditors have confirmed the above continuing
connected transactions as follows:

1. nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the
Company'’s board of directors;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group, nothing has come to
their attention that causes them to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

3. nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material

respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing such transactions; and

4. with respect to the aggregate amount of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above
have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.
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The related party transactions as disclosed in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements also fell under the
definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Group has complied with the disclosure requirements,
where applicable, in accordance with Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares was
held by the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

At 31 December 2021, none of the directors was interested
in any business, apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the paragraph titled “Share Option
Scheme” on page 57 of this report, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
Details of the discussion on the environmental policies and
performance of the Company are set out in the standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2021.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group, their contribution and support are
values at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation
and benefits policies accordingly to industry benchmark
as well as the individual performance of employees. Share
options are granted to retain loyal employees with the aim
to form a professional staff and management team that can
bring the Group to different levels of success.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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The Group encourages its staff to participate in external
seminars and lectures to keep abreast of changes and
updates on areas of legal, compliance, financial accounting
and reporting, and market industry practices. Through these
types of training, we believe that the Group can increase
its efficiency and productivity while in general, the risk and
uncertainties of the Group can be reduced.

The Company encourages continuous professional
development training for the directors and senior
management to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills which includes seminars and workshops, updates on
regulatory requirements and development and corporate
governance practices.

The Group also strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment to the employees.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by directors and other officers of the
Group is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as the auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Jiang Jianjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 April 2022
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B it EH A RN
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

To the shareholders of China Beidahuang Industry
Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 71 to 231, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of
the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient approximate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
In all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainties relating to the going concern
basis

As stated in Note 2.2 to the consolidated financial
statements, as of 31 December 2021, the Group had
defaulted in repayments of its debts, including: i) default
in repayment of principal amount of secured bonds of
HK$109,000,000 and interests thereon of approximately
HK$32,700,000 (the “Defaulted Secured Bonds"); ii) default
in repayment of principal amount of unsecured bonds of
HK$127,600,000 and interests thereon of approximately
HK$14,982,000 (the “Defaulted Unsecured Bonds"”), of
which a party claiming to hold the aggregate amount of
approximately HK$5,252,000, including interest thereon,
has filed a petition against the Company; and iii) default
in settlement of construction payables which, including
additional penalties thereon, amounted to approximately
HK$101,814,000 (the “Defaulted Construction Payables”),
in respect of which the Group had received a notice from
the contractor of the event of default and demand for
payment. In addition, the Group had outstanding bank
and other borrowings other than the Defaulted Secured
Bonds and Defaulted Unsecured Bonds of approximately
HK$224,449,000 as at 31 December 2021 which were due
for repayment or renewal in the next twelve months after
31 December 2021 and incurred a loss for the year ended
31 December 2021 of approximately HK$177,290,000.
These events and conditions, along with other matters as
set forth in Note 2.2, that existed as at 31 December 2021
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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The Directors have assessed the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern and are undertaking measures to improve
the Group's liquidity and financial position and enable the
Group to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due. These
plans for future actions in relation to the going concern
assessment, which are set out in Note 2.2 to the consolidated
financial statements, include: (i) management is endeavoring
to improve the Group's operating results and cash flows
through cost control measures and will focus on the existing
business of the Group; (ii) the Group is negotiating with its
secured and unsecured bondholders to extend the repayment
dates for the principal and interest amounts of the Defaulted
Secured Bonds and the Defaulted Unsecured Bonds. In the
opinion of the Directors, the majority of the holders of the
Defaulted Secured Bonds and the Defaulted Unsecured
Bonds will not proceed with legal actions against the Group
and instead will agree upon new repayment terms to be
agreed between the Group and the secured bondholder and
the unsecured bondholders; (iii) the Group is considering
the disposal of its non-financial assets and properties; (iv)
a substantial shareholder of the Company has agreed to
continuously provide financial support for the continuing
operations of the Group so as to enable it to meet its
liabilities when they fall due and carry on its business without
a significant curtailment of its operations in the twelve
months from the date of approval of consolidated financial
statement; and (v) the Company is negotiating with investors
for obtaining further financing including but not limited
to equity financing, bank borrowing and issuance of new
convertible bonds to improve the liquidity of the Group.

The validity of the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements on going concern basis depends on the successful
eventual outcome of the above mentioned plans and
measures, which are inherently uncertain and as at the date
of this report cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty
and are still subject to multiple uncertainties, particularly in
respect of whether the bondholders would agree to extend
further the dates of repayment of the Defaulted Secured
Bonds and the Defaulted Unsecured Bonds.

Should the Group fail to achieve successful outcomes
from the above-mentioned plans and measures, it might
not be able to continue to operate as a going concern,
and adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to their net
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that
may arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
the consolidated financial statements.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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We have not been provided with sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
because of the lack of detailed analyses provided by
management in relation to its plans and measures for future
actions in its going concern assessment which take into
account the uncertainty of outcome of these plans and
measures and how variability in outcome would affect the
future cash flows of the Group. Any adjustments found to
be required may have consequential significant effects on
the consolidated net assets of the Group as at 31 December
2021 and the consolidated loss and other comprehensive
income or loss and cash flows of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021, and the related elements and
disclosures thereof presented or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (the “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSA") issued by the HKICPA
and to issue an auditors’ report and solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
toward or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. However, because of the matters described in
the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to form an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

The engagement director on audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate number: P05029

Hong Kong, 29 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND ) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rEEnkAMEEBRATRER

Year ended 31 December 2021

S —F+ZA=1+—HBILHFE
2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAET
Revenue A 5 928,785 859,095
Cost of sales THE A (767,708) (715,424)
Gross profit EZYil 161,077 143,671
Other income, gains or losses HMU A~ a1 6 17,384 10,935
Selling and distribution expenses THE R IHFRS (23,719) (19,861)
Administrative expenses TR (108,467) (85,046)
Profit from operation E A 46,275 49,699
Net allowance of expected credit losses FEHEA(E BB H F5A (58,937) 61,000
Other operating expense H&EM= (34,666) (1,574)
Finance costs ELE= PN 8 (101,839) (103,048)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates wanl=) =L/
(B518) & H) (20,963) 1,960
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBABZEE 36 - (356)
(Loss)/profit before taxation ¥ AT (B518) A 7 (170,130) 7,681
Taxation 18 11 (7,160) (2,224)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE (B8 EF (177,290) 5,457
Other comprehensive (expense)/income Efth2mE (FIxz) WA
ltems that may be reclassified HEAJEENDEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmsEE
Release of exchange differences upon  HEMT B A 5 BF# (0]
disposal of subsidiaries FERZERE = (68)
Exchange differences arising on ME BN EFRIGE AT
translation of foreign operations and ~ EL£ZER =8
associates 11,242 41,480
Total comprehensive (expense)fincome FEZ2HE (%)
for the year WA 4B %8 (166,048) 46,869

PEILAREEERZERERAR
2021 R

71



72

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EnkEMEEKRARER

Year ended 31 December 2021

B#E_ZT—F+_A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
B EE FAT FAET
(Loss)/profit attributable to: THIEE (B8 aF]
Owners of the Company KABHEB A (170,916) 14,778
Non-controlling interests FEIERGHE R (6,374) (9,321)
(177,290) 5,457
Total comprehensive (expense)/income  F¥EEEE i)
attributable to: NI
Owners of the Company PN/NETEZZ= DN (160,251) 55,134
Non-controlling interests el g (5,797) (8,265)
(166,048) 46,869
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ik (B8 &BF) 13
— Basic and diluted (in HK cents) —EARREE (B (2.75) 0.24

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ra MBIk RR
31 December 2021
—E-—&+_A=+—H

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M sE FAET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment EN G 14 57,697 63,394
Investment properties KREME 15 454,913 426,959
Right-of-use assets EHREEE 16 667,407 783,552
Rental deposits paid BENHEEEE 18 4,298 3,849
Goodwill EES 19 4,032 36,751
Other intangible assets HinmAEEE 20 = 9,315
Interests in associates N NI 21 284,605 287,194
1,472,952 1,611,014
CURRENT ASSETS WENEE
Inventories 75 22 97,000 66,560
Properties for sale HEME 23 411,934 287,046
Trade receivables FEWE Z IR 24 136,689 107,961
Loan receivables EE = 17 290,171 354,125
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIEBE-EERK
receivables HhpE U F1a 25 443,872 522,852
Pledged deposits [REGEERERN 26 - 18,857
Cash and cash equivalents BEKRIREEEY 26 27,433 26,115
1,407,099 1,383,516
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Trade and bills payables B ZRARENRE 27 140,738 105,668
Other payables and accruals HihEIMIBERESER 28 147,986 84,214
Contract liabilities aHnasE 29 209,222 181,485
Bank and other borrowings BT REMES 30 520,999 393,024
Amounts due to related parties FE 1 RE B 5 TIE 41 14,940 3,678
Tax payable FEGHRIE 8,825 8,936
Lease liabilities HE&E 33 144,853 127,806
Convertible bonds AMRES 32 = 108,222
1,187,563 1,013,033
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 219,536 370,483
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEMRERRBHEE
LIABILITIES 1,692,488 1,981,497
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ra MBI R
31 December 2021
—F_—&+_A=+—8

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt =+ FHET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERENEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEBEE 31 29,380 22,711
Lease liabilities HEaE 33 558,712 688,113
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEMEEE 588,092 710,824
Net assets EEFE 1,104,396 1,270,673
EQUITY Em

Equity attributable to owners of TREEE ANEILHEZE
the Company

Share capital & 7
Reserves B
Non-controlling interests JEEERR
Total equity R 48 %A

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 231
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 29 April 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Jiang Jianjun IEE
Director EE

74 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

34 622,513 622,513
506,167 662,686

1,128,680 1,285,199
(24,284) (14,526)

1,104,396 1,270,673

BNEBNBEZGEEGUHEREAZTFEN_-F
TTHENBT A RMERRETIE  WH
MIEREAKREE

Ke Xionghan 1 i
Director EBE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

o A, 43 3L 424
EEERERR
Year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ T _—H+_A=1+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATRE AE
Share Share Convertible Exchange Non-
Issued premium option bond fluctuation ~ Accumulated controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total equity
kR i
BETRE RiERER BRERE it 1 REGE 2iEE it FERiED [ 4]
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 FEn TR &7 TEn FEn TEn 57 TEn FiEn
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZZE-HF-H 622,513 1,669,298* S S (214,821) (847,653)* 1,229,337 81) 1,229,256
Profit for the year EEER - - - - - 14,778 14,778 (9,321) 5457
Other comprehensive income for the year  EEEMREUWA
Release of exchange reserve upon HEMBAIRREER#E
disposal of subsidiaries - - - - (68) - (68) - (68)
Exchange differences on translation BEENEBREELRELEL
of foreign operations and associate ERER - - - - 40424 - 40424 1,056 41,480
Total comprehensive income for the year EELENALE - - - - 40356 14,478 55,134 (8,265) 46,869
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2 FFEEREEZRE - - - - - - - (4927) (4.927)
Issue of convertible bonds BTRRES £l - - - 78 - - 78 - 728
Released upon disposal of a subsidiary HERBATEER 36 - - - - - - - (1,253) (1,253)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021~ RZEZEE+ZA=+-BR
Z22-5-F-H 622,513 1,669,298* - 728* (174,465)* (832,875)* 1,285,199 (14,526) 1,270,673
Loss for the year EEHE - - - - - (170,916) (170,916) (6,374) (177,290)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ EEEMRERA
Exchange differences on translation BEENEBRBEATELZ
of foreign operations and associate ESEE - - - - 10,665 - 10,665 577 11,242
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ EE2EHXHE - - - - 10,665 (170,916) (160,251) (5,797) (166,048)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests % fi ¥ AERER 2 RS - - - - - - - (3,961) (3.91)
Equity-settled share option arrangements Bt By g 35 - - 3,732 - - - 3,732 - 3732
Transfer to accumulated losses upon AR ES 285
mature convertible bonds BHERHER 3 - - - (128) o 728 = = o
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ-E+ZA=+-H 622,513 1,669,298* 3B = (163,800)* (1,003,063)% 1,128,680 (24,284) 1,104,396
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * ZERERVANGEMBR AR ZE

of HK$506,167,000 (2020: HK$662,686,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

G 1#1%506,167,0008 T (ZE - F :
662,686,00058 7T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\7|' == iﬁ@ 2118 213—%

Year ended 31 December 2021

B#E_ZT—F+_A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B3 FHET TFAET
CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM REEHRFRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before taxation briRAT (B518) & F (170,130) 7,681
Adjustments for: LT A
Finance costs RRE RS 8 101,839 103,048
Share of loss/(profit) of associates DMEBE QT
518 (&) 20,963 (1,960)
Bank interest income RITHI S WA 6 (55) (577)
Interest income FEUWA (2,232) (2,002)
Net allowance for expected credit TIEW E 5 IR D
losses recognised/(reversal) for (Bs) 2 FEHREE
trade receivables SRk PRk 852 (3,628)
Net allowance for expected MEMEWFIEERE 2
credit losses reversal TRHAE B 18
for other receivables BEFEE (41,631) (56,576)
Net allowance for expected MIEWERMER,
credit losses recognised/(reversal) (Bs) 2 FEHREE
for loan receivables B 1EEE R 91,242 (796)
Net allowance for expected credit TEE QB BRIER 2
losses recognised for advances to TEEREE RGBS
associates HRE 8,474 -
Impairment loss on FEREEERERIE
right-of-use assets 16 1,187 -
Impairment loss on goodwill BB 18 19 33,479 -
Impairment loss on intangible assets BB ERERBE = 1,574
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBREZ
18 = 356
Gain on disposal of right-of-use HEEREEE Z WHE
assets (3.401) (207)
Depreciation of property, ME- BB KREZEITE
plant and equipment 14 11,764 13,222
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEINE 140,821 143,113
Amortisation of other intangible Hihim & E# s
assets 20 9,484 10,636
Unrealised fair value gain on KB = REIR
investment properties RaERE 15 (9,866) (4,804)
Realised fair value loss on disposal HEFBERERANE
of financial assets at fair value FIERNEMEEZ
through profit or loss BIRANERE = 122
Share-based payments Mg Z I8 35 3,732 -
196,522 209,202
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_E - —F+-BA=1+—HLFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B = FAET FAET
Increase in properties for sale RFEMEIL (110,323) (68,179)
Increase in inventories FEE (29,330) (14,437)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEURN B ZBRX
gm) R (35,539) 12,300
Decrease in prepayments, FANRIE-FEER
deposits and other receivables HLAth P& Wk TE R 142,950 46,270
(Increase)/decrease in loan receivables  FEUWE R (&H0) & (14,261) 27,134
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FEfT B Z RN
&, Geisb) 83,020 (49,067)
Decrease in bills payable FE(T =R (53,065) (25,238)
Decrease in other payables and accruals E &S FRIE K
FEST & R (24,242) (93,408)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEN 19,690 78,508
Cash generated from operations KEMBIRE 175,422 123,085
Tax paid B1R1E (1,063) (22)
Net cash generated from KEEBTR
operating activities & 338 174,359 123,063
CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/GENERATED & ¥&;E8) (FTH) /Frfs
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERE
Bank interest received BUIRITHIR 55 577
Purchases of property, BEYE BENRE
plant and equipment (5,390) (529)
Purchase of an investment property BEREY = — (2,052)
Net cash inflow from HEWB AR ZRE
disposal of subsidiaries AR EE - 1,137
Proceed from disposal of financial HEFZBRDEBANE
assets at fair value through SR EMEEZ
profit or loss PSR — 33,926
Net cash flows (used in)/generated KREEE (FTA) g
from investing activities REMEFEE (5,335) 33,059
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

|\7|_ = Eﬁﬁlllli‘?—%
Year ended 31 December 2021
HE —F+ZHA=1+—HILFE
2021 2020
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
M sE FAET FET
CASH FLOWS USED IN R EEEFR A
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REReE
New bank and other borrowings MG IRIT REMEER 110,287 100,340
Dividends paid to non-controlling SN FIERETZRE
interests (3,961) (4,927)
Repayment of bank and BERTREMES
other borrowings (98,855) (129,165)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEER (186,874) (173,011)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 2 EX B3R IR{T17R 19,200 103,426
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to  FE{JBEHE 1B
related parties %, GRiZb) 13,160 (2,052)
Deposits pledged to bank W FIRITZER = (73,257)
Interest paid BAFE (13,021) (47,165)
Net cash flows used in financing MEEHFTRERERE
activities FEA (160,064) (225,811)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN RERREEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS @, GrL) #E8 8,960 (69,689)
Cash and cash equivalents FYNRERIREZFEY
at beginning of year 26,115 79,995
Effect of foreign exchange rate SMBEXRESEF R EIREE
changes, net (7,642) 15,809
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHRNREKRIAEEED
AT END OF YEAR 27,433 26,115
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2.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
is a public limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Jiang Jianjun,
Beidahuang (HK) International Trade Co., Limited,
and Ms. Li Zhuoxun are the beneficial owners of the
Company. The registered address of the Company
is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal
place of business is Room 225, 2/F, Mega Cube, 8
Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
45 to the financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatory
effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the
followings amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:
Amendment to  Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
HKFRS 16
Amendments to
HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2

2.1

RE BRI

31 December 2021
—F+Z“H=+—H

REER
FEIEATREXEEEERERRE A
—BEHREHEBEEMHRIZARER
NE ERMIREEHERZFER
NBE LR IRBELRE AR (FH)
HRESERABD MBI L TAK
NENEREB A o A A B 5 it ik
#AP.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands e &
FTESEMMMA AT BNRENEE
TR IE 8RR RIH218225% ©

AABDB/—EREZERAT HNE AR
BN EEZEBEH N M B HRRM 45

FRRAMIERBMBREERN (TF
ARBRE L)) REBMBR
HERAZET A
RAFERFERZEREMBRSE
A ZE5T 2

RAFEE FEBCURNEEYH
BEREREATIEEBESNAE
(TERGsMAE)) RHHNEEYE
WEREM ST RFEITERR -F
T —F-RB—HEZEHRBNFER
ISR £ 2L -

*‘}%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ 2ER
F165% (BFTx)
SR HREE
EL LAy
053998 FB
MRS 2ER
B7H ERUBRS
R FAFR R E B
B SRS 2RI S5 165%
CHEN)

Covid-19%8 R
AeH%

eSS
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

2.1

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatory
effective for the current year (continued)

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision
of the HKFRS Interpretations Committee (the
“Committee”) of HKICPA-issued on June 2021
which clarified the costs an entity should include as
“estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories.

The applications of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments’

Amendments to  Reference to Conceptual Framework?

HKFRS 3

Amendments to  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKFRS 10 an Investor and its Associate
and HKAS 28 or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20214

Amendment to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

HKAS 8
Amendments to  Deferred Tax related to Assets and
HKAS 12 Liabilities Arising from a Single

Transaction’
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Annual Report 2021

2.1

ERAMIEEMBREEL (IF
AMBREEL)) REBRHR
HENZEFT A (B)
RAEAFERFERZEBMBREE
Al Z 572 ()

s ZEEECRAERGSMATE
TEBVGRIERNZEEZES (£
Eg) R —FBEMZER
RE > ZRERETERRNEEFEZ
P IRER RS TSP R A
StA SISt AR AS A o

REAFERBEBUBHBREERZE
SIANAERAFERBEFENR
BRAKRKRER, WZEREHHR
RFTEINBE R E -

EEMERRERZMIEEMBR
SEAUKREBMBHREER ZETE
FEEHKRREEABUTERMER
REMZME]EBMBREENRE
BUBREEIZEFT

BB HRS £ FREEHOR
$175% MR
BB BHRS £ HEESHEIRR
F35% (BAT%) e
BB BHRES £ REEHHHE
FI05EREE REHEGERT
S5 AERISE2858 ZENEERE
CHE:Y; FEA
BB RSB IR REBLIESRD
(3T %) NIEREREE
ZRB5TEZ
ST
CBE2H)!
BB HWES £ 2T —F5RA
F165% (E5TH) =+tBz%&
Covid-1918
A8 %R e
BB ERBEIR SEERZEKE
REBHMBHRS
RERIBHIRE B2
CHEY;
BBGSH RIS  EEEFZER'
CHEY;
BEGFERE125E HE-XXZEEZ
(CHES) BENBREH
ZIEFERRIE'



2.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Onerous Contracts — Costs to fulfilling a
Contract?

Amendments to  Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2018-

HKFRSs 2020?

Accounting Merger Accounting for Common Control
Guideline 5 Combination?
(Revised)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

2.1

e BERRMIEE
31 December 2021
B —H+"RA=+—H
FERAMMIEAMBHREE (IF
ARBREEN)) REBUFHER
HEAZETE (&)
EEMERERERZHETIEBMBER
HEAREBEUBREERZIETEH
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ERGHEANEIR ME-BER
CHES BE—RIERTE

FRAIMFRS
B2
EHRGTED$E3758  BEESH—
(CHEN) BIIEH
pl 22
SRV BREER “E-N\EE
(CHE) TECREF
ERMHER
B FEE R
25551 5555% HEZEHI S H
(#&1&5T) BHE A

' RIE_=F—F—Axz&MAK
BYF AR o

2 RIBEZT"F—B—HRZEHE
MF E R AR -
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HEXE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
certain properties and financial instruments which
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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2.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the assets in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1,
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

that are

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

2.2

RE BRI

31 December 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had defaulted
in repayments of its debts, including: i) default in
repayment of principal amount of secured bonds
of HK$109,000,000 and interests thereon of
approximately HK$32,700,000 (the “Defaulted
Secured Bonds"); ii) default in repayment of principal
amount of unsecured bonds of HK$127,600,000 and
interests thereon of approximately HK$14,982,000
(the "Default Unsecured Bonds"”), of which a holder
claims the aggregate amount of approximately
HK$5,252,000 including interest thereon, has filed
a petition against the Company; and iii) default
in settlement of construction payables which,
including additional penalties thereon, amounted
to approximately HK$101,814,000 (the "Defaulted
Construction Payables”), in respect of which the
Group had received a notice from the contractor of
the event of default and demand for payment. In
addition, the Group had outstanding bank and other
borrowings other than the Defaulted Secured Bonds
and Defaulted Unsecured Bonds of approximately
HK$224,449,000 as at 31 December 2021 which
were due for repayment or renewal in the next
twelve months after 31 December 2021 and incurred
a loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 of
approximately HK$177,290,000.

However, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$27,433,000 as
at 31 December 2021 and the financial resources
available to the Group as at 31 December 2021 may
not be sufficient to repay the Defaulted Secured
Bonds, the Defaulted Unsecured Bonds and the
Defaulted Construction Payables and other liabilities
of the Group. In the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group.
The Directors have adopted the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements and are of the view that the
Group is able to continue as a going concern, after
taking into account the plans and measures being
implemented in order to improve the working capital
and liquidity and cash flow position of the Group, as
follows:
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2.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Going concern basis (continued)

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Existing business

Management is endeavoring to improve the
Group's operating results and cash flows
through various cost control measures and will
focus on the existing business.

Negotiating with creditors’ new terms of other
borrowings

The Group is negotiating with its secured
and unsecured bondholders to extend the
repayment dates for the principal and the
interests amounts of the Defaulted Secured
Bond and the Defaulted Unsecured Bonds. In
the opinion of the Directors, the majority of the
holders of the Default Secured Bond and the
Default Unsecured Bond will not proceed with
legal actions against the Group and instead
will agree upon new repayment terms to be
agreed between the Group and the secured
bondholder and the unsecured bondholders.

Disposal of non-financial assets or properties
for sale

The Group may consider to dispose non-
financial assets and properties if required.

Financial support

A substantial shareholder of the Company
has agreed to continuously provide financial
support for the continuing operations of the
Group so as to enable it to meet its liabilities
when they fall due and carry on its business
without a significant curtailment of operations
in the twelve months from the date of approval
of consolidated financial statement.

New funding

The Company is negotiating with investors for
obtaining further financing when necessary
including but not limited to equity financing,
bank borrowing and issuance of new
convertible bonds to improve the liquidity of
the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, in light of the various
measures or arrangements being implemented during
and after the end of the reporting period together
with the expected results of the other measures,
the Group will have sufficient working capital for its
current requirements and it is reasonable to expect
the Group to remain a commercially viable concern.
Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

However, the validity of the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements on going concern
basis depends on the successful eventual outcome of
the above mentioned plans and measures, which are
inherently uncertain and as at the date of approval
of the consolidated financial statements cannot be
ascertained with reasonable certainty and are still
subject to multiple uncertainties. Should the Group
be unable to continue to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down
the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any future liabilities which might arise
and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021

2.2

mREE (8)

FEEERE (B

EEZRR ENREHARKRBRSHER
BERS RN L EREMENR
WEMER AEEREA T ESESR
EmEHER 2R BAERRARE
EAEEUT EEENm 2 BELE-
FHit - EFEMREEBEEEERRR
GUBHRRDBEE -

AT BEFBEEERRRIGEEGHU TR
RZBMEBURS L5t 8 B~
RERETE M MZEREFFHE
THEEM BRMEGREMBRERER
BEUGEBEEARTURE IR%
BARHEERRRIR o 6 A E B AR SEM A
RESBEEEE JREFHARBLUFE
EEBEMREEIRCIEER TRk
HIRZEFIRREBEEHR R UKk
FERBEERBRDNNEINRABE
ERBE ZERBZEEBLRNIGE
MAFBIART R BR



2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group's voting rights in an investee are sufficient
to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent ownership interests entitling their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group's and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)
Business combinations (continued)
Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in October
2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangement of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which (a)
the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after reassessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income,
as appropriate. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be
accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had disposed directly of the previously
held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted retrospectively during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Gooawill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or group of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash-generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating
unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of cash-
generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of
the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the
group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of associates is described below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is or the
portion so classified is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5. Any retained portion of an investment
in an associate that has not been classified as held for
sale continues to be accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests, that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after re-assessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in Associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the
relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in Associates (continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related
to the Group.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

2.3

RE BRI

31 December 2021
—F+Z“H=+—H

FEGHEREE (8

=

FEMBEERE
HEHREMRETR AEERTER
BEETSFRENG AEhsZE
ERNP O EE - RIFEEEENIRS
/)ILEZ_Hbﬁ_Lﬁ/\\/\ﬂﬂﬁéjz%IEﬁé
FREENRERE BN T aIE
WEEREEFMBNRSELBNUE
E) > BRBENFOWEREREE
ReEHBUNEREERARRE
A E AP RER S E St E IR E R
BERE-

HEGREEETEENRESESN
H AR el 386 T LUFESD ST e B8
BT UBRRANTINRG TR R
RBVFEMERIRE > MR R IR
ERMISHERFEENFGRZE
BENFARRE - REBERHIRAE
ER@mARTEREEENENH
8RR o

PEILAREEERZERERAR
2021 R

97



98

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA
7177 O |

31 Dec

= _

2.3

R 75 ¥R R P 51

ember 2021

—F+"A=+—H
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets with
finite useful lives and contract costs to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

2.3

e BEmRMEE
31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

FEGSHBRBE (@

FERMBEERE (&)

i AEBFGEERESERRBTA
BIEEMSELTFBE - HEFEEEAZF
PR BREEGER—HNZOEREE
R AR EENFADEEEFFEEZED
B RUATDEERDEEEEES
BR—HZOEEEZ&R/NERRE
EHEAL

R Bk 75
ER—FNBUTER RSN ER
AR 7S

@ ZAREANNEREZRKENK
B

()  ERHHEEEGSER

s w5

=

(i HEEBRTHEE
758

(i) REEENHFRFNE
EEEASRHEF—R

=

=,
=

() BARTIEAEHEERNE

”:

() =EREFEEDERE
FHIRLE ;

iy —MEERERF—BRE &
S—ERNEGAT B
RENERWERE) /Y

MEATHEGERE,

PELAGELERZERERAR
2021 &£3§

E9



100

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B mRMEE

31 December 2021

—B_—#+-A=t+—H

2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(ii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms or 33%

10%-25%

10%

Leasehold improvements,
furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Infrastructure and building

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings,
plant and machinery and other fixed assets under
construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing cost on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Trademarks

Trademarks with definite useful lives are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
30 years.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(continued)

Contracts

Contracts are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over 5
years.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is a contract contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising
from business combinations on or after the date
of initial application, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not
to separate non-lease components from lease
component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of properties that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight— line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the

Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an

index or rate, initially measured using the index
or rate at the commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options, if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the
options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,

if the lease term reflects the exercise of an
option to terminate the lease.
After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review/expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the commencement date
at amounts equal to the Group’s net investment in
the leases, measured using the interest rate implicit
in the respective lease. Initial direct costs (other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors)
are included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to
allocate the consideration under the contract to each
component. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sublease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction
of rentals.

(i) Operating leases
The Group accounts for a modification to
an operating lease as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.

2.3

RE BRI

31 December 2021
—F+Z“H=+—H

FEGHEREE (8

=

g (&)
I%@ﬁ%ﬁﬁAC%
fREHERE
BRI REERESREHIRESEY
B EERFIMARMDBEANE
StE MY T HIBRH AN EFLZH
BWRAEEREAZRIMAE MR

begit)

EAEERTNALEA AEEERE
B DEHOARSMBBILGH D
ﬁﬁﬂ%iﬁﬁ%?i%@%%éé

DEAMEFEERE > MIFREHRE
BE-

HEET
WIFRFERRMFH—BONEES
ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ@W%EE%ﬂAE’EE

RARRNEHESIRHNEEEE

() SR TR 1=
AEERKEHEEIBES]
THHBEFEA—EMEEA
R EZRIEBMARMEEZREME
NHEAEEMNRIERWHEE

B D THEMRIE

PEILAREEERZERERAR
2021 R

109



110

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
1 o =

31 Dec

2.3

R 75 ¥R R P 51

ember 2021

—F+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivable arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVTPL") are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets at
amortised cost

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in OCI if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets at
amortised cost (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, loan receivables,
deposit and other receivables, advances to associates,
pledged bank deposit and cash and cash equivalents).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting period as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting period with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
trade receivable, loan receivables, advances to
associates and deposit and other receivables)
are each assessed as a separate group. Loans
to related parties are assessed for ECL on an
individual basis);

° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, convertible bonds,
amounts due to related parties,
and bank and other borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

lease liabilities

2.3

RE BRI

31 December 2021
—F+Z“H=+—H

FEGHEREE (8

=

ERT A @
THEERRKATA (B)
BEMEX
BERMZEZAFETHEBBEZEEN
AERRERBBZEN WA R E
MEZ 2 HE - BRAREZRNEMEE
REMBEZERFERN (NEHE) &
FEHRR RS R BRI R AR
TIREMR (BIEBRERFEZER
HoZzBENREWERMMRIE R
SRAREMBENITE EREFEE
ZEE=o

N ERXRERENRERERESD -

TRAaE
FMIETHMEBEHREERBERA=HE
g i DN =

RBIHA AR B R

TREE (BREENEZRARENE
B Bt RIER BT B A PR

F%Jﬁﬁ%%ﬁ#@ HE&ERIR
TREMES) ERERAERMNRER
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁzo

PEILAREEERZERERAR
2021 R

119



120

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B MBS IR R M EE

31 December 2021

wik ([

= _

2.3

—F+"A=+—H
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in the profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined
on the weighted average method. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make sale.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2021
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 23 FECHHEEE (8)

POLICIES (continued)

Properties for sale SEYE

Properties for sale are classified as current assets. HFEYEREARTHEE RIEEEHR
Except for the leasehold land element which is HEEZEtREFEENAENAE S
measured at cost model in accordance with the HE L= FEY =R AR A
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties EIR R (E T BEE TR o p 1% B BE
for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net- RIEERET  BE DR EYS 2 18R
realisable value. Cost is determined on a specific EELTKE WER) BB 6EH -
identification basis including allocation of the related NI EEIEYEZGAEBREG
development expenditure incurred and where ST AR R ETINERENRZ o
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalized. Net realisable THEMRMEN ~BIEHETEEEN
value represents the estimated selling price for the Mt EMARAERETHEBRES
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs BIEIL SR o

necessary to make the sales. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of MEsREeREaxRmMa BerESE
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash BEBYHIEFERS  EFHERAESER
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly BUYZEPRE OBEEERABDHH
liquid investments that are readily convertible into By mMEGBESEFRKRE BB
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant AECIEHARSE —SmM=A8=1E8
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity N) ZESREINBRILERNMNEZIRT
of generally within three months when acquired, BYUTERAEBRSEE Z —4/
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand TRI%) o

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of MEETBERRIERM=s  RERIREE
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise BEYTIERAZREIBI B 2 FE&IETT
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, He GETEEDo-

which are not restricted as to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Provisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from '(loss)/profit
before taxation’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sales, except for freehold land, which
is always presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognizes the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of
the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income, gains or
losses”.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied,
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

i.e. when

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct
or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)
Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9.
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

In contrast, a receivable

A contract liability represents the group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer. A contract
asset and a contract liability relating to same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligation, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a promised
good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-
alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.

Revenue from the sale of wine and liquor, trading of
food products and mineral products are recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the products.

Rental income from properties leasing under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to employees (continued)

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the
end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
option reserve. For share options that vest immediately
at the date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Share options granted to non-employees
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the
fair value of the goods or services received, except
where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in
which case they are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, measured at the date the
entity obtains the goods or the counterpart renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services
received are recognised as expenses unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Shore term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in
the liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. For
properties under development for which revenue is
recognised over time, the Group ceases to capitalize
borrowing costs as soon as the properties are ready for
the Group's intended sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies
In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise except for exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to
occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statement, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of exchange reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

2.3

z‘-‘t = D"‘ﬁfﬁ*ﬂg# (nﬁ)

shoe

PRRE I EEEE Y ERE
N BB A E IS 2 E S (5 )
ETZRAERFEAZEXRE
ABR e RIS RIS LM BHE 2
BEEEE 2 ERER A LN

BRAREIRZIFEREBRET
AAEBEERAZEXRENNE > MUIMNE
ZEEMASEZIFERIERERTE
GiigiaY

HEREREERENMEEKIES
FREEZERERNEEHEEED
WEESD > IR R SRS — TR B SN EFS
WEKEEHEREZRMS  HRAEE
BEIAKRAEGEE (ALAEMEE
BREFEN—8D) AZERIE
REMEER@EES TIREEEEN
BRERmEMORERm-

MEBIGREMBREMS > NEEBEIH
EENEERBEBEUSRSARNE
AIERME A REBNE5 G B1E
70) WX ITEERBATHERRE
i HA P9 BE R R MR B RIERAB A2 57 B
HAMEX -PrELNERZLE WH) X
HMEmmmEss  WERHEE OF
EREDEG a8 BTG ER
5t e



2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributable to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or
loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed through
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gain or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit of loss for
the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalized as part of the
carrying amount of the investment properties under
construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2.3, management
is required to make judgments,
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

estimates and

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Estimation of expected credit losses of trade
receivables, advances to associates, loan and other
receivables

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement at amortised cost in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in note 43.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Provision for inventories

Provision for inventories is made based on the
assessment of net realisable value. Estimates of net
realisable value are based on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimates, such differences will have an
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the
amount of provision/reversal of provision in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed.

Estimated net realisable value on properties for sale

In determining whether allowances should be made
for the Group's properties for sale, the Group takes
into consideration the current market environment
and the estimated net realisable value (i.e. the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale).
An allowance is made if the estimated or actual
net realisable value of the properties for sale is
less than expected as a result of change in market
condition and/or significant variation in the budgeted
development cost, material provision for impairment
losses may result. As at 31 December 2021, the
carrying amount of the properties under development
is HK$411,934,000 (2020: HK$287,046,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have determined that
all of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2021 amounting to HK$454,913,000
(2020: HK$426,959,000) situated in the PRC are
held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. The presumption that the
carrying amounts of certain of the Group's investment
properties situated in the PRC are recovered entirely
through sale has been rebutted and the deferred
tax on the changes in fair value of these investment
properties is recognised according to the relevant tax
rules.

Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment

Right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. In determining whether an
asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.
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3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
amounted to HK$667,407,000 and HK$57,697,000
(2020: HK$783,552,000 and HK$63,394,000),
respectively. No impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment, during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2021. There are impairment losses on right-
of-use assets of approximately HK$1,187,000 (2020:
HKS$nil) during the year ended 31 December 2021.
Details of the right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment are disclosed in notes 16 and 14
respectively.

Impairment of other intangible assets and goodwill

The Group determines whether other intangible assets
and goodwill are impaired at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill
is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of other intangible assets and
goodwill at 31 December 2021 was HKS$nil and
HK$4,032,000 respectively (2020: HK$9,315,000 and
HK$36,751,000 respectively). Impairment losses on
goodwill are approximately HK$33,479,000 (2020:
HK$nil) during the year ended 31 December 2021. No
impairment losses on other intangible assets during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021. Further
details are disclosed in notes 20 and 19 respectively.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker (the “CODM")
has been identified as the executive directors of the
Company. The CODM reviews the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has six reportable operating segments as
follows:

(@) the wine and liquor segment is engaged in the
sale and distribution of wine and liquor;

(b)  the trading of food products segment is
engaged in wholesaling and retailing of staple
food, cooking oil, alcohol and beverage, frozen
and fresh food, commodity hog;

(c) the construction and development segment is
engaged in construction and land development;

(d)  the rental segment is engaged in the leasing
of logistic facilities in Hong Kong and office
facilities in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC");

(e) the financial leasing segment is engaged in the
provision of financial leasing services; and

(f) the mineral products segment is engaged in the
flotation selection of non-ferrous metals mines
and sales of mineral products.

The CODM monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment results.
Segment results are measured consistently with the
Group’s (loss)/profit before taxation except that
interest income, finance costs as well as head office
and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude pledged deposits, cash and
cash equivalents and other unallocated head office
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank and other borrowings,
amounts due to related parties and other unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.

4.

RE BRI
31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H
KESEER (8
MEEMS  ZEEHREE &R
MEREBEASE MARSEED
BT TRE7RIE -

@ HAESE NFRHEKRDER

8,

) BER@OB RFERERTE
TR BAM BB R
RERGE R m B

(0 EBRAAEQE LFERRE
wFEE

d MHEEXE REREBHEDR
R R PEARLME (TH
Bl AEW QR

() MEMENE NFRMHEMEME
BER% &

H WESEBR RKEECZBEZT
BERIEEHE -

TEEERREBUERFERRK
EnfEzFEE WMFHARERD KK
RIFFTEZRR - DERFHIRFEATR
SNREETE - DREBTEELUE
ERZFRE (BR) af B AEE
HER B UL~ BRE Rl s UK A8 B e 1 25
R B ENZE

DEEEFECERAER HEKRR
TFEVMREMKRDEBEREXE
EDHRZFEENENAEEE
o

DEEBEFEERTREMMES BN
B Bk 5 AR R At R D BCAB BF Ae b 3%
BE HHERZFEEUERNREEE
o

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
2021 F R

137



138

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AL =
eI RRMIEE
31 December 2021
TR -H+TA=t—H
4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. ﬁg@%ﬁ}@ﬁ*ﬁl (,%%)
Trading  Construction
Wine and of food and Financial Mineral
liquor products  development Rental leasing products Unallocated Total
ERR
BE EEAR [k i HERE RE FAR @3t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TAn T TAr T TiEn T TiEn T
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z--F+R=1+-H
lz:3:
Segment revenue: AEBA
Sales to external customers HEFHRBR - 399,541 - 271,664 2473 237,107 - 928,785
Revenue from contracts with customers ZE&HKA
Timing of revenue recognition WARERBS S
Ata point in time Bg - 399,541 - - - 27,107 - 636,648
Revenue from other sources BRI = - - 271,664 20473 - - 292,137
Other gains or (losses) Aftliae (B8 - 7,468 - 9,180 27 - - 16,675
Other operating income/(expenses) EtEEBA/ B2 - (3,592) (49) (34,524) (91,899) 4,660 - (125,404)
- 403,417 (49) 246,320 (71,399) 241,767 - 820,056
Segment results NERE (26) 5,550 (22,125) 12,429 (13,703) 22,882 - (54,993)
Reconciliation: E
Bank interest income RATRSMA 55
Unallocated other operating income or loss B E AT 21 A 21 6548 654
Corporate and other unallocated expenses £ REMFHRFL (14,007)
Finance costs EEGES (101,839)
Loss before taxation RRASE (170,130)
Taxation 2] (7,160)
Loss for the year FEFR (177,29)
Segment assets NEBE 4,099 650,364 502,217 1,060,798 307,939 368,013 - 2,893,430
Reconciliation: i
Elimination of intersegment receivables S35 ERIELFIE (887,410)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ EREMFHEEE 874,031
Total assets BELE 2,880,051
Segment liabilities NEAR 3679 612,892 266,575 783,370 179,328 145,735 - 1,991,579
Reconciliztion: e
Elimination of intersegment payables HENERENTE (887,410)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilies ~ S EREMKHEERE 671,486
Total liabilties BERE 1,775,655
Other segment information HnpEEH
Share of loss of associates NMEBRERTEL - - - - - - (20,963) (20,963)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEAEER - - - (33,479) - - - (33,479)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FRELSERERR - - - (1,187) - - - (1,187)
Depreciation and amortisation TERES (26) (3,069) (69) (155,276) (@21) (3,077) (131) (162,069)
Interests in associates REEAFZ#R - - - - - - 284,605 284,605
Capital expenditure* BRER = - - 5,000 % 300 - 5,390
Fair value gain on investment properties  RENE 2 ARERE - - - 9,866 - - - 9,866

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021
B F+ZHA=1—H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. ﬁg@%ﬁ;ﬁﬁ*ﬁl (,i,'g%)
Trading Construction
Wine and of food and Financial Mineral
liquor products development Rental leasing products Unallocated Total
) _ &R N )
it G g g RERE BE KA @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
TEn Thn -7 Thn Thn Thn Thn TEn
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z-ZETCR=1-H
lz:3:
Segment revenue: AEBA
Sales to external customers HEFHARBR 645 43223 - 256,876 13,841 155,510 - 859,095
Revenue from contracts with customers ZE&HKA
Timing of revenue recognition WSS
Ata point in time e 645 4323 - - - 155,510 - 588,378
Revenue from other sources EMRRIA - - - 256,876 13,841 - - 20,717
Other gains or (lsses) Hftliae (B8 - 1,651 - 4302 2,057 545 - 8,555
Other operating incomel(expenses) EtEEBA/ B2 - (994) 12 (25) 69,219 (8,566) - 59,646
645 432,880 12 261,153 85,117 147,489 - 927,296
Segment results NERE (487) 3,851 12 12613 74,154 27,049 - 117,192
Recondillation: e
Bank interest income FATRIBMA 577
Unallocated other operating income or loss  RAREMATE N A S 8518 3763
Corporate and other unallocated expenses R EREMFHEEZ (10,447)
Finance costs EEDES (103,048)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBATZER (3%)
Profit before taxation FAATER 7,681
Taxation e 2.224)
Profit for the year FERF 5,457
Segment assets NEBE 99,498 401,154 342,106 1,207,050 356,019 308,325 - 2,714,152
Reconcillation: o/
Elimination of intersegment receivables 535 EREMEIE (%1,426)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ REREMKHTEE 1,241,804
Total assets BELE 2,994,530
Segment liabilities NHEAf 36432 323,351 116,387 921,935 113,036 80,280 - 1,591,421
Recondillation: o
Elimination of intersegment payables HYHBRENTE (961,426)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilies S E£REMKHEERE 1,093,862
Total liabilties BELE 1723857
Other segment information At EER
Share of profit of associates NMEBERTER - - - - - - 1960 1,960
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBATZEE - - - - - - (356) (35)
Net allowance for expected credit HENBSENEEL
[osses reversal on BHCEFRERIE
trade receivables - - - 172 - 3,456 - 3,628
Net allowance for expected credit SEMBNTERE 2
losses reversal on BHCEBRERSE
other receivables - (994) 12 (197) 67,450 (12,022) 2327 56,576
Net allowance for expected credit HEUER W) /BEZ
losses (recognised)/reversal on BHCEFRERIE
loan receivables - - - - 1,769 - (973) 796
Impairment loss on intangible assets BNEERERR - - - - - - (1,574) (1,574)
Depreciation and amortisation MERBH (1,768) (531) (64) (160,761) (364) (2,866) (617) (166,971)
Interests in associates REENE 28 - - - - - - 287,19 287,194
Capital expenditure* Ly - - - 4 2,085 49 S 2,581
Fair value loss on disposal of HERBERRANESIRZ
financial assets at fair value SREEZANESE
through profit or loss - - - - - - (122) (122)
Fair value gain on investment properties  RENEZ ARERE - - - 4,804 - - - 4,804
bl Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, * BABEYTOEREYE HKRERSD

plant and equipment and investment properties.

BRIREYE-

FEIERGEEERZERERAT 139
2021 E3R



140

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
1 o =

31 Dec

4,

BTSRRI EE
ember 2021
—F+-A=1+—~
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4., RBESEEE (@)
Geographical information & &
Over 90% of the Group's customers are located in INEE0% L 7 B AR Py
Mainland China and revenue of the Group is mainly REFBWATERGPRARMZKE
derived from operations in Mainland China. The - BEERARMEINEE K
management considers that it is impracticable to AR EEEETLARA[{To
allocate the assets, revenue and segment results to
geographical locations.
Information about a major customer TEZEZER
Revenue from customer related to trading of food UTFAREEEELEAER K ABE
products segment of the corresponding years 1N%EEEEmYEEEERa 2K
contributing over 10% of the Group's revenue are as N
follows:
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THET
Customer A ERA 110,690 203,277
Customer B %FB 89,517  N/A RiEMA
REVENUE 5. WA

The Group’s revenue generated from wine and
liquor, trading of food products and mineral products
business segments are revenue from contracts with
customers under HKFRS 15. Except for rental and
finance leasing, all contracts are for period of one
year or less, as permitted by practical expedient under
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

REVENUE (continued) 5. WA (48)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with ZERESHWARS
customers
An analysis of revenue by types of goods and services BE R EREEN S WAL T :
as follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Revenue from contracts with BEREBHRKA
customers
Sale of wine and liquor HE R - 645
Trading of food products BEEB® 399,541 432,223
Sale of mineral products HERE S 237,107 155,510
Total revenue recognised at 7R BRE ] BE FE S8 2 4B IR A
a point in time 636,648 588,378
Revenue from other sources HhzRIREWA
Rental HE 271,664 256,876
Financial leasing MEHEE 20,473 13,841
928,785 859,095
Time of revenue recognition ST e 520 B P
At a point in time NS 636,648 588,378
Over time BiE B R - -
636,648 588,378
Revenue from geographic market: TS Z WA -
The PRC as 868,486 798,287
Hong Kong 5E 60,299 60,808
928,785 859,095
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4= A
1 o =

31 Dec

6.

R 75 ¥R R P 51

ember 2021
—F+_"_FB=+—H
OTHER INCOME, GAINS OR LOSSES

An analysis of other income, gains or losses is as

follows:

6. HthA - lasii5i8
HAW A WSR2 2T

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Interest income A E WA 2,232 2,002

Bank interest income RITHI S WA 55 577

Government grants (Note) BB (B 5E) 280 1,007

Fair value gain on investment KEMEZ R BEWREE

properties 9,866 4,804

Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFHESE E 2 W 3,401 207
Loss on disposal of financial assets at ~ HEFBIERIG A AEFERZ

fair value through profit or loss ETHEEZEE - (122)

Gain on disposal of an associate HEMS A 2 W 123 -

Others Hh 1,427 2,460

17,384 10,935

Note:

Government grants were mainly granted to the Group as
subsidies to support the operation of the PRC subsidiaries.
There are no special conditions or contingencies that are

MI5E -

needed to be fulfilled and they were non-recurring in nature.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI RM T

31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7. BRMAI (B518) aEF
The Group's (loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at AEBZRRA (BB &5H &IiN%
after charging (crediting): (Bt A) FAIRIBEBTES
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Cost of inventories recognised BRARSZZEFERA
as an expenses 453,411 456,715
Depreciation of property, ME- -BERKRBITE
plant and equipment 11,764 13,222
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERESEIRE 140,821 143,113
Amortisation of other intangible assets ELfth 5 712 & EE # 84 9,484 10,636
Expenses related to short term lease ~ BGHAHERREEEE
and low value assets BRNMEX 4,174 5,027
Gross rental income G N L (271,664) (256,876)
Less: Direct operating expenses that 78 : ERELEEEWRAZ
generated rental EEKERX
income during the year 167,548 166,593
(104,116) (90,283)
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEmEN & 1,400 1,250
Employee benefit expenses EERTHX
(including directors’ emoluments): (BiEESM®) -
Wages and salaries TERHE 10,131 9,268
Equity-settled share-based payments #4558 MRS (I FIE 3,732 -
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFH B 796 467
Other expenses: Hhpasz -
Loss on disposal of financial assets HEBBERERANEIERZ
at fair value through profit or loss ETRMEEZEE - 122
Impairment loss on goodwill* BB Bk 1E 33,479 -
Impairment loss on intangible assets* 2 & E R ERE* - 1,574
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets* 1 I E &R E A 8* 1,187 -
* Items included in other operating expenses * BEEAHEMKERS

PEILAREEERZERERAR
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An e B HRR MR

31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

8.  FINANCE COSTS =%

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Interest expenses on bank and RITREMEEZFEMAX

other borrowings

— wholly repayable within five years — AR AFERTHER 34,924 47,165
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HMEaBZMEMZ 50,705 53,272

Effective interest expenses on AR ES 2 BRMEMZ
convertible bonds 16,210 2,611
101,839 103,048

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Details of the director’s remuneration of the Company
for the year, disclosed pursuant to Listing Rules and
Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

EF N
FREATDEEHFHWNFS REL
MRA K& B QBRG] E3831F M E W
™

are as follows:

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Fees wE 781 570
Other emoluments: HhENE -
Salaries, allowances and e R2UHREYHGE
benefits in kind 354 442
Equity-settled share-based i E UMD Z(RIE
payments 381 -
Pension scheme contributions RBRIRBETEIMER 35 35
770 477
1,551 1,047

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

9.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EEHM (@
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances  share-based Pension
and benefits payments scheme Total
Fees in kind (note)  contributions remuneration
BEVERR RRZEEURK B
ik BWRE ZAE () sHEIfHR iz
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[ FTERr FTER FEr FTERr TET
2021 —E--F
Executive directors HTEZ
Mr. Chen Chen BRELE (ii) 9% - - - 9%
Mr. Jiang Jianjun (Chairman) TRERE FE) ) = - - - -
Mr. Li Jiehong FHEBERE (vil) 150 - 33 - 183
Mr. KE Xionghan T L E - 354 150 35 539
Mr. Zeng Jixiang SHELE (iv) 100 = 33 = 133
Mr. Yu Zicong RFREE (iv) 100 - 33 - 133
444 354 249 35 1,082
Non-executive directors FRITES
Ms. Ho Wing Yan MLt 100 - 33 - 133
Mr. Zhao Wanjiang HELLE (i) - - - - -
Mr. Li Dawei FTRELE (i) = = = = =
100 - 33 - 133
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRELE 150 - 33 - 183
Mr. Yang Yunguang BEXEE 50 - 33 - 83
Mr. Liu Tao WERE (v) 6 - - = 6
Mr. Chen Zhifeng BRE#ELE (iii 31 - 33 - 64
237 - 99 - 336
781 354 381 35 1,551

PEILATREEERMZERBMBRAT 145
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An e B HRR MR

31 December 2021

—B_—#+-A=t+—H

9.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EEIHH (@)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e RER BikE
ik BRI SEIHR Hh4azE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mk TAET FTAET FAET TART
2020 —EZEE
Executive directors HIES
Mr. Li Jiehong (Chairman) FHRBEE (FR) 150 - - 150
Mr. KE Xionghan i #TE - 442 35 477
Mr. Zeng Jixiang BEHELE (iv) 32 - - 32
Mr. Yu Zicong RTELE (iv) 32 - - 32
214 442 35 691
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Ho Wing Yan ML L 100 - - 100
100 - - 100
Independent non-executive directors B IEHTES
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRERE 150 - - 150
Mr. Yang Yunguang BEAEE 50 - - 50
Mr. Ho Man Fai Ep 4T (vi) 24 - - 24
Mr. Liu Tao 2ELS (v) 32 - - 32
256 - - 256
570 442 35 1,047
Note: These represent the estimated fair value of ek ZEDERBEEARABR_ZE—+F

share options granted to the directors under the
Company's share option scheme adopted on 23 May
2017. The value of these share options is measured

according to the Group’s accounting policies for
share-based payment transactions as set out in note
2.3. The details of these benefits in kind, including
the principal terms and number of options granted,
are disclosed under the paragraph share option
schemes in the report of the directors and note 35.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company, its chief executive officer
and senior management of the highest paid individuals
as a discretionary bonus or an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 December 2020 and

2021.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
None of the directors of the Company and chief

executive officer of the Company agreed to receive
or waive any emoluments in the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2021.

No share option was held by directors as at 31
December 2020.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Appointed on 28 January 2022.

Appointed on 27 September 2021.

Appointed on 17 May 2021.

Appointed on 4 September 2020 and resigned on 28
January 2022.

Appointed on 4 September 2020 and retired on 22
January 2021.

Resigned on 22 June 2020.

Resigned on 28 January 2022.

RE BRI

31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

ERH (B
BE_Z_ZERTT_—F+"A8
=+—HLEFE ZRADEERHETH
BETEFNEEINBAREAME -

R TECRFF+_RB=+—H BRI
BRAERBRE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

BB+ N\BEZ
fEe

A TE_—FNB-+tHEZE
ffe

RIE-_—FHR8+tHESE-

RIBETZFABMNBAEZERR
B HF—RAT+/\HEHE-

ﬁfiv_vfﬁhﬁ@lﬂ?ﬁgé&&ﬁ“
2 —F—-A°+"HRE-

RIZEZZEFEBEZ+ZHE T

RIE__F—HB "+ /\H#&H T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B mRMEE

31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

10.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. RELAEBEESHES
The five highest paid employees during the year fﬁﬁq L2 EESHFEERF—% (CE
include one (2020: one) director, details of whose THE D —) BB HFMEIEEE
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of §|J)§/\J:x[§ﬁ£9 REREERX  HERIU4L
the remuneration for the year of the remaining four (CE-EF N B ES (LIE
(2020: four), highest paid employees who are not a KRANTBIEE) ZHMESWT :

director of the Company, are as follows:

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Salaries, allowances and e RN KREYR TS
benefits in kind 1,398 1,487
Equity-settled share option expense RHEEBEBRERS 93 -
Pension scheme contributions BRIRE SRR 67 45
1,558 1,532
The number of non-director and highest paid FMN T ISRz EEFHIFESE
employees whose remuneration fell within the B¥ENT
following bands is as follows:
2021 2020
Nil to HK$1,000,000 251,000,000 71 4 4

148 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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ma B HRRMEE
31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

TAXATION 11. #RIAE
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax RIEPHECERERERDPEFRER
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax SEEFAMED DR B AR MEEERN
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. 19 525% o
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong RIEFEF BRI MRS F SR
Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of B> 5B REBESEEE2,000,000E T
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, B F 328 .25 % B FR R HR » TEBid
and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 2,000,000 TTHY & F) BI34216.5%BY 1R
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for I o RIS F 1B MRS By &
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continued B SN HEN B EIR16.5%M2—
to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the MM -EHIL SEREEEENE
Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity 2,000,000 T H st FEE M B L iBiA
is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2,000,000 of 2,000,000 T ERR EFI TS
the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the B128.25% K 16.5% MM B EHHFH)
estimated assessable profits above HK$2,000,000. B o
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET TATT
Current tax: RIEARR IR
- Hong Kong —&58 790 763
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HRE{EZPRIER 5 6,049
795 6,812
Deferred tax (note 31) ESERIR (FYEE31) 6,365 (4,588)
Total tax expense for the year FERIBRAZALEE 7,160 2,224

PELAGELERZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B MBS IR R M EE

31 December 2021

wik ([

= _

11.

12.

—F+Z"HA=+—H
TAXATION (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to (loss)/

profit before taxation at the statutory rate for Hong
Kong in which the Company and its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate,
and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the
statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as
follows:

11.

| (8

RAEE RaRENB A
) EEMEBARKRRA (B8 &
AR IERSBRERREFENR
BRZHR URBERRE BAER
X) HERREHEROT

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
(Loss)/profit before taxation FRIRAT (B538) & F (170,130) 7,681
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEREENRIE (28,071) 1,268
Effect of different tax rates of MB AR RERENZE
subsidiaries (10,603) 3,772
Income not taxable for tax BIEFRUA (9,481) (11,591)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary  RIEDERFIEEB L RBETE
difference 7,870 (5,594)
Utilization of tax losses previously not BB 4cRl R FESE 2 IR TE A8
recognised 35,334 5,767
Expenses not deductible for tax AR EEX 17,352 8,112
(Loss)/profit attributable to associates = A T FE(L (B548) %A (5.241) 490
Tax expense at the Group's BAREEERREFEN
effective rate MIBRIS 7,160 2,224

The share of tax credit attributable to an associate
amounting to HK$5,241,000 (2020: tax expense of
HK$490,000) is included in “Share of (loss)/profit of
associates”
loss and other comprehensive income.

in the consolidated statement of profit or

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
Nil).

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings
per share attributable to owners of the Company is

based in the following data:

13. Sk (FR) &EF

EABDEREANBLEZEREAREE
(B8) /BAHRETIBEE

(Loss)/profit (E548) i@ #
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Loss)/profit for the purpose of BARstEERER (518
basic (loss)/earnings per share Bz (B8 &mH (170,916) 14,778
Effects of dilutive potential ordinary BUEREEBERTE .
shares:
Effective interest expenses on R ES 2 BEFE
convertible bonds, sz > MNERIRIE
net of tax - 2,534
(Loss)/profit for the purpose of BRstESkEs (BB
diluted (loss)/earnings per share Bz (18 &F) (170,916) 17,312

PEERREXREMERBRAR
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An e B HRR MR

31 December 2021

2 —H+"HA=+—H
13.  (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13. &g (B8 &BF (&)
Number of Shares gk 4=
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Weighted average number of BREESRER BB
ordinary shares for basic Bz EREEMETIEH
(loss)/earnings per share 6,225,126 6,225,126
Effects of dilutive potential ordinary BUEREEBERTE:
shares:
Convertible bonds AR ES - 1,111,000
Weighted average number of ordinary AR stEEREE (58
shares for the purpose of diluted Bz ZEEMETEE
(loss)/earnings per share 6,225,126 7,336,126

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2020 was calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and the profits for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was adjusted to reflect
the effective interest expense on convertible bonds
less deferred tax effect, if any. The basic and diluted
loss per share are the same for the year ended 31
December 2021 as the effect of the Company'’s share
options were anti-dilutive.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. YE - -REREE
Leasehold
improvement,
furniture Infrastructure
and Motor Construction and
fixtures Vehicle in progress building Total
g
NERE BRR
RERRE HE TEIR kigF &3
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TR TR TEL
Cost RE
As at 1 January 2020 RZZ2Z%F-F-H 116,380 4,077 21,280 36,436 178,173
Additions AE 529 - - - 529
Exchange realignment ERRE 1,200 88 1733 917 3938

As at 31 December 2020 and  WZE-FE+-A=+-Ak

1 January 2021 ZE¥Z-E-F-H 118,109 4,165 23,013 37,353 182,640
Additions HE 5390 - - - 5390
Exchange realignment EQHAE 4,950 64 962 1,562 7,538
As at 31 December 2021 RIEZ-F+ZF=1-H 128,449 4229 23975 38,915 195,568

Accumulated depreciation  EHTER{E
and impairment

As at 1 January 2020 AZERIZE-F-H 53,659 2842 21,280 2538 103,163
Depreciation for the year Em?ﬁﬁ 11,199 230 - 1,793 13222
Exchange realignment ERBRE 750 3 1733 345 2,861

As at 31 December 2020 and _2 SE+-B-+-HR

1 January 2021 “2”-%-A-H 65,608 3,105 23,013 21,520 119,246
Depreciation for the year EARE 9,373 465 - 1,926 11,764
Exchange realignment EREY 4,400 34 962 1,195 6,591
As at 31 December 2021 B -#+°A=+-H 79,381 3,604 23,975 30,641 137,601
Carrying amount ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
As at 31 December 2021 A ZE_-#+°A=+-H 49,068 625 = 8,274 57,967
Asat31 December 2020  RZETEEF"A=+-H 52,501 1,060 - 9833 63,394
Note: The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of Mz . KEEZAABEREER LS FH

the property, plant and equipment based on higher BE_EZRSEGIAYE -HE
of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. REE O kOSE - AEEEY
The carrying amount of the relevant assets does not EEEErEBaERN EREaEstE
exceed the recoverable amount based on value in use Z eI Bl %8 B I SR SRR E o

and no impairment has been recognised.
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31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. 1BEY%
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2020 HoE-mE—F—H 395,602
Valuation gain on arising from NABEEHEENGHEKZE
changes in fair value 4,804
Addition NE 2,052
Exchange realignment PE A2 24,501
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 ‘(‘:%:’vﬁi—f—_ﬁ =+—HBK
2" —F#—F—H 426,959
Valuation gain on arising from NABEEHEENGHEKTE
changes in fair value 9,866
Exchange realignment PE A% 18,088
At 31 December 2021 B2 —F+"H=+—H 454,913
Unrealised net gain in fair value of investment 1 REYE > AR EREIBING FEE
properties, included in profit or loss (T A38m) 9,866

(a) Fair value measurement of the Group’s

investment properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2021 has been
arrived at the basis of a valuation carried out by
independent qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations.

The fair value was determined based on
income capitalisation approach, which involves
estimating the rental incomes of the property
and capitalizing them all on appropriate rate to
produce a capital value respectively.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(a)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (continued)

There has been no change to the valuation
technique during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties,
highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties
and information about the fair value hierarchy

15.

f= A
177 g |

A #5 SR R P 51

31 December 2021
—®_—#+_A=1—H
REME B
() TEEREMEZAAEE

o ——

FA EERMILEES-

KRGS IEN R ER  PEH
RARRERESBRIBR-

RE|BERR AEBEKEYEZ
HBEUARBERAREBEERZE

as at the end of the reporting period are as B
follow:
2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F—k BIR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT
Investment properties REY= - - 454,913
2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
B B4R B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Investment properties REYE - - 426,959

PEERREXREMERBRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B MBS IR R M EE

1 o =
31 December 2021
B —F+"RA=+—H
15.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. KEYE B
(@) Fair value measurement of the Group'’s (@) HEESEYMEZAAMENE
investment properties (continued) (#8)
Relationship of
unobservable inputs
Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs o fair value
N EARIERAAUER
A5 fRERKH EATIRERBALE RREREMR
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#Ew TEn
Commercial properties 372,141 348,837 Income capitalisation approach and  Capitalisation rate, taking into A slight increase in the
located in the PRC market comparable method account the capitalisation of rental  capitalisation rate
income potential, nature used would result in a
of the property, and prevailing significant decrease in fair
market condition value and vice versa.
of 4.4% to 4.8% (2020: 5 to 6%)
Saleable unit rate per square foot Asignificant increase in
which compare with similar the saleable unit rate
location and other factor such used would result in a
floor level, building age, size and significant increase in fair
conditions of the properties are value and vice versa.
HK$43,000 to HK$64,000
el WABRGERTHLEE EREACEEESUANE  ARERCLERY A
BERERTR BALLES RENARERE TR
44")@4 8% (CECBES%E Rz
ARMMRRAMZONZRE.  AAJHHEEENEL
BR RIRARSAREL &  FRERAAEKESR
FARAMHESEAB000E I RZFA
TLE64,000E 7
Residential properties 82,7112 78122 Market comparable method and Saleable unit rate per square foot A significant increase in
located in PRC Income capitalisation approach which compare with similar the saleable unit rate
location and other factor such as used would result in a
floor level, building age, size and significant increase in fair
conditions of the properties are value and vice versa.
HK$7,000 to HK$9,000
Capitalisation rate, take into account A slight increase in the
the capitalisation of rental capitalisation rate
potential, nature of the property, used would result in a
and prevailing market condition of  significant decrease in fair
5% (2020: 5% to 6%) value and vice versa.
R FENEENE ML ERMAE R ﬁi*ﬁ%&%?ﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁ%}ﬂ%%@@ © FREMHEERKGEL
BE - XNRIORERZIALL EREHANEAES
FARAHHESEAT0008T I RZFAe
2900047 ]
EHRELCEEESWA NE  FARERCLEEN LS
\ﬁg)ﬂzaﬂ o BREEES BERARERE TR
5% (ZBZEE 1 5%E6%) Rz %o
There were no transfer into or from level 3 FR WHEE A EHE =R
during the year.
(b) The analysis of the carrying amount of (b) KEVEZEESIEIWWT:
investment properties is as follow:
All the investment properties is situated in the FHERBEEZHIETZAA
PRC under medium lease term to long-term BEREYEHEURBRE-
lease arrangement.
(c) Pledge of investment properties () IEHKEWME

Investment properties with a carrying amount
in aggregate of HK$328,919,000 (2020:
HK$308,246,000) are pledged to bank for
Group's bills payables and borrowings, details

of which set out in notes 27 and 30.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. BEYE @)
(d) Investment properties leased out under (d) REREHHEZEEYE
leases

All of the Group's property interests held under
leases to earn rentals are measured using the
fair value model and classified accounted for

investment properties.

The Group leases out its investment properties
to various tenants. The leases typically run for
an initial period of 1 year to 10 years, at the
end of which period all terms are renegotiated.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

16. FHREEE

FEBRRBHEER A UBHRIE
EZFREMERBOIRAARN
BRIFE Wt AKRBEYE-

FEERZLEPLEERE
ME-BO—RVT HPE—F=E
TE MBS ENEBE R
o FRAB IR AT -

Leased
Properties
HEME
HK$'000
FAERT
Carrying amounts IREEE
At 31 December 2021 RZEB_—F+”"HA=+—H 667,407
At 31 December 2020 N_E_EFF+_B=+—H 783,552
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE_Z-_—H+-A=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge HEXH 140,821
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_ S ZFE+_A=1+—HILEE
Depreciation charge ESZH 143,113
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
8= BHE
T —F CZIEfRF
+ZRH +=A
=+—H =+—H
ILEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFAET
Expenses relating to short-term leases BREEAFRE 926 -
Expenses relating to leases of ERBEEEEENE HX
low-value assets excluding (FrEEREEEEZ
short-term leases of FEHRRE)
low-value assets 3,248 5,027
Total cash outflow of leases HERSRHAERE 186,874 173,011
Additions of right-of-use assets NEERAEEE 47,543 148,758

PELAGELERZERERAR
2021 &£3§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA
77 (N e |

31 Dec

= _

16.

17.

BTSRRI EE
ember 2021
—F+"A=+—H
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 16. (FHESBE (B)
Details of total cash outflow of leases is set out in the MEZRESNHBEFEHFNESIH
consolidated cash flow statements. Eraxo
During the current year, the Group leases properties REAFEE AEEBEEYEEERRB
for own use. Lease contracts are entered into for BoMBMEANITTAIRISE (TE-SE
fixed term of 3 to 15 years (2020: 3 to 20 years). F I 3F20F) EEMHER - HEIEIL
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis BB EEETIERS 82 Z2IERE MK
and contain a wide range of different terms and TR G o PN EE TE AR HA A 5T S B e
conditions. In determining the lease term and RN EER AEEBERSANE
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, HEO BT FTENSYERR -
the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, an HE _ZE_—F+_/B=+—HIL%&E
impairment loss of approximately HK$1,187,000 E>ERNHEXERSBEANGHRESE
(2020: HK$nil) was recognised in respect of the right- R ERS18491,187,0008 T (&
of-use assets within the rental business segment. For T CEBE) - BEHEERAEEERE
detail impairment assessment of right-of-use assets, S(h > BEE  SERRIMIEE19 0
please refer to note 19.
LOAN RECEIVABLES 17. FEKE
An aged analysis of the loan receivables as at the end NSRBI E S REB DT W
of the reporting period is as follows: T
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHB7T
0 - 30 days 0%E30H 7,752 2,599
31 to 60 days 31£E60H 33,181 31,777
61 to 90 days 61£E90H 46,770 36,492
91 to 180 days 91&180H 89,659 85,579
181 to 365 days 181E365H 93,725 98,615
Over 365 days 365H L £ 135,590 122,186
406,677 377,248
Less: Allowance for expected credit B FREEEEREG
losses (“ECL") (116,506) (23,123)
290,171 354,125

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI

31 December 2021

B S+ A=+—H
LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. FEWEH (48)
Movement in the allowance for expected credit FEWEHTEHESEIaREE
losses of loan receivables
Movement in allowance for ECL that has been BE_EEFELFE-_—HF+2A
recognised for loan receivables in accordance with T+ —HIFEERESEMEREE
general approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the years EIJ;—%91‘3—)*5}5)?%29’]—}357‘5;%%1?5%%%7\6@
ended 31 December 2020 and 2021. = FEHR = BEE R RE S o
Total
st
HK$'000
FHET
Balance as at 1 January 2020 R TETERF—B—HZERR 23,966
Reversal of ECL TERRfE B8 (796)
Exchange realignment R A (47)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 and ﬁﬁ‘:’g_;ﬁfﬁ—f—_ﬂ =+t—HK
1 January 2021 “ET—F—H—HZ&H 23,123
Recognition of ECL Eﬁnu?ﬁ/ﬁmm S 518 91,242
Exchange realignment P A2 2,141
Balance as at 31 December 2021 AR —F+_A=+—HZ4&R 116,506

Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set
out on note 43.

TRHAE BB IRsT A sr B RN MY EE43

RENTAL DEPOSITS PAID 18. BfffiEis
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Rental deposits paid BENHEEEE 4,298 3,849

Rental deposits paid related to rental deposits paid to
landlord for tenancy agreement more than 1 year in
PRC premises.

ENEERSEMI PR EBSE—
FZHERZEAEEIINZATES
B

PELAGELERZERERAR
2021 &R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B mRMEE

31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

19. GOODWILL 19. pgeE
Total
“aEt
HK$'000
FHET
Cost %N
As at 1 January 2020 ’\\Zv —E2F—AF—H 117,968
Exchange realignment PE A% 7,165
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 ":‘:%:’vﬁi—f—_ﬁ =+—HBk
2 —-F#—F—H 125,133
Exchange realignment B R % 5,234
As at 31 December 2021 W_E_—F+_B=+—H 130,367
Accumulated impairment HEtRE
As at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZTHE—F—H 83,322
Exchange realignment FE R EE 5,060
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 ‘f:gi;ﬁﬁ—i—_ﬁ =+—BK
B2 —%—HF—H 88,382
Impairment for the year (note 7) FRRE ME7) 33,479
Exchange realignment PE A 2 4,474
As at 31 December 2021 A _E_—F+"_A=+—H 126,335
Carrying amount IREEEE
As at 31 December 2021 A _E -+ "HA=+—H 4,032
As at 31 December 2020 N _EEF+"HA=+—H 36,751
Goodwill acquired through business combinations FEREBFAHEB 2 EEEDREEP
has been allocated to cash-generating unit of rental %H%%?%\igﬂf%?&&ﬁmﬁ@?uu
business in PRC, mining business and the sales of ZIREEHBALUETRERR

green food products for impairment testing.

160 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwiill

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the following groups of cash generating
units:

o Rental business in PRC
o Mining business
o Sale of green food products

After recognition of impairment losses, the carrying
amount of goodwill was allocated to groups of cash-
generating units as follows:

19.

AR e MR MY 5T

31 December 2021
—F+Z“H=+—H

=

BE (8)

B8 Z R E R R

SAEARTS  BEENEE TR
SEHBUMAR

. PEEEER
. HESBRM

REDREBEREE mERETECD
EEETNYIREELEMAER :

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Rental business in PRC REEE X - 32,880
Mining business EENEETS 752 722
Sale of green food products HEMABR M 3,280 3,149
4,032 36,751

The recoverable amount has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period prepared by independent valuers and
approved by senior management.

Rental business in PRC

The management of the Group concluded there was
indication of impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of goodwill
and certain right-of-use assets associated to the
rental business segment with carrying amounts
(before impairment) of HK$32,880,000 (2020:
HK$32,880,000) and HK$655,206,000 (2020:
HK$771,948,000),
amount of the rental business segment are estimated

respectively. The recoverable

individually.

B U [0] 5 B8 75 AR % £ 78 37 ik (B T A
RESHREEEREZRELFHRZ
MHERERBRERERAIRERE
BstEMmMERE -

B
AEBEEERAGTERENRILH
HEEEBIEAMcEERETE
F#EEN W E S 58 ETRENT
& BERTHIEREESD B %32,880,000
Bt (ZTE -4 :32,880,000%7T)
J2655,206,0008 7 (ZE - F .
771,948,000/ 70) - THE B DHE 0]
W Bl ER D B T G o

PEILAREEERZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA
)72 O = |

31 Dec

= _

19.

R 75 ¥R R P 51

ember 2021

—F+"A=+—H
GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Rental business in PRC (continued)
The recoverable amount of the goodwill is determined
based on value-in-use calculation by reference to the
valuation report issued by an independent valuer. The
cash flow projection is based on a five-year profit
forecast reviewed by the Directors in respect of the
relevant identifiable CGU. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using growth rate of 2%
(2020: 3%), which does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the rental business industry.
The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate
of 12.54% (2020: 12.25%). The discount rate used
is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
rental business segment. Other key assumptions
involve management’s expectations for the market
development.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$33,479,000
(2020: HK$nil) and HK$1,187,000 (2020: HK$nil) was
recognised in respect of the goodwill and right-of-use
assets respectively, within the rental business segment,
as the management of the Company considers that
the rental business faced weakened expectations on
the performance in PRC throughout the year.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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BmEZRENR (&)
I B 7 ()
mEZWElE BTG RBEEREGES
BUR2EFIGEMEENGHERS
MET - RERERALREKEERS
RNERA AN BEEHBEMUZAF
HiafEAmEL - BHAFHZIRE
/)|L$T7kﬁﬁ2% (:;ﬁ:;ﬁﬁ . 3%) Zi
EXER ZIEEXTRBEHEEER
TEZRIAFHEREX - RBEREKRA
12.54% (ZZ2 T F :12.25%) 2 BHIR
FEITRIR - AR IR X T BRIR AT
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Sales of green food products

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
was 14.76% (2020: 15%) and cash flows beyond the
five-year period were extrapolated using a growth rate
of 2% (2020: 3%).

Mining business

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
was 11.37% (2020: 10%) and cash flows beyond the
five-year period were extrapolated using a growth rate
of 2% (2020: 3%).

The key assumptions for value in use calculation
related to the estimation of cash inflows which
included budgeted sales and gross margin. Such
estimation is prepared by independent valuers based
on past performance and management’s expectations.

Impairment loss of approximately HK$33,479,000
was recognised and allocated to goodwill in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year.

19.

RE BRI

31 December 2021
—F+Z“H=+—H

=

mE (@

AmEZRENE (@

HEFEBRD
EARREEREEAZHIREEXS
14.76% (ZZT_TF : 15%) * M8
BREPRZIBE RS NHAEERIY%
(ZZ T F 1 3%) #EAlo

EBER
EARRE:EREEAZHIREXS
11.37% (ZEEZZFF 1 10%) > M8
BRERAZIEE RS NHAEBERIY%
(ZZ T F 1 3%) #EAlo

ERERBEAEZEIZRRIAN
RERAML HOEREHERER
Ko BRAMFT BB HEMERBE
REREEEREMEL -

EAZ!KEEFEZ,%?@ Sm R H 2 E WA
EE T EBEZHEBES
/\/]33,479,000/%7E°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2021

= _

—F+Z"HA=+—~H
20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BihERSE
Trademarks Contract Total
L a4 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FEx

Cost D%
As at 1 January 2020 A ZE"EFE—HF—H 86,878 52,687 139,565
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36) H&—RKEBAE (f:E36) (82,473) - (82,473)
Exchange realignment FE R % (1,441) 3,201 1,760
As at 31 December 2020 and N_E_EF+_"A=+—H

1 January 2021 kR—_E-—F—HF—H 2,964 55,888 58,852
Exchange realignment PE 7 A% 124 2,337 2,461
As at 31 December 2021 RZE2Z—F+Z“HB=+—H 3,088 58,225 61,313
Accumulated amortisation and & s+ 85 R iR (&

impairment
As at 1 January 2020 A ZE"ZTF—HF—H 43,206 33,369 76,575
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36) H&—FRKBAE (f5E36) (41,212) - 41,212)
Impairment for the year FRRE 1,574 - 1,574
Amortisation for the year FR#EH 39 10,597 10,636
Exchange realignment ERAE (643) 2,607 1,964
As at 31 December 2020 and f:§_§$+:ﬁ =+—H

1 January 2021 kZZ2-—F—F—H 2,964 46,573 49,537
Amortisation for the year FREE - 9,484 9,484
Exchange realignment FER A% 124 2,168 2,292
As at 31 December 2021 R_E2-_—F+"B=+—H 3,088 58,225 61,313
Carrying amount IREEE
As at 31 December 2021 N B —F+_"_B=+—H - - -
As at 31 December 2020 R_EZZHE+"A=+—H - 9,315 9,315

164 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Amortisation charge of approximately HK$9,484,000
(2020: HK$10,636,000) for the year is included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Other intangible assets of trademark of wine and
liguor and contract as above amortised over its
estimated useful lives, which are 30 years and 5 years
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
trademark of tourism business has disposed. Please
refer to note 36 for details.

Impairment testing of other intangible assets
Trademark of wine and liquor business

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$1,574,000 was
recognised in respect of the other intangible assets
on the trademark of wine and liquor business. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the main
factor contributing to the impairment loss was due to
the poor performance of the segment. The recoverable
amount has been determined based on value-in-use
calculation with discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 14%.

The key assumptions for value in use calculation
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management related to the
estimation of cash inflows which included budgeted
revenue and gross margin. Such estimation is based on
past performance in the business and management’s
expectations.

20.

AR e MR MY 5T

31 December 2021
—F+Z“H=+—H

=

HithmpEE (&)

F R E I 499,484,000 T (Z 2
T 110,636,000 7T) st AR S IEE
REMEEBARKNITERRES

LT EMEREEARRERGHRN
H& S eI A FH (D5 #30F K5F)
RS o

BE_Z_ZEF+_A=+—HULHF
B rixExGEmEcdE -BRES
nﬁ = Fﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁu536°

Hftt\a & E 2 BEN R

@£¥%ﬁﬁ
BE_TZFF+_RA=+—HLE

ﬁ:ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁmﬁzﬂmﬂﬁ

EERESRA91,574,0008B T 2 BEE 8 -
KABIEERA BEBURERBZTE
RETIHRZ D BRIFRE - J K [ElIE
BOLOREBHRAEANRREESRAEEAZ

AIRE14% T E 2 EREEETE

ERENKSREEEMEZRER
FHRMEREEZEREERNEZE
ZRE|DANRIRSRAMG HBETHE
BMAREFE - BRAMGSIHERER
BERBELEEBHEMEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 20. HithWEREE (@)
Impairment testing of other intangible assets HithEREEZ BREE (&)
(continued)
Contract =49
Contract acquired has a five year useful life. The FESSHN o ERAERARFE TN
recoverable amount has been determined based on Bl £ %8 T R 1E B 18 17 (LB b 45 B K 4%
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections SHhEBEBMHE NELE KA
based on financial budgets covering five years AR SNEBAREREETE
prepared by an independent valuer and approved by MEE -FEANIRESREEA ZRIRX
senior management. The discount rate applied to cash A12.54% (ZEBE-FF 1 12.25%) °
flow projections was 12.54% (2020: 12.25%).
The key assumptions for value in use calculation EREERAEEETERELBEAR
related to the estimation of cash inflows which HEeh A Gzt HOEEEHEREFR
included budgeted sales and gross margin. Such Ko FRBMGe BB I EEMERIBE
estimation is prepared by an independent valuers RIEREIEEAEMEEY -
based on past performance and management’s
expectations.
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, BE_E_EGFR_FBE-—F+_"H
there was no impairment loss was recognised and = +—RHUIEE TERAEEGESIE
allocated to other intangible assets on contract to HEREHMEEWARSEIARASER
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other EMaeNETrESE BERIE-
comprehensive income for the year.
21.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. REEARZED
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THET
Share of net assets MEEEFE 161,208 287,194
Advances to associates, net of HE A BB KBk
allowance for expected credit losses ~ FEHERE BB & 123,397 -
284,605 287,194

Details of assessment of expected credit losses on
advances to associates are set out in note 43.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group’s interests in its principal associates, which

are unlisted, are as follows:

Name

kY

Registered share capital

AR

Place of
registration

R

RE BRI

31 December 2021

—F_ fﬁ‘f— A=+—H
K%lﬁfﬁigﬁﬁﬂé’\ FELm™) Z

@y

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to
the Group
FEBERS
EREEGZASL
2021 2020

Principal activities

TELH

Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan
E-commerce Group
Company Limited (i)
(Formerly known as Shenzhen
Dahuangyuan E-commerce
Group Company Limited)

R TRIEATEBFER
EEERAE)
(RIRB RN AT 4%
ETHBERAS)

Shenzhen Dahuangyuan
International Trading
Company Limited (i)
(Formerly known as Shenzhen
Dahuangyuan Green Food
Distribution Company
Limited)

RNTATEERE S
BREAE)

ERBRIA TSRS
BREZERAS)

RMB200,000,000

AE200,000,0007T

RMB50,800,000

AR #50,800,0007T

PRC/Mainland China

e,/ HhE R

PRC/Mainland China

e/ HhE R

30 30  Sales of food and fertilizer

HERMKRER

30 30  Sales of food, fertilizer,

wine and steel

HERS BH BERSH

PELAGELERZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
1 o =

R 75 ¥R R P 51

31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The Group’s interests in its principal associates, which

are unlisted, are as follows: (continued)

REE QB 2z ()
FEEREEEHEAT GELH) 2

BT (@)

Percentage of
ownership interest

Place of attributable to
Name Registered share capital registration the Group Principal activities
FEBERS
278 HfRE MG RERRSEAL  rmyg
2021 2020

Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan RMB50,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 30 30 Guarantee
Non-Financing Guarantee
Company Limited (i)

RB A EA TSI R E N AR 50,000,000  FE/FERM ER
ERARRE

Shenzhen Shengsiming Trading RMB50,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 40 40 General trading
Limited (i)

FTEBHEE ARH50,000,000c  HE/FERH —HRES
ARABE)

Notes: Btz -

(i) The English name of the above PRC companies is for (i) Pt EA B R E L TR E R

identification purpose only.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. PREEATIZ#EDS (8)
Summarised financial information B E R E
Summarised financial information in respect of each of MAEEREABMENT ZHMBRER
the Group’s material associates is set out below. The BIEEHFIUN R o PSR E
summarised financial information below represents THISRIE S B RS ER| 45 5 > B
amounts shown in the associate’s consolidated NT VS B RSB FRG R S E o
financial statement prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—_E-_—®+_-_H=+—H1
FE
Shenzhen Qianhai
Dahuangyuan
E-commence
Group Company
Limited

(Formerly known
as Shenzhen

Dahuangyuan
E-commerce Shenzhen
Group Company Shengsiming
Limited) Trading Limited
FY TS AT &
EFBEHER
BRAR Fh
(MR RN AR DRHEEE
BEFHBEMRAR) BRATR
2021 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAET
Non-current assets FREEE 16,986 8,681
Current assets TEEE 455,765 105,796
Current liabilities piEIi=kE (87,504) (393)
Net assets BEZE 385,247 114,084
Reconciliation to the Group's HBAEERKE AR 2 R HE
interest in the associates:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREBEE LA 30% 40%
Carrying amount of the investment REFESHE 115,574 45,634
Revenue Wiz 34,146 =
Loss for the year FEHB (657) (51,915)
Group's share loss of associates FEESEHEARBE (197) (20,766)

FEIERGEEERZERERAT 169
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Summarised financial information (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

21.

R A E 2 A

MBERME (@)

(1)

BE_T-_TFE+-_RA=+—HL

FE

Shenzhen Qianhai
Dahuangyuan E-commence
Group Company Limited
(Formerly known as
Shenzhen Dahuangyuan
E-commerce Group

Shenzhen Shengsiming

Company Limited) Trading Limited

FINTAIE AT &

BYEBEEERAE
EIRBRITAT FMERHEE
BETERERAR) BRAR
2020 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Non-current assets FRBEE 139 59,290
Current assets nEEE 433,192 101,577
Current liabilities nBERE (96,732) (377)
Net assets BEZE 336,599 160,490

Reconciliation to the Group's AAREERKEREZ
interest in the associates: et

Proportion of the Group's ownership EREEEERELA 30% 40%
Carrying amount of the investment RERASH 100,980 64,196
Revenue Wi 29,840 -
Gain/(loss) for the year FEWE/ (58) 7,113 (435)
Group's share profit/(loss) of associates rERDLBERTEA/ (B8 2,134 (174)

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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22.

23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BEmRMEE
31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

INVENTORIES 2. L

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw material AR 35,855 20,580
Finished goods EB 61,145 45,980
97,000 66,560

PROPERTIES FOR SALE 23. HEWME
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Properties under development for sale & 2@ 411,934 287,046

The properties under development for sale in the PRC
are under long-term leases.

PENGFEERTYEITARMEE

PELAGELERZERERAR
2021 &R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B MBS IR R M EE

1 o =

31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sale of goods,
and rental income derived from rental business.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

24,

FEUR B 5 AR TR
BREZERTEREBHESGRKRHE
EXBELEZEEFWA-

RBEFR BREZRTIZEZEH
ZAREC DTN ¢

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month —@BE A 32,739 15,293
1 to 2 months —EZR{EAR 30,131 22,040
2 to 3 months ME=1E2 40,682 33,698
Over 3 months BB =1EH 52,321 55,240
155,873 126,271

Less: Allowance for expected credit A ARG EEIEEE
losses (19,184) (18,310)
136,689 107,961

Included in the trade receivables consist of rental

BREZERREERKIEES AEEE

receivables. The aging analysis of the Group’s rental WS ZBRE DT -
receivables are as follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Up to 30 days 30H 3 UR 2,442 3,604

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021




24.

25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24.
Movement in the allowance for expected credit

losses of trade receivables

Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised

for trade receivables in accordance with simplified
approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2021.

e BEmRMEE
31 December 2021
—F+Z“H=+—H

=

’%l‘l&?% EEITA (nﬁ)
RN E ZIRMTAIEEHEEREES

BE_S_SER-S-_-—£+°A8
S HLEEREEEMEREE
Bl S50 FF 8L B0 RS 1 75 3% A FE WL 2 53 B
RN 2 PEREEEEEE-

Total

4Est

HK$'000

FET

Balance as at 1 January 2020 N_ZETF—F—HZ#ER 22,133

Reversal of ECL TEERE BB 0 (3,628)

Exchange realignment BEE 2 S 2L (195)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 and ‘figigfﬁ—i—_ﬁ =t+—HX

1 January 2021 B —F—B—HZ&E5% 18,310

Recognition of ECL s TERRE BR1E 852

Exchange realignment bE R FAEE 22

Balance as at 31 December 2021 A B —F+_A=+—HZ4&EiR 19,184

Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set
out in note 43.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 2
RECEIVABLES

V1

TRHAE E IR AT BRI M EE43

FAfTTRIA ~ & & T Hth FE U 7R IE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Prepayments TaT I 249,918 228 898
Deposits and other receivables e Rk EMEWEIE 246,720 386,340
496,638 615,238

Less: Allowance for expected credit 78 : FEERE B R 1B EE
losses (52,766) (92,386)
443,872 522,852

PELAGELERZERERAR
2021 &R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA
1 o =

31 Dec

= _

25.

BTSRRI EE
ember 2021
—&F+_"A=+—H
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FAMRIE R R EMEKTIE
RECEIVABLES (continued) (48)
Movement in the allowance for expected HEREMEIRIETaIAE S5 g
credit losses of deposits and other receivables Hers)
Movement in allowance for ECL that has been BE S _FEFER_E_—F+_HA
recognised for deposits and other receivables in —+—HLFEERESETBREE
accordance with general approach set out in HKFRS 9 B ST ai M — S AL mhin e R E M
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021. FEW S IEE R TAER = S 18 B8
& o
Total
Mt
HK$'000
THET
Balance as at 1 January 2020 N ZETEF—HA—HZER 143,915
Reversal of ECL TEHRE BB # [ (56,576)
Exchange realignment bE AR EE 5,047
Balance as at 31 December 2020 and ‘figi’gfﬁ—i—_ﬁ =+—HkK
1 January 2021 2T —F—HA—HZ&R 92,386
Reversal of ECL TEHRE BB #[0] (41,631)
Exchange realignment bE AR EE 2,011
Balance as at 31 December 2021 KRB —F+-RB=+—BZ%ek 52,766

Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set
out in note 43.

Included in the above allowance for expect credit
losses is a provision for individually impaired for
other receivables of approximately HK$134,148,000
during the year ended 31 December 2019. The other
receivables were past due. Though the management
of the Group has been proactively seeking to recover
these other receivables and collection letters were sent
by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2019. Consequently, specific impairment provision
was recognised. In respect of this specific impairment
provision, the Group has reversed other receivables of
approximately HK$67,451,000 and HK$41,052,000
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021 respectively.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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TAHAE B IRsT (s IR RN MY aE43

BHE_Z-NAF+B=+—HILHF
B> LA EERBREGEIEEME
WORRIE 2 8 Bl BB 49 134,148,000
Ao HEWRIBEAH AEEE
BE—BRBBE RO ZEHEMER
MEBREBEERBEE_Z—IF
+ZB=+—BILEEHELERXK-
At BT RERE MZEE
REBEMS  AEERBE_SZE
F+ZRA=+—HBRIZEZ—%+=
B =+—HB 15 E 7 55 0] 5 fh FE Uk
FRIB#967,451,00078 70 5241,052,0007%
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25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movement in the allowance for expected

credit losses of deposits and other receivables
(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, approximately
HK$320,701,000 (2020: HK$239,364,000) was paid
as trade deposit and prepayments for trading of food
and minerals products.

Rental deposits and construction deposits for
the warehouse amounting to HK$42,980,000
(2020: HK$37,076,000) and HK$389,000 (2020:
HK$788,000) respectively were paid for the warehouse
logistic business for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Approximately HK$24,609,000 (2020: HK$24,221,000)
were the progress payments for the investment
targets.

As at 31 December 2020, there is consideration
receivable of disposal of Zhongshan Shuixiang
Lvyou Kaifa Company Limited of approximately
HK$18,814,000 grouped under other receivables.

Approximately HK$1,482,000 (2020: HK$66,405,000)
were prepaid construction and development for the
properties for sale.

At the end of the reporting period, there were reversal
of allowance for expected credit losses amounted to
HK$41,631,000 recognised for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$56,576,000).

25.

RE BRI

31 December 2021
—F+Z“H=+—H

TR R R HE MR KRRIE
(&)
REREMEWRRIETRIAE EEEE
{ @j (nﬁ)

=

RZE_—-—F+-HA=+—H"
#9320,701,0008 750 (ZE_ZF !
239,364,000 7T) EXIEFAEER S
REEZBSRERFENHRIEB

BERYREN ZAEHSRERES
£ 742,980,000 70 (B — T !
37,076,000 7T) £%389,0008 7T (&
T 788,000 ERNEHELE
T EHE+ZRA=t+—HIEEEZ (G-

#924,609,000E T (ZE_ZTF
24,221,000870) AMKREBEZEHZ

D EERRAT TR

A TECEF+ZHA=+—H HEHR
WK BIREREBRA B 2 UL
fB#918,814,000/8 7T > D AR EMFEUL
FRIEIE T o
SEMEZENREERBEERE
#4#1,482,0008 0 (ZE2E =24 !
66,405,000 7T) ©

RBREHR BE_S-_—F+_H4
=t HIFEECRIEHREESSE
B #E([0141,631,0008 T (CE -4
56,576,000 7T) ©

PEILAREEERZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
77 (N e |

31 Dec

26.

R 75 ¥R R P 51

ember 2021

—fF+-A=1+—8

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS

RERREFEVRERFEFR

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cash and bank balances (note) IR & KMIRT1T4EER 27,433 26,115

Time deposits THIER — 18,857

27,433 44,972

Less: Pledged deposits W BIRRER - (18,857)

Cash and cash equivalents BEXRIBEEEY 27,433 26,115
Cash and cash equivalents in the FEReRERPNIRER

consolidated statement of BEEEY
cash flows 27,433 26,115

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi amounted to HK$16,488,000 (2020:
HK$16,831,000) and HK$nil (2020: HK$18,857,000),
respectively. The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between 1 day and 6
months depending on the immediate cash equivalents
of the Group and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

Note: As at 31 December 2021, there were bank balances
of approximately HK$3,063,000 (2020: HK$4,000)
freezed due to litigation. For the details of the
litigation, please refer to note 47.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

RIREBAR AEEBRARKEE
MBS RIBTEGURERERD
7 716,488,0008 T (ZE _EF :
16,831,000/ 7T) KEEBT (ZTEZE
£F 118,857,000 1) ° 2AM  IRIEHE
P i B9 91 B 1 (6 1) o 45 B ~ 5 BB R A
EEERE AREFIBEHRZRAH
G REBEEBBEREETIH
EEFENRTHEARBRMAEME
‘qﬁé}o

RTEEHEHBRTERANRZFH
FREREVH) B - FHAE HIFRUIZ1 R E6
BRHEMFL GRIrEEKFEESE
BEYME) > WiZE B2 ERERA
REREH) B - RITAS 8RR BIEIRFRUD
RO EENCRZBEER
7o

s RZEZ—F+ZA=+—8%
3,063,000/ 70 (ZZ ZF 4 : 4,000
HBIT) Z IRITHE R A AR sA AR R4S ©
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

AR e MR MY 5T

31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H
FEft 8B Z R KR EAEE
RREARENEZGRTIZEZ[E
ZARE DT

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within 1 month — (@A N 9,342 7,608
1 to 2 months —EREAR 19,772 10,483
2 to 3 months ME=1E2 8,834 4,945
Over 3 months BE=EA 72,523 1,464
110,471 24,500

Bills payable ENE S 30,267 81,168
140,738 105,668

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 30-day terms (2020: 30-day
terms).

Included in trade payables are HK$73,500,000 (2020:
HK$5,761,000) construction payables in which
approximately HK$70,988,000 are defaulted.

As at 31 December 2020, bills payable of
approximately HK$81,168,000 were secured by the
pledged deposits of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, bills payable of
approximately HK$30,267,000 were secured by
investment properties with fair value of approximately
HK$328,919,000 and personal guarantee by
shareholder of the Company and related parties.

All the trade payables and bills payable are
denominated in Renminbi.

FENEZERTATE  —fRIZ30HE
B (CZE 24 308 4=

ENEZRABEFERMNIRER
73,500,000 T (Z&E_&EF !
5,761,000 7t) » E#14970,988,00078
TTEEL -

A TECEEF"RB=+—H BAR
5:#981,168,000B T AT EE ERIRF
RAEHEIR

W2 —F+ZA=1+—H EFE
Z#4930,267,0008 TTHAREBEL S
328,919,000 8 TR B EFIRIF R
AN B KRR 5 EHEAER

B A5 P ) 8 5 B R A1 TR 39 XA
RIEHHE

PEILAREEERZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B mRMEE

31 December 2021

= _

—F+_"_H=+—H

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HihmENZIERESEA
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Other payables EHh I 54,096 44,164
Accruals EstE R 93,890 40,050
147,986 84,214

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

Included in other payables are HK$48,411,000 (2020:
HK$32,302,000) rental deposits received from the
tenants of logistic warehouse and office in PRC,
HK$194,000 (2020: HK$156,000) related to leasehold
improvement payable.

Included in the accruals:

ii)

iii)

the default interest of secured bond of
approximately HK$32,700,000 (2020:
HK$21,800,000) (note 30i);

the default interest of unsecured bond
of approximately HK$1,607,000 (2020:
HK$5,250,000) (note 30k);

the default interest of unsecured bond of
approximately HK$13,332,000 (note 30I);

the default interest of unsecured bond of
approximately HK$43,000 (note 30m); and

the penalties from default construction
payables of approximately HK$30,826,000
(note 27).

178 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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HMEMRER RSB THHEER=
(EVER

ST AEMERIRIBAYEREH > 48,411,000
BT (CZ T4 132,302,000 7T) &
BREYRE REAERS WERR
FAERE ; 194,0008 7T (CE T4 .
156,000787T) B EYEEEETR
IBHER-

EstERERE

i) BEEBES B U%IJ%’\J
32,700,000/ (Z B T 4F .
21,800,0003& 7T) (Iiﬁuzaol),

ii) EXFES Z2BONEBEY
1,607,000 (CE -2 F :
5,250,00077T) (BfisE£30k) ;

i)y EHEBEESZENFEDN
13,332,00058 7T (FffsE301) ;

iv) ﬁ%&#ﬁ%zu’ﬁue #943,000
AT (MFEE30m) ;

v) HMAEN IR ZIASNA
30,826,000 7z (fi5E27) ©



29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

e BEmRMEE
31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFAET
Receipts in advance from customers MEEEMBWRERRIE
in relation to trading of products 94,350 94,699
Receipts in advance from customers — FHIER KMBHEBEWREFRIE
in relation to construction and
development 114,872 86,786
209,222 181,485

Movement in contract liabilities for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2021:

BE_ZT_ZERTZT_—F+A
=+—HEFEZEHNEREES !

Construction

Trading of and
products development Total
BEER B K% =1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHERT FHET
Balance at 1 January 2020 RIZZIEF—F—Hz
fEER 85,200 - 85,200
Decrease in contract liabilities as a HERRETAEGK
result of recognising revenue or BRZENRAD
other income during the year HMBAER ZE4
that was included in the contract =L P
liabilities at the beginning of the
year (85,200) - (85,200)
Increase in contract liabilities BHNEEIEN FEE
excluding amounts recognised as FRERABUA
revenue during the year &5 94,699 86,786 181,485
Balance at 31 December 2020 and RIZZZF+TAH
1 January 2021 e = -
—A—BZ &% 94,699 86,786 181,485
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result HHEFER EM st ABH
of recognising revenue or other BEZFABMAZ
income during the year that was HMBAER 2E64
included in the contract liabilities at aER
the beginning of the year (94,699) - (94,699)
Increase in contract liabilities excluding &#BEIEN > FEEER
amounts recognised as revenue HBRRAWAZEER
during the year 94,350 28,086 122,436
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZZ-_—%+_H
=+—BHz#&H% 94,350 114,872 209,222

PELAGELERZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA
1 o =

31 Dec

= _

30.

R 75 ¥R R P 51

ember 2021
—F+Z"HA=+—~H

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

30. RITHREMMEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Secured bank loans (note a) BIERIEITER
(FyzEa) 80,919 67,116
Unsecured other loans mIEHEMER (fI5Eb=Eh)

(notes b to h) 79,530 74,608
Secured bonds (note i) SIRRES BEE) 109,000 109,000
Unsecured bonds (notes j to m) mIgREs GIEEHEmM) 251,550 142,300

520,999 393,024
Carrying amounts repayable REE W ZPTE T BE R H A

within one year based on BR—FRNEENRESEE

scheduled payment dates set out

in the agreement 461,049 360,833
Carrying amounts not repayable BEANRBREGHHERE—FAE

within one year from the end BEAEREXREREITN

of reporting period but contain RE®%E GInAsRBEaRn)

a repayment on demand clause

(shown under current liabilities) 59,950 32,191

520,999 393,024
Less: amounts due within one year B AR A REBEN
shown under current liabilities —F RN EHANEER (520,999) (393,024)
Amounts shown under HRAIEREEENEER

non-current liabilities

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a

(d)

(e)

(M)

As at 31 December 2021, the secured bank
loan of approximately HK$80,919,000 (2020:
HK$67,116,000) was secured by investment
properties with fair value of approximately
HK$328,919,000 (2020: HK$308,246,000) and
personal guarantee by shareholder of the Company
and his wife and related parties.

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured other
loan of approximately HK$37,680,000 (2020:
HK$36,167,000) was borrowed from Beidahuang
Marketing Co. Ltd., the non-controlling shareholder
of a Group company. The purpose for loans were
purchasing staple food and liquor wine.

As at 31 December 2020, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$2,950,000 was borrowed from an
independent third party.

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured other
loan of approximately HK$21,619,000 (2020:
HK$20,752,000) was borrowed from Dongguan
Zhenyue Property Investment Company Limited, the
non-controlling shareholder of a Group Company.

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$618,000 (2020: HK$593,000) was
borrowed from Dongguan Yuehe Zhiyuan Investment
Development Company Limited, the non-controlling
shareholder of a Group Company.

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$1,250,000 (2020: HK$6,250,000)
was borrowed from an independent third parties.

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured other
loan of approximately HK$13,304,000 (2020:
HK$7,896,000) was borrowed from the shareholder
of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$5,059,000 was borrowed from an
independent third parties.

ma B HRRMEE
31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

30. RITREMBEES (&

=

(a

A CE_—F+_HBA=+—H'B
IR 1T B F4980,919,00058 75 (—
TBTEF 67,116,000 7T) TTHEA
A1EAI328,919,0008 T (CBE =
£F 1 308,246,000 7T) IR B E/E
EHMARAARREREZETUR
R 5 E R EAIER

A _E_—F+_HBA=+—H &
IR E B F4937,680,00058 75 (Z
TR 1 36,167,000587T) THEE
EEQTHIEERIRETIL AT
BRNABRAT - ZERBIERE
FEMRBEERBRC

KRBT F+_RB=+—H0"%
IR E M ERMAY2,950,0008 7T 75 &
BEIE=F"

AZE_—FE+ZA=+—8 &
R EAMERAI21,619,00058 7T (=
T TEE 120,752,000 7T) HEE
EEBEABINIEER KR EREDoNngguan
Zhenyue Property Investment
Company Limited °

AIEBEZ—F+ZA=+—HB &
RIPHEMEMRL618,0008 T (ZF
Z &4 1593,000%7T) HiEBEE
NEINIEER B ERDongguan Yuehe
Zhiyuan Investment Development
Company Limited °

N _E - —F+_/B=+—H &
I E A E 491,250,000 7 (Z
T T 16,250,000 7T) TLEEE

s —

UE=FHe

A _E_—F+_H=+—H &
AR E M ER413,304,00058 75 (Z
T AF 1 7,896,000 7T) JHEBE A
EERE-

A B —F+"A=1+—H &
IR H fh E70495,059,00058 7T L 1&
BBIUE=H-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 F5 R R MY 5E

31 December 2021
—F+"A=+—H

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

VA
77 (N e |

= _

30.

(i)

As at 31 December 2021, secured bond
of approximately HK$109,000,000 (2020:
HK$109,000,000) were borrowed from an
independent third party and secured by the
equity interests of two subsidiaries. The secured
bond was expired during the year ended 2019
and as at 31 December 2021 the default interest
was approximately HK$32,700,000 (2020:
HK$21,800,000) with default interest rate of 10%
per annum (note 28) (the "Default Secured Bond”).
The Group is negotiating with secured bondholder to
extend the Default Secured Bond.

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured bonds
of approximately HK$64,000,000 (2020:
HK$64,000,000) was the principal amount of
matured convertible bonds. Details please refer to
note 32.

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured bonds
of approximately HK$71,550,000 (2020:
HK$78,300,000) were borrowed from independent
third parties. There are three debtors have extend
the repayment period during the year ended 31
December 2021 in which the aggregate amount
is approximately HK$59,950,000. Approximately
HK$11,600,000 (2020: HK$78,300,000) of the
unsecured bonds were expired in which the
Group received a winding up petition issued by
an unsecured bondholder for the debt amount of
approximately HK$5,252,000. Please refer to note
47 (viii) for further details. The default interest was
approximately HK$1,607,000 (2020: HK$5,250,000)
with default interest rate of 2% to 6% per annum
(note 28).

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured bonds of
approximately HK$111,100,000 was the principal
amount of matured convertible bonds. The
unsecured bonds was expired during the year ended
2021 and the default interest was HK$13,332,000
with default interest rate of 12% per annum (note
28). Details please refer to note 32.

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured bonds of
approximately HK$4,900,000 was borrowed from
independent third party. The unsecured bonds were
expired. The default interest was approximately
HK$43,000 with default interest of 1% per annum
(note 28). The Group received a winding up petition
issued by the unsecured bondholder and the petition
had been withdrawn on 3 March 2022. Please refer
to note 47 (vii) for further details.
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI

31 December 2021
—F+Z“H=+—H

=

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 30. ST RHEMES (@)
The above bank and other borrowings that are PR AREMESHUIBRERS
denominated in currencies other than the functional BETHAE S I AN E & =8 > &5 W
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out T
below:
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
RMB NG 164,499 132,524
HK$ BT 356,500 260,500
520,999 393,024
The ranges of interest rates on the Group's bank and AEESRTEEMESNHXEE
other borrowings are as follows: T
2021 2020
% %
Secured bank loans BIRFIRITER

(note a) (Mf5Ea) 490-528 522-566
Unsecured other loans IR EMER (FsEbZEh)

(notes b to h) 4.35-18.00 4.35-18.00
Secured bonds (note i) BIRRES (W5T) 10.00 10.00
Unsecured bonds (notes j to m) MILIRES HEEEm) 1.00 - 12.00 2.00 - 6.00
DEFERRED TAX 31. RERIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MR SRR Rxh T 2 mM= &
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax FiRERESEHNEEEHEEIEN -t
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following BB N ET ZIEERIBAGRN
is the analysis of deferred tax balances for financial S -

reporting purpose:

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Deferred tax asset RILRIBEEE (6,549) (11,160)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAEE 35,929 33,871
29,380 22,711

PEILAREEERZERERAR
2021 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

31. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 31. IFIEFRIA (4B)
The following are the major deferred tax assets and RAEAFEERBEFEEERIZETEIFIE
liabilities recognised and movements thereon during REEEREBERESHIN T o
the current and prior years.
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Revaluation  acquisition  Accumulated Allowance
of investment of losses  Convertible ~for expected
property  subsidiaries  recognised bond  credit losses Total
Wik
HEAH
Bff EEM 2L BHiEE
REME  AnEREE 2iER  TRRES iRt ®it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER TR TEx Thn TER
Deferred tax liabilities at 1 January 2020 R -F-ZF—F—H
ZETREAE 27,164 24,102 (5.814) - (1,556) 43,8%
Deferred tax charged/(credited) tothe  ER1/ GFA)

consolidated statement of profitorloss & ABRREMEE

and other comprehensive income during WA B R 2 B IE

the year (note 11) (BzE11) 1,201 (2,649) - 7 (3,063) (4,589)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36) HE-RNEAT (336) - (17,485) - - - (17,485)
Recognition of tax from convertiole bonds B2 TR EAIRE (ft2E32)

(note 32) - - - 539 - 539
Exchange realignment ERER 1877 (801) (473) - (254) 349
Deferred tax liabilities at RIZZ2E+ZA=1+-H

31 December 2020 and R_E_-%-F-

1 January 2021 2EEHESE 30,242 3,167 (6,287) 462 (4873 2711
Deferred tax charged/(credited) tothe  E/1/ GFA)

consolidated statement of profitorloss & ABRREMEE

and other comprehensive income during WA B R Z B IE

the year (note 11) (BzE11) 2,466 (@371) - (462) 6,732 6,365
Exchange realignment EREE 1,279 (796) (262) - 83 304
Deferred tax liabilities at RIZZ-5+ZA=1+-H

31 December 2021 JELREAR 33,987 - (6,549) - 1,942 29,380

No tax losses arising in Mainland China (2020: HK$nil)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax

losses can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Group issued convertible bonds with a coupon
rate of 10% per annum at a total principal value of
HK$200,000,000 on 8 June 2017 to an independent
third party (the “bondholder”). The convertible bonds
can be converted into 500,000,000 shares at the
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.4 per share.

The convertible bonds comprise of liability component,
conversion component and early redemption option.
The equity component is presented in equity heading
“convertible bond reserve”. The effective interest
rate of the liability component on initial recognition
is 13.42% per annum. Conversion may occur at
any time between 8 June 2017 to 7 June 2019. If
the bonds have not been converted, they will be
redeemed on 7 June 2019. The Company may at
any time redeem the outstanding principal amount
of the bonds at face value together with the accrued
and unpaid coupon on the principal amount to be
redeemed. Coupon of 10% per annum will be paid
semi-annually to the bondholder. The convertible
bonds have been matured on 7 June 2019. The
outstanding convertible bonds transfer to other
borrowing 30(j).

The Group issued convertible bonds with a coupon
rate of 12% per annum at a total principal value of
HK$111,100,000 on 1 November 2020 to not less
than six placees, being professional, institutional
and other investors who are independent of and not
connected with the Company. The convertible bonds
will mature on 31 December 2021 at its principal
amount or can be converted into 1,111,000,000
shares at the conversion rate of HK$0.1 per
share. The net proceeds of placing in amount of
HK$109,100,000 were used to settled the outstanding
above other borrowing.

The convertible bonds comprise of liability component,
conversion component. The equity component is
presented in equity heading “convertible bond
reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability
component on initial recognition is 13.58% per
annum. The convertible bonds have been matured
on 31 December 2021. The outstanding convertible
bonds transfer to other borrowing (note 30(l)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
The movement of the equity component and liability
component of the convertible bonds for the year is set

EWTT@HRF%E’J’% s R BEE DB

out below:
Liability Equity
component  component Total
=L D) g 1zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHT FHET
At 1 January 2020 RIZZE
—B—H - _ _
Issue of convertible bonds TR ES 107,833 1,267 109,100
Recognition of deferred taxation HRELERE - (539) (539)
Effective interest charged BERAEZH 2,611 - 2,611
Interest payable FERE (2,222 - (2,222)
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZZHF
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—Hk
_E_—-F—-A—H 108,222 728 108,950
Effective interest charged BERAESZH 16,210 - 16,210
Interest payable FERE (13,332) - (13,332)
Mature of convertible bonds R ESES (111,100) (728) (111,828)
At 31 December 2021 R_BZ—F
+-A=+—H - - _

As at 31 December 2021,
of the convertible bonds of HK$111,100,000 was

outstanding principal

expired and transferred to other borrowing (2020:

HK$111,100,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group's lease liabilities arise from the lease of
properties of 3 to 15 years (2020: 3 to 20 years).
Interest rate underlying for the lease was from 6.48%
to 7.00% (2020: 6.48% to 7.00%) per annum.

At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, the
Group had lease liabilities repayable as follows:

AR e MR MY 5T

31 December 2021
—F+Z“H=+—H

=

33. THE&R
AEBCHEEEELENRIEISE (2
TTTF I 3FE05) WYERE-AE
$EE§Z¢%U${|\%@6 48%%E7.00% (Z

TEBF 1 6.48%FE7.00%) 2R

R_E-EF+_A=+—HkKZ
——#+"A=+—8> K%@ﬁ%{ﬁa
ZHEEERNT:

Present value
of the minimum
lease payments

Total minimum
lease payments

REHE REHRE

TRRE (RE7ECE
2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET TAT TERT TAET
Within 1 year —ER 144,853 127,806 181,423 178,202
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBEMEA 142,127 122,253 169,514 165,127
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRER 195,742 261,918 251,575 347,965
Over 5 years EENE 220,843 303,942 243,743 354,383
703,565 815,919 846,255 1,045,677
Less: total future interest expenses B RIA) B R AR (142,690) (229,758)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaERE 703,565 815,919

Lease obligations denominated in RMB was
approximately HK$565,768,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: HK$649,715,000).

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk
with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are
monitored within the Group's treasury function.

‘é:%:—iﬂL—ﬁ —+—H #&#AR
Mt E 2 HE ST4%4565,768,0008
7T (CE -4 © 649,715,000 7T) ©

AEFETEREBEEEMEEER
nBETEB - HERENAEEER
BAEARRER-
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35.
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—F+"A=+—H
SHARE CAPITAL 34. g7
Shares B 15
2021 2020 2021 2020
Number Number
A L
'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tk THET THERT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 SREE10BTH
giER 8,000,000 8,000,000 800,000 800,000
Increase in authorised share capital ETERAE M
(note a) (Fffzta) 8,000,000 - 800,000 -
16,000,000 8,000,000 1,600,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERER
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 each SREE10ETH
BBk
1 January and 31 December r—A—HBk
+ZB=+—H 6,225,126 6,225,126 622,513 622,513

Note: Mtz -

(a) Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed on 22 (a) BER-_E-_—"&#—HA_-_+—H
January 2022, the total authorised share capital of EENEE RS EIYSERE
the Company was increased from HK$800,000,000 {Eo 017 752 £64M8,000,000,000
divided into 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares of par BEER B AANTE TR AL
value HK$0.01 each to HK$1,600,000,000 by the ZEE 800,000,000 T (DIF A
creation of additional 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares 8 ooo 000,000/ = I8 EE0.01E 7T
of par value of HK$0.01 each. iBRR) 1% 1,600,000,0007 7T ©

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 35. BERGRESTE|

The Company operates two share option schemes
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants for their contribution to,
and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
the Group. A share option scheme was adopted by
the Company on 23 May 2007 (“2007 Scheme”)
and terminated on 22 May 2017, and a new share
option scheme (“2017 Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 June
2017 (“Adoption Date”). The 2017 Scheme, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from the Adoption Date.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2017 Scheme and
under any other schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the date of the passing of the resolution for
the adoption of the 2017 Scheme. The total number
of shares issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each eligible person in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares in issue of the Company or having
an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

35.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

A grant of options may not be made after inside
information has come to the knowledge of the
Company until it has been published. In particular,
no options may be granted during the period
commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of the date of the Board meeting for
the approval of the Company’s results for any year,
half-year, quarterly or any other interim period
and the deadline for the Company to publish an
announcement of its results for any year, half-year,
quarterly or any other interim period. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the 2017 Scheme shall
be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price must be at least
the higher of the official closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant, the average of the official closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant and the
nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 35. BERGHESTE (48)
The following share options were outstanding under ER T —E—+E 218 LR
the 2017 Scheme during the year: HARITE
2021
—B_-F
Weighted
average
exercise price Number of
per share options
miETH
SRiTEE  BREHE
HK$ ‘000
B T
At 1 January m—A—H - -
Granted during the year FREH 0.10 509,640
At 31 December R+ZA=1+—H 0.10 509,640
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share REREER > RITEBRENTEEK
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting TEHNT .
period are as follows:
2021 —E-—F
Number of
Grantees options Exercise price* Exercise period
EEA fERiEHE TEE 171EHA
‘000 HK$ per share
F15 gRAT
Directors 10,360 0.10 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
5% “EI—FRA+—HE
“ETMFERB+H
Other employees 102,280 0.10 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
HithgE T —FB+—HE
“ETMFERB+H
Consultants 397,000 0.10 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
EER “EI—FRA+—HE

“EWESRA+TH

509,640 0.10
& The exercise price of the share options is subject to & EHRWARETHARATREE
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or EE LI IBE R T > BRENTT
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. EEAEL AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B mRMEE

31 December 2021
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 35. BERGHESTE (48)
2021 (continued) —EC—F (@)
Number of share options
BREYE
At Exercised Granted Cancelled Lapsed At Date of Exercise price
Name or category of 1 January during during  duringthe  during the 31 December grant of Exercise period of of share
participant 2021 the year the year year year 2021 share options share options options
® RIZZ-F
k- b 3 +=A
SAFWRRER —-B—H FRITE FREH FRH FERRY =+-H BRERLASE  BRETED BRETEE
Directors
s
Mr. Li Jiehong - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
FHBEE ZEC-f 2T -#RA+-HE
~A+-H “2-NERATA
Mr. Ke Xionghan - 4,060,000 - - - 4,060,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
b bk ZEC-f 2T -#RA+-HE
~A+—H ZZIMERBTH
Mr. Zeng Jixiang - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
BEHEE ZEC-f 2T -#RA+-HE
~A+—H ZZIMERBTH
Mr. Yu Zicong - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
RTREE ZEC-f 2T -#RAt+-HE
~A+—-H “2-NERATA
Ms. Ho Wing Yan - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
[EE7S ZEC-f 2T -#RAt+-HE
~A+—H ZZIMERBTH
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
RRERE ZEC-f 2T -#RAt+-HE
~A+—H ZEIMERBTH
Mr. Yang Yunguang - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
BELEE ZEC-f 2T -#RAt+-HE
~A+—-H “2-NERATA
Mr. Chen Zhifeng - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
BE#EE ZEC-f 2T -#RAt+-HE
~A+—H ZEIMERBTH
- 10,360,000 - - - 10,360,000
Other Employees
Hitfgs
In aggregate - 102,280,400 - - - 102,280,400 11 Jun 2021 11 Jun 2021 to 10 Jun 2024 0.10
W5t —2T-F A= B s = E
RE+—H “RTMERA+A
Consultants
&R
In aggregate - 397,000,000 - - - 397,000,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.1
a5t ZBI-F "2 —#FRA+-HE
~Bt+—8 ZRINERBTA
~ 509,640,400 - - ~ 509,640,400

The fair value of the share options of the directors and
employees granted during the Year was approximately
HK$3,732,000 of which these share options vested
immediately and the Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$3,732,000. Share options granted
to consultants will be vested conditional upon the
achievement of attainment of specified performance
targets by respective grantees agreed with the
Company. No share-based payment expense was
recognised as it is unlikely that these grantees meet
the performance target.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 35.
The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the

fair value of share options granted. The fair value

of equity-settled share options during the year was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial

option pricing model, taking into account the terms

and conditions and following assumptions adopted

upon which the options were granted. The following

table lists the inputs to the model used:

ma B HRRMEE
31 December 2021
—E-—&+_A=+—H

FERetEst Rl (48)

DU th B B0 AR T 2 IR T 2 A AL (AT
SIS ERBI A A EH R F
B A A B B R
BB E BB (R (5 A8
7 B BB L 0 R 0 £ DL R P 4
2 THUIBER T RSP RO
BAK

Grant date
11 June 2021
RE B
ZEZ—F
~A+—H
Fair value at measurement date Ret2BAZ A ARE

(HK$ per share options) (BHERESRT 0.034
Dividend yield (%) B B W (%) -
Expected volatility (%) FEER K ME(%) 107
Historical volatility (%) [ S22 (%) 107
Risk-free interest rate (%) £ @ [ A1) (%) 0.16
Expected life of options (years) FER RETRHARHA () 3

Weighted average share price MNEEHRE (ERAET)
(HK$ per share) 0.10
Closing share price (HK$ per share) W IRE (ERETT) 0.068

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 509,640,000 share options outstanding
under the 2017 Scheme. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 509,640,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$50,964,000.

The total number of shares available for issue under
the 2017 Scheme is 509,640,000 representing
approximately 8.19% of shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of this annual report.

There were no share options granted, lapsed or
exercised during the years ended 31 December 2020.
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50,964,0003E 7T, ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021

B —4H#+"HA=+—H

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
On 27 November 2020, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement to disposal of its
equity interest in Zhongshan Shuixiang Lvyou Kaifa
Company Limited to an independent third party (“the
Purchaser”) for cash consideration of RMB16,800,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$20,000,000). The
disposal was completed on 22 December 2020.

36.

HEMB AT

RZEZEF+—BZ+tH &XE&E
BT IBEEHZ M—RBILIE=F
(TE 7)) HEHEK PR WL KRR
BERABZRE REABAAR
#16,800,0007T (16 EH24920,000,000
BT cRHEEN_ZEZTF+_H
“+THREM-

Summary of the effects of the disposal is as follows: HEZHEREWNT -
HK$'000
Consideration: & : TET
Total consideration BMRE 20,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which SEITSE I EEREBESR
control was lost
HK$'000
FAET
Non-current assets JERBEE
Intangible assets mLBE 41,261
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 2,374
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables HAE U RIE 1,360
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEFEY 49
Current liabilities mENEE
Other payables and accruals HMENMIE RS E R (2,270)
Amount due to related party FE 1 BRI B 75 T8 (1,138)
Lease liabilities HEas (940)
Non-current liabilities JERBAR
Lease liabilities HEaE (1,534)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE (17,485)
Net assets disposed FRHEEESE 21,677
Release of exchange difference upon 72 H & B #2[o] & 52 = %8
disposal (68)
Release of non-controlling interest R EREOIIEERER (TFFERER)
(“NCI") upon disposal (1,253)
20,356
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36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IRRMEE

31 December 2021
B F+ZHA=1—H

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEMEAT (@)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBMRBATZEIE
HK$'000
TFAET
Consideration receivables FEUWALE 18,814
Consideration received BUWRE 1,186
Net assets disposed PR EEERE (21,677)
Release of exchange difference I U B 2 o] BB 00 = 2B
upon disposal 68
Release of NCI upon disposal R E R IE R RS 1,253
(356)
Net cash inflow from disposal a subsidiary HE—MNBABSIZRERAFE
HK$'000
FAET
Consideration received in cash DRERREFEMHRINZKE
cash equivalents 1,186
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 8 : FTHEREKRIBEEEY) (49)
1,137
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
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31 Dec

37.

38.

39.

R 75 ¥R R P 51

ember 2021

—F+-A=1+—~

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank loans, which are secured
by the assets of the Group, are included in notes 27
and 30, respectively to the financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.

As Lessors

At 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group has
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

37.

38.

BERE
AEBUHBEEFRFZIRITEMRS
B0 BB A R 5E27 /30 °

KEHERH
FEERBECEHEZHEEETY
X-MEHEHESL—ERLFEE -

EAHTEA
R_IE_ZFER_E_—F+_H4
=t+—H > AEEHRBLARUTRKR
BRBEEMRETL -

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Within one year —FR 214,162 241,179
In the second to fifth years BF_EERE 176,531 223,263
Beyond five years BB E 2,841 6,270
393,534 470,712

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases
are negotiated for an average term from two to three
years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do
not include contingent rentals.

KEHENRERAEEREETHA
EYERM BT - HENTHBEBRR
BAamE=F BESNERNEE
NEFESAEE -

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. BXKIE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Capital expenditure in respect of the ~ BRIBEFTNERINIREMHE
construction cost of properties for R EBE FEYEREE
sale contracted for but not provided BAZ2EARREE
in the consolidated financial
statement 8,400 16,600

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a
registered scheme under the MPF Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employers and their employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
a rate specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the MPF Scheme. The
Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
scheme, which contribution is matched by employees
and capped at HK$1,500 per month.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss
represent contributions payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees employed by the entities in the PRC
are members of the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC
entities are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefit schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government is to make the
specific contributions under the schemes.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

40.

wr e MBS IRRMEE
31 December 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBS IRRMEE

31 December 2021

B2 —H+"B=+—H

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related parties transactions:

(a) Transactions with related parties and

connected transactions

(i) As at 31 December 2021, the bank
loan of HK$80,919,000 (2020:
HK$67,116,000 (note 30(a)) and bills
payables of HK$30,267,000 (2020:
HK$nil) (note 27) were guaranteed
by Shenzhen Jianlai Industrial Co.,
Ltd. ("RIITERKREEZBRAB"),
a related party of the Group in which
the shareholder of the Company has
beneficial ownership, shareholder of
the Company and his wife and secured
by the investment property of the
Company.

At 31 December 2021, the unsecured
other loan of HK$13,304,000 (2020:
HK$7,896,000) (note 30(g)) was
borrowed from the shareholder of the
Company.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties and
connected transactions (continued)

(ii)

On 10 June 2019, the Company
renewed the Framework Agreement
with the supplier to the supply of
the products. Beidahuang Marketing
Co. is a connected person of the
Company at the subsidiary level. The
Supplier is the subsidiary of Beidahuang
Marketing Co., which is also a
connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level. Therefore, the
transactions contemplated under the
Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for
the Company. The aggregated annual
caps for transactions contemplated
under the Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31
December 2019, 2020 and 2021 are
RMB150 million, RMB150 million and
RMB150 million respectively. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, there
was a total purchase of staple food
amounting RMB79,549,000 (2020:
RMB81,563,000).

The related parties transactions in
respect of above constitute continuing
connected transaction as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
with disclosure provided in section
“Continuing Connected Transaction” of
the Directors’ Report.

RE BRI

31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

41. BEAMBE R 7RG (&)

() HERMBAETZRZKREE
X5 (48

(ii)

RIZE—AFEXA+H"
RN EHEEEETE
RipE UREEMR L
MEHRSBBRAE
BERNBMBABIEEN
REAT -HEmAILKX
RS RN B R A B Bk
BAB MibAFTEHR
NEBERAB TN A A B M
BAEIEEmREEAL
AL EZRHEIE T s
THRZERAERBEW
FEAERZ B#E_ZZ
—hWE-ZEIEFRT
E_—F+ "B =+—
BIE=EFEZF  EF
HEETRETRSZN
MEELFRDIBAR
#150,000,0007C ~ AR &
150,000,000 & AR #&
150,000,0007c° B & —
E_—F+_HA=+—
HIEFE FEMMNAER
BEZE A AR 179,549,000
T (ZEIEF D ARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B mRMEE

31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 41. ERBEB A FRERG (@)
BALANCES (continued)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) HEAMAZEEKEEES
2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
Due to related parties  FE{JRAH: A5 FIE
Mr. Jiang Jianjun IEE A (i) 14,249 2,987
Mr. Li Jiehong R e (i) 691 691
14,940 3,678
Notes: et -
(i) A shareholder of the Company. (i) KRB RRER ©
(ii) A director of the Company. (ii) KABEE
The balances with other related parties are SEMEAR 5 2 AR RR A IR IR
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed R EREETEERN-
terms of repayment.
() Compensation of key management (0 FESEBABZHMN
personnel
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Short term employee benefits 42 H#f{E B @7 1,135 1,012
Equity-settled share option RiEEEERENS
expense 381 -
Post-employment benefits B BER 35 35
Total compensation paid to THFEEEEASZFHM
key management personnel L] 1,551 1,047
Further details of directors’ emoluments are EREEME 2 E— P B
included in note 9 to the consolidated financial N BB IRARMIEE9 o
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

42.

e BEmRMEE
31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H
BRERE SN ERITA
RESHR SES T AERESRE
T

Financial assets SREE
2021 2020
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
amortised amortised
cost cost
AR Z ATERZ
TREE THEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
By 5E FTET FHET
Trade receivables FEW E Z 8RN 24 136,689 107,961
Financial assets included in STATEIFRIE
prepayments, deposits and other B REMEK
receivables MEZTHEE 25 193,954 293,954
Loan receivables FEWER 17 290,171 354,125
Pledged deposits [SEileE 26 - 18,857
Cash and cash equivalents HWEMREEEY 26 27,433 26,115

648,247 801,012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42.

(continued)

RENSSNEMIA (B

The carrying amounts of the above balances
approximate to their fair values.

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43.

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds,
amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities and
cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

202 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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Financial liabilities SEiEE
2021 2020
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
at amortised at amortised
cost cost
Y8 8 P 2 REIE AR
5iRZ SR
EMEE THMERE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Byt THET FHET
Trade and bills payables B E SRR ENZEE 27 140,738 105,668

Financial liabilities included SEAEMBEANRIER

in other payables and accruals BHERzEHER 28 147,986 84,214
Bank and other borrowings BITREMEE 30 520,999 393,024
Amounts due to related parties  FE{TREEE 5 F0IE 41 14,940 3,678
Convertible bonds EIE:Y 384 32 = 108,222
Lease liabilities HEERE 33 703,565 815,919
1,528,228 1,510,725
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk mainly in relation to variable rate bank balances.
The Group's exposure to fair values interest rate risk is
mainly caused by lease liabilities and fixed-rate bank
and other borrowing. The Group monitors the interest
rate exposure on a continuous basis and adjusts
the portfolio of bank balances, lease liabilities and
borrowings where necessary.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no
significant exposure to cash flow interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China
and all transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of
the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB, except for certain bank balances denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United States
dollars (“USD"). The Group has not hedged its foreign
exchange rate risk.

The Group currently does not expect any significant
movements in the exchange rate of USD to HKD and it
is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in RMB.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, however, the management monitors
the foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currently exposure should
the need arise.

43.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, advances
to associates, loan receivables, pledged deposits and
cash and cash equivalents.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.
The Group has performed historical analysis and
identified the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and expected credit loss. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC, which
accounted for approximately 97% (2020: 97 %) of the
total financial assets as at 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRMEE

31 December 2021

B —HF+"HA=+—H
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, £ HIEAMEEBEREE (B)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (&)
Trade receivables (continued) JEI B 2 BE = (48)
Approximately 96.6% and 81.3% of total trade N _E - —GFR_EBE_FF+_8
receivables outstanding at 31 December 2021 and —t+—BFxEECEKNE IR ELE
2020 were due from top 5 trade receivables which #796.6% /~81.3%J} ,}iﬁéﬁj(ﬁ%ﬂ&g%
exposed the Group to concentration of credit risk. S, A EE T EEEAGER-
Within -~ 3110120 Over

Current 30 days days 120 days Total
As at 31 December 2020 RZ2ZZE+°A=+—H 5P 30BR 3121208  #Bi@1208 st
Expected credit loss (“ECL") rate BHEEEEX 7.34% 7.80% 11.28% 23.41% 14.50%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SREAE (TET) 37,322 31372 3378 54199 126,271
Lifetime ECL (HK'000) 2HEREERE (TET) (2,740) (2,502) (381)  (12,687)  (18310)

34,582 28,870 2,997 41,512 107,961

Within ~ 31to 120 Over

Current 30 days days 120 days Total
As at 31 December 2021 RZE_-£+”B=+-H BngA 30HA 31E1208 #8120 Hazt
Expected credit loss (“ECL") rate HHEEREX 7.66% 8.83% 12.76% 16.97% 12.31%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REAE (TET) 32,739 31,281 39,786 52,067 155,873
Lifetime ECL (HK'000) LHBBEEES (TED (2508)  (2763) (5075  (8.838)  (19,184)

30,231 28,518 34,711 43,229 136,689
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables BE R EB - EIRNEZ R E MBI

In determining the ECL of the Group’s advances to
associates, loan receivables and other receivables, the
management assessed the expected losses individually
by estimation based on general economic conditions
of the relevant industry in which the debtors operate,
value of any pledged assets, financial position of the
debtors and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC, which
accounted for approximately 99% (2020: 99%) of the
total financial assets as at 31 December 2021.

5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B MBS IR R M EE

31 December 2021
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43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, SHREMETEZ HEREE (@)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) FEERR @)
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables ) G B2 I B 20 FY B 1=
(continued) IE (#8)
As as 31 December 2020
RZEZZF+ZA=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BB SR B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET FET FHET
Loan receivables, gross e BT 485 377,248 - - 377,248
Less: Lifetime ECL on loan receivables i : FElRE Tz 287
RHREEBE (23,123) - - (23,123)
Loan receivables, net EWET S5 354,125 - - 354,125
As as 31 December 2021
RZEZ—-F+ZB=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEER FPEER B 1zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER FTER
Loan receivables, gross el Bz 306,677 - 100,000 406,677
Less: Lifetime ECL on loan receivables i : FEURE Tz 247
RHREEBE (16,506) - (100,000) (116,506)
Loan receivables, net EWET T 290,171 - - 290,171

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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43,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43.
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables

(continued)

Movements for ECL of loan receivables are as follows:

RE BRI

31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

ERAMREEZ BEREBER (@)

EEmRE (8

BER B BN EFREMEWL
B (&)

R ERRRESHRESHNT !

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEE B B ezt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FhEx Fhx TET
At 1 January 2020 RZBE-ZE—-HA—H 23,966 - - 23,966
Allowance for ECL on loan receivables FEWE > BEHES
BEEE (796) - - (796)
Exchange realignment ERAE (47) - - (47)
At 31 December 2020 and R_ZZRF
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—-Hk
“22-f5-F—H 23,123 - - 23,123
Net allowance for ECL on loan EWERZBHREE
receivables BlaEFE (6,492) - 97,734 91,242
Exchange realignment ER R (125) - 2,266 2,141
As at 31 December 2021 R_E-—fF
+ZR=+—H 16,506 - 100,000 116,506
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, 2 HIEAMEEY BIERBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (8
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables ) G B2 I B 20 FY B 1=
(continued) IE (#8)
As as 31 December 2020
RZEIBFtA=1+-H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIEE B E-[EEL st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT FAET TET FTET
Other receivables, gross HttE IR 315,192 - 71,148 386,340
Less: Lifetime ECL on other B HAEREIEZ
receivables 2HBHEE
SE= (21,238) - (71,148) (92,386)
Other receivables, net HitEWRIERE 293,954 - - 293,954
As as 31 December 2021
RZB-_—-%+_A=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIEE B B FeHy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THT FTHT
Other receivables, gross HttE M IER 214,600 - 32,120 246,720
Less: Lifetime ECL on other B B EREIEZ
receivables 2HEHEE
518 (20,646) - (32,120) (52,766)
Other receivables, net HitEWRIERE 193,954 - - 193,954
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BEmRMEE
31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, S RIEMRETIEZBERKE (B)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (@)
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables )\ G] B I B2 FY B I =
(continued) IE (4#8)
Movements for ECL of other receivables are as follows: HhEWIETEER = EEEE88&sHn T .
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEE B A=MER ezt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FHET TAET
At 1 January 2020 R_E_TE—F—H 9,767 - 134,148 143,915
Reversal of ECL on other receivables — ELfthfEUFIE 2 FaHA
EEHEER 10,875 - (67,451) (56,576)
Exchange realignment FER R 596 - 4,451 5,047
At 31 December 2020 and R -TE
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—-Hk
“E-—F—H—H 21,238 - 71,148 92,386
Reversal of ECL on other receivables — ELfthfEUFIE 2 FaHA
EEBEER (579) - (41,052) (41,631)
Exchange realignment ER R (13) - 2,024 2,011
As at 31 December 2021 R_E_—fF
+-A=+—H 20,646 - 32,120 52,766
As at 31 December 2021
RZZ2Z-#+-A=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEE - pd 2 B ezt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FHET TET
Advances to associates, gross BENE BB 132,068 - - 132,068
Less: Lifetime ECL on advances to A BEARRRZ
associates 2HBEHEE
B8 (8,671) - - (8,671)
Advances to associates, net HENTBIFE 123,397 - - 123,397

FEIERTEEERZERER2E 209
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B MBS IR R M EE

31 December 2021

1 o =

= _

43.

—&F+"A=+—H
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, £ RIEMEEBERBE (B)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) 1§‘§an (48)
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables ) G B2 I B 20 FY B 1=
(continued) 15 (&)
Movements for allowance for ECL of advances to BME NS A= EEIEREL
associates are as follows: U -
As at 31 December 2021
RZZ2Z—&#+”-A=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—RE BB BRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TERT
As at 1 January 2021 R_Z_—F—H—H - - - -
Allowance for ECL on advances to HEREBREHR
associates EEBERE 8,474 - - 8,474
Exchange realignment R AR 197 - - 197
As 31 December 2021 RIZBZ-F
+-A=+—-H 8,671 - - 8,671
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables are FEBREBES AT RN ENER K

categorised into the following stages by the Group:

Stage 1

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables
have not experienced a significant increase in credit
risk since origination and impairment recognised on

the basis of 12 months ECL (12-month ECLs).

Stage 2

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables
to customers have experienced a significant increase
in credit risk since origination and impairment is
recognised on the basis of lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECLs

non credit-impaired).

Stage 3

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables that
are in default and considered credit impaired (Lifetime
ECLs credit impaired).

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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43,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables
(continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk of advances to
associates, loan and other receivables has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the advances
to associates, loan and other receivables assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is past due for more than 90 days.
The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in loan and other receivables’ external or
internal credit rating (if available);

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group; and

- the financial asset is past due.

Cash at bank

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk
is considered to be low as the counterparties are
reputable banks.

Therefore, ECL rate of cash at bank is assessed to be
close to zero and no provision was made as of 31
December 2020 and 2021.

43.

ma B HRRMEE
31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

TREAREEZ BIRREER (8)

FERR (8)
BER B BN EFREMEWL
B (&)

REHEBE AT B BRERREM
RWRIBEZ EE AR B P FEBLUR
ERARBEME > ZEBSLERNES
HEA KRR S ER B AT EZBHER
BRI PR E TR ELAh FE WRR IR PR H
RZEBHWRRE - RIFLENTEE > &
EERD HOBRATKAIERARE
EEBRERNEFIERM WHFA)
FTHZBERTEARERTHNH
FEEEME,; HilEMEECERBIED
B AERENESF AEEEEEG
Bz EEBREMER 8RBEL
BEREBEMEIUEMEHEE
IR ZAREEER -

BT S BTAS S B IR 5 )5 s
SIS T A B NBE » 2 % L
TEN

—  BWERKEMEWRRIEINE
FREMEETAR WA) 2 BIRN
FRHREERIE

- AR WHE EEIERREZ
RENBRREHHEFART
HHAEBRSEZENEEX
THEE &

- HREEAH-

RITHE

MFRRIRTZIREEME  EERRRK
BB LEREFHHEERY
AYER1T o

Rt BITRS 2 BHEEHRER
HEABASAN PSR-
——F+ A= t+—BLmRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B MBS IR R M EE

1 o =

31 December 2021
—EBEC—F+ZRA=1+—H

43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, SHREMETEZ HEREE (@)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk REEERE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds KAEBMNBRKE M RERD T BB
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool BESEMAS T EHESH T AN
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments SHEE WEKE ZES R EMEK
and financial assets (e.g., trade and other receivables) =;IE) WE BRI RTEAEEEL IR
and projected cash flows from operations. Ee
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance NEBEEBEABRIETESHREM
between continuity of funding and flexibility through HEESEHESNEEERE Tt
the use of bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities REREHA R ) REBER DI B KREE
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the HHzema Gz 8ETmT
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2021
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest On Within 1to Over undiscounted Carrying
rate demand one year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
IS RESR
BIRFAE BER —&R —Enf BALE HERELHE FREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FER TERT FER FER THET THET
Trade and bills payables ENBRRTRENEE - - 140,738 - - 140,738 140,738
Financial liabilities included in 5t AELAMFE (IR
other payables and accruals ~ EFERZz&REE - - 147,986 - - 147,986 147,986
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 9.06 59,950 502,820 - - 562,770 520,999
Amounts due to related parties  FEJ BB B - - 14,940 - - 14,940 14,940
Lease liabilties REaE 6.88 = 181,423 421,089 243,743 846,255 703,565
59,950 987,907 421,089 243,743 1,712,689 1,528,228
2020
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest On Within 1t0 Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate demand one year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
mEEH REGIR
BREFIE e —FR —ERfF BALE RERBLH EEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FTET FiER FiER FET TERT FET
Trade and bills payables ENEZERIRENER = = 105,668 = = 105,668 105,668
Financial liabilities included in 5t AE (T ZIER
other payables and accruals fEstERZ SRmEE - - 84,214 - - 84,214 84,214
Bank and other borrowings RITREMES 777 32,191 388,869 - - 421,060 393,024
Amounts due to related parties & {3 Rk 5 7B - - 3,678 - - 3,678 3,678
Convertible bonds MiRRES 12.00 - 121,209 - - 121,209 108,222
Lease liabilities HEEE 6.88 - 178,202 513,092 354,383 1,045,677 815,919
32,191 881,840 513,002 354,383 1,781,506 1,510,725
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI

31 December 2021

B S+ A=+—H
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, £ HIEAMEEBEREE (B)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REESRE (@)
Other borrowings with a repayment on demand clause WEREXRERERZHMESST A
are included in the “on demand” time band in the FYREBARZ RER | — &
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2021, the T+ "_HBA=+—H ZEHMES
aggregate carrying amounts of these other borrowings R 48%8459,950,0003 7T (_;E:
amounted to HK$59,950,000 (2020: HK$32,191,000). TAE 132,191,000 7T) o 5 R AEE
Taking into account the Group's financial position, B R BIBERASH AFRAIAETT
the management does not believe that it is probable FERNERERISEES - SEEMEE
that the lenders will exercise their discretionary rights ZEEHMES BRSNSt
to demand immediate repayment. The management ZEH AR REHREEE—EME
believes that such other borrowings will be repaid in NEZ > BREEIEHN T :
one to two years after the end of the reporting period
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements, details of which are set
out in the table below:
Maturity Analysis — Other borrowings with a BT — BB E M EEE
repayment on demand clause based on scheduled KEFEHZAMEE
repayments
Total
Within undiscounted Carrying
one year 1to 2years Over2years cash outflows amount
RIGRRE
—FR —EmE BBmE R 4EEE IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET FHET
31 December 2021 —E_—F+”"B=+—H 49,780 14,420 - 64,200 59,950
31 December 2020 —E-EE+ZA=+—H 8,510 28,216 - 36,726 32,191
Capital management BAREHE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

FEBEXAEENBZER BERFRE
EEABRELENEN BERRR
WERLER U FHEREF FW
RABREREE

PEILAREEERZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e TSR R M EE
31 December 2021
B —F+"RA=+—H
43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, 2HIEMEIE BEREE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued) BAEE (8)
The Group manages its capital structure and makes AEERERKSEEINESHRABRE
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic EZREBISEE SIEBEEAREETEL
conditions and the risk characteristics of the A AL EBREAMEE ) KER
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital NEHAEKRERE -RKREREERN
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment TR c AEE N (A IR
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue N> BRI TR © E}%i_ T —1F
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally +—_B=+—RBAR-_E_FEF+_HA
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made —+—RHIEFEER AEBTESENRE
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing EEEABE-HEBRIZF
capital during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, NEBMEEGGEILER (BB BZEEGIU
which is net debt divided by the capital plus net debt. BANEF BEE) BB NS o A g
The Group's policy is to maintain an optimal capital BN EASESERENENZE  HE
structure which reduces cost of capital. Net debt BAR KN B BHEOIEENESE
includes trade and bills payables, other payables and IRENEE s HMEN S E R ESt
accruals, bank and other borrowings, amounts due to BR - IRTREMES -FENEI A
related parties, lease liabilities, and convertible bonds B -HEaERRKRES TEER
less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits. S ERESELEEYERBIENRER  BL
Capital includes equity attributable to owners of BIEFGANTER AFEERL o RIS ER
the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the ROoBEARBLEERAOT
reporting periods were as follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHB7T
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEES 520,999 393,024
Trade and bills payables FE B ZIRM R BN RE 140,738 105,668
Other payables and accruals H (I8 K et & A 147,986 84,214
Amounts due to related parties FE 1 RR B 5 78 14,940 3,678
Convertible bonds G 3EE2s = 108,222
Lease liabilities HEas 703,565 815,919
Less: Cash and cash equivalents IR RIEEHEY (27,433) (26,115)
Pledged deposits [REE RN - (18,857)
Net debt (ELEEE 1,500,795 1,465,753
Capital BA 1,128,680 1,285,199
Capital and net debt BARKNEFEFRE 2,629,475 2,750,952
Gearing ratio BESBLEX 57% 53%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BEmRMEE
31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, SHRIERAMETEZ HEREE (@)
POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement NEE=
Inputs to valuation techniques used to measure the HEAEESBIEEEAANEY RN
Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or SRS EMGANGERMN @ A
loss had been categorised as level 1 and level 3 within EFEAANEBRIEIDAE—REE=
the fair value hierarchy which is defined as follows: o ANRERBKERNT
o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o BREREEREERNETETEN
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). BE CRESBE) (B—4R) o
o Inputs other than quoted prices included within o Fh 55 — 4R F B3 45 B9 SR8 LU YN
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or B ESRaEEE EMER) I
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or iz (B E BB B A
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2). T (ER) o
o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not o WIEHNR T ERMIEHENSE
based on observable market data (that is, EXaEzHASE B FRa ¥
unobservable inputs) (Level 3). R ASEE) (E=4%) o
The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair Rz SRR IR AR ESEDN
value in the consolidated statement of financial TREERBESABUTAANERL
position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as
follows:
2021 2020
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
REEHE NRE RETH RAE
Financial liabilities EMaf
Convertible bonds AR ES - - 108,222 110,234

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

BE_T - FRIZTEZEF+A
=+ HIEFE F—REF_HRZHE
WEER FTIEEANEHE =R
AEBNBERHANBERER ZEHN
EHRERATE LR EHRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An e B HRR MR

31 December 2021

B —F+"RA=+—H

44. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash
flow were, or future cashflows will be classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from
financing activities.

44. BMEFBEENEEHRK

TEREFRAEEREIHEENER

23> aEReKIIFREEH-

BB

FELINEEARTREBUARRTEE

MEBELEER

4 AN
[N y|

MBHREDPOES

MEZBMEENRERENGR-

Amounts
Bank due to
Lease and other  Convertible related
liabilities  borrowings bonds parties Total
|17 FE(RARE TS
HEAE HitfeE  mikES ERE ezt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT TAET TET
As at 1 January 2020 ATE"TE—A—H 758,049 541,962 - 6,639 1,306,650
Financial cost (Note 8) REMAE (f:28) 53,272 47,165 2,611 - 103,048
Interest paid ERFHE - (47,165) (2,222) - (49,387)
Addition of lease liabilities NEHEERE 146,638 - - - 146,638
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—BEREAE (2,474) - - - (2,474)
Disposal of lease liabilities HEHREER (3,918) - - - (3,918)
Issue of convertible bond BITRBRES - (109,100) 07,833 - (1,267)
Financing cash outflows RERERE (173,011) (129,165) - (2,052) (304,228)
Financing cash inflows RERERA - 100,340 - - 100,340
Currency translation adjustment ~ B S EE 37,363 (11,013) - (909) 25,441
As at 31 December 2020 and N_ETEE
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—-Hk
I = 815,919 393,024 08,222 3,678 1,320,843
Finandial cost (Note 8) REMAE (:8) 50,705 34,924 16,210 - 101,839
Interest payable FEIH S - (21,903) (13,332) - (35,235)
Interest paid ERFHE - (13,021) - - (13,021)
Addition of lease liabilities REREEE 46,885 - - - 46,885
Disposal of lease liabilities HEHREER (47,726) - - - (47,726)
Mature of convertible bond R EHEH - 111,100 (111,100) - -
Financing cash outflows RBERERY (186,874) (98,855) - = (285,729)
Financing cash inflows RBEREAA - 110,287 - 13,160 123,447
Currency translation adjustment ~ B EEE 24,656 5,443 = (1,898) 28,201
As at 31 December 2021 R ZE-—F
+-A=+—H 703,565 520,999 - 14,940 1,239,504
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45.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the major subsidiaries are as follows:

45,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI

31 December 2021

—B_—#+-A=+—H

NI NS SE
TENBRATFENT

Place of
incorporation/ Value of issued Percentage of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AT BEITEE/
i A REEE AR EE FATEGEEE AL TBEH
Direct Indirect
B i
Most Success Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 40 Lending of logistic
REEEXBRAT HE 10,000 7T facilities
HEMRRE
Shenzhen Meiming Wenshi PRC/Mainland China RMB55,000,000 - 100 Distribution of
Trading Limited (i) HE/RERM AR #55,000,00075 wine and liquor
FmELE L EEERAE0) DEE
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 50  Sales of green food
Distribution Limited (i), (ii) T/ ERH, AE10,000,0007T products
RIEATHBERRE HEREBRR
BIRAE) (i)
Ever Gain Hong Kong Development Hong Kong HK$100 60 - Lending of logistic
Limited BN 100 7T facilities
XEEBERERRT THEVRRIE
Shenzhen Qianhai PRC/Mainland China UsD10,000,000 - 100 Financial leasing
Dahuangyuan Financing Lease HE/ HE R 10,000,000 7T MEHE
Company Limited (i), (iv)
FBEEA T ERERE
BIRAE) (v)

Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 55 Renting of office premises
Investment Management Co., Ltd (i) ~HE /P ERH AE1,000,0007T and facilities in PRC
TREIEABBREEERRA) RABEBERAMER

B3
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 55 Renting of office premises
Investment Management Co., Ltd (i) ~ FE /REIRy# AE#1,000,0007 and facilities in PRC
TREIBEAZHREEER R ) RPEEERATER
Rt
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 55 Renting of office premises
Investment Management Co., Ltd (i) ~®E /R E R AE1,000,0007T and facilities in PRC

ERAR ETREERERAF)

RPEEERAYER
B3

PEERREXREMERBRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2021
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45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

45,

Particulars of the major subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

N

BABN#ED (48)

TEMBABFEOT @ (8

Place of
incorporation/ Value of issued Percentage of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AR BETEE/
kg A REEME AR AEE FREAEGEEEAL TELH
Direct Indirect
B ik
Shenzhen Ming Jian Gold PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 - 100 Rental business
Industry Limited () HE,/RE R AR £80,000,0007T HEER
RIBAREZEFRAE)
Shenzhen Huajinhuayin Industry PRC/Mainland China RMB39,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited () E/PE R AR #39,000,0007 RETK
FHESERELFRAE
Linxiang Qiangsheng Mining Industry PRC/Mainland China RMB60,950,000 - 100 Trading of mineral
Company Limited (i) HE/ HE R AE#60,950,0007T products
Bl MR RRERREEAA) BERES
Shanghai Mushi Miancheng Property PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 55 Rental of office premises
Management Company Limited (i) HE /hE R AE#1,000,0007T and facilities in PRC
LEARERAEEE QA RPEEERANER
B
Shenzhen Dajin Zhenhe PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 51 Rental business
Industry Limited HE/ HE R AR #10,000,0007T HEEH
FNTEEFNEEERAR
Notes: et -
(i) Registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise (i) RFPEZEFMAIEREEDR
under the PRC law. %o
(ii) Registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture (ii) BEFRBEZEFMARIEER
under the PRC law. Fo
(i) The Company holds majority of members in the (i AREFEEHEFTE GGELABNE
board of directors which is the governing body of B SEFEA B B
these companies and therefore has the power to B2ERENMEMAES WASF®
direct the relevant activities of these companies, and ERZEREBEREATKRENT
is exposed, or the rights, to variable returns from the #EHR BRENZEZSFLRE
investment with the investee, and has the power to EHo
affect the amount of those returns.
(iv) The English name of the above PRC companies is for (iv) R B A B BY 3 S FRAE (L B

identification purpose only.
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45.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the major subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests are set out below:

RE BRI

31 December 2021
B —HF+"HA=+—H
B ARNER (8
ITRINTESIARTIEREFEER
RENAEREEFEEE DA
REIETENBAB - EETRIRMEEHM
WEBABZFHFEEFEARBNR TR

FEEBRBEEAFEREGZWEA
Bl Z5FIBEAANT

2021 2020

Percentage of equity interest held by FEIZERERPIIFRET DL :

non-controlling interests:
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food FYHEA AR BB RECEE

Distribution Limited BRAE 50% 50%
Most Success Corporation Limited EREERRAE 60% 60%
Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng TREIRAEBREERE

Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAFE 45% 45%
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin TREIEREMKREERE

Investment Management Co., Ltd BIRAT 45% 45%
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan IERABLETREEIE

Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAE 45% 45%

PEILAREEERZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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)72 O = |
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45.

B 5 R MI5E
ember 2021
—F+ZHA=+—H
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 45. RMEATIHELS (@)
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Loss/(profit) for the year allocated to PDEEFIEIERES I EE
non-controlling interests: B8 (afl)
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food AYHEAR T4 BB RECEE
Distribution Limited BREAE 2,624 345
Most Success Corporation Limited BEREXER AT 428 (3,443)
Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng ITREBAEBREER
Investment Management Co., Ltd BIRAT 2,732 4,306
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin ITREEREMEEER
Investment Management Co., Ltd AR AT 1,676 (273)
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan IERARB LT EEE
Investment Management Co., Ltd BIRAT (4,981) 5,039
Accumulated balances of RIS BHREERER 2
non-controlling interests REHEER -
at the reporting dates:
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food FINEA T4 BB micix
Distribution Limited BIRAF (2,689) (233)
Most Success Corporation Limited BEREXERAT 19,227 19,655
Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng TREIRAEBREEE
Investment Management Co., Ltd AR AT (6,687) (3,767)
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin ITREBAENKREE
Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAT (891) 971
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan IERABLETRESE
Investment Management Co., Ltd AR AT (2,909) (7,174)

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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45.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts

e BEmRMEE
31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

45. BTN ED (8)
TRIT LB AT 2 B E RS
BoMIFESREIN TR A B BMEE

disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: I
Beijing Beijing
Shenzhen Chuangzhangu Chuangzhangu Beijing Mumian
Beidahuang Desheng Wangxin Shangyuan
Green Food Most Success Investment Investment Investment
Distribution Corporation Management Management Management
Limited Limited Co., Ltd Co, Ltd Co., Ltd
AILAS FRERAER FRERALH $EAR LR
BRRRER EREE REER KEER REEE
2021 ZEI-% ARAR ARAR ARAR BRAR BRAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ER TF#ERT TER TF#EwT TEn
Revenue WA 149,082 41,749 32,828 25,585 81,709
Total expense et (154,330) (42,463) (38,899) (29,309) (70,641)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8 /57 (5.248) (14) (6,071) (3.729) 11,068
Total comprehensive (oss)/income FERE BR /
for the year AL (4,932) (714) (6,489) (4,137) 9,477
Current assets THEE nimn 40,577 12,074 11,927 60,402
Non-current assets FREE 1,489 71,754 41,637 39,070 282,502
Current liabilities pital=Uel 66,517 61,171 51,139 43371 108,049
Non-current liabilities b=t 12,127 25,115 17432 9,606 241,319
Net cash flows generated from operating X2 ZBF1S
activities REnmEsE 1,942 33,864 23,647 21,332 62,685
Net cash flows generated from investing &R ZZBIFR1S
activities Renete 13 - 2 3 6
Net cash flows used in HEEHAE
in financing activities ReRETE (2,864) (28,890) (23,522) (22,045) (61,463)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BeRBELEEY 6 /&0
and cash equivalents BB (909) 4,974 127 (710) 1,228

PELAGELERZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

45.  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 45. PHBATIRERD (48)
Beijng Beijjing

Shenzhen Chuangzhangu Chuangzhangu Beijing Mumian

Beidahuang Desheng Wangxin Shangyuan

Green Food Most Success Investment Investment Investment

Distribution Corporation Management Management Management

Limited Limited Co., Ltd Co,, ltd Co., Ltd

FEAS FRERAER BRERALH FRARLRT

GBERERE RrEE REEE REER REER

2020 3°%% BRAF BRAF BRAT BRAF BRAF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TER TER TR TER

Revenue A 250,683 41,708 23370 23391 77,086

Total expense ] (250,990) (45,053) (32,878) (22,785) (88,319)

(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8 /57 (307) (3,345) (9,508) 606 (11,223)
Total comprehensive (oss)/income FERE BB/

for the year WAL (304) (3,345) (9,832) (155) (11,973)

Current assets nBEE 54,579 48,143 14,013 8,008 57,555

Non-current assets FREE 7,832 106,317 19,741 59,526 299,577

Current liabilities it ai=Ue| 44333 93818 40,337 36,039 98,047

Non-current liabilties FRBaE 18,544 27,884 1788 29,337 275,027

Net cash flows (used in)igenerated from &S &5E8) (i) /Fiig

operating activities REREZE (8,282) 21,812 27,248 (43318) 61,951
Net cash flows generated from investing & EEIFTS

activities REMEFE - - 4 57,805 8
Net cash flows used in REEBIA

in financing activities ReReRE (2,266) (29,548) (27,638) (13,358) (64,000)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BeRBELEEW 6 /E0

and cash equivalents FE (10,548) (7,736) (386) 1,129 (2,041)

222 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021



46.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma B HRRMEE
31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 46. A TIEAFRYRRR R EE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position AABRBESEHARANHER RTERER
of the Company at the end of the reporting period BiE -
includes:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries PRI B AT RIS 1,438,005 1,461,822
Total non-current assets EREBEEEE 1,438,005 1,461,822
CURRENT ASSETS MENE E
Prepayments, deposits and TARRIE & R HANREUL
other receivables E Q| 4,477 7,691
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 5 21
Total current assets MENEELE 4,482 7,712
CURRENT LIABILITIES mREEE
Other borrowings HihEEs 356,400 260,500
Other payables and accruals HthEAMIB R s & B 98,966 65,349
Amounts due to related parties FE S BRI B 5 718 21,383 19,270
Convertible bonds AR (ES = 108,222
Total current liabilities V=R EEaEE 476,749 453,341
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBaERE (472,267) (445,629)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BERERRBERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 965,738 1,016,193
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEAE = 462
Net assets BEEFE 965,738 1,015,731
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITRE A 622,513 622,513
Reserves EX 343,225 393,218
Total equity R 4B RE 965,738 1,015,731
Jiang Jiangjun I#EE Ke Xionghan 1 1 5
Director EE Director EE

FEIERTEEERZERERA2E 223
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46.

—F+=H=+—8
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

46. BRBMBRRRK#HE (B

Movement of the reserves of the Company is as KANTEESIHUNT
follows:
Share Share Convertible
premium option bonds  Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses Total
B 13
R fn R B R B5HkHE B8 st
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wik TAr TEr TER FiET FiET
At 1 January 2020 RZE-%5—H—-H 1,669,298 - - (1,234,016) 435,282
Loss for the year FEBR - - - (42,792) (42,792)
Issue of convertible bonds BITARES - - 728 - 728
At 31 December 2020 RZEZBE+°A=+-H 1,669,298 - 728 (1,276,808) 393,218
Loss for the year FEBR - - - (53,725) (53,725)
Equity-settled share option arrangements RS ERR - 3,732 - - 3,732
Transfer to accumulated losses upon mature R AR ESFSIHRFERERHE5E
convertible bonds - - (728) 728 -
At 31 December 2021 RZE_-%+°-A=+-H 1,669,298 3732 - (1,329,805) 343,225

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. LITIGATION

0]

(i)

HCA 1867 of 2015

On 18 August 2015, the Company received
a writ of summons issued from the High
Court of Hong Kong (the “Writ"”) relating to a
claim by Mr. Qu Shuncai (“Mr. Qu”), a former
Director of the Company. Pursuant to the Writ,
Mr. Qu claims against the Company for the
sum of HK$6,069,000 being damages for the
Company's wrongful refusal of the issue of
2,500,000 shares of the Company to him upon
his exercise of the share options. The trial will
be heard before Judge from 8 December 2022
to 14 December 2022.

HCCW 243 of 2019 & HCMP 1284 of 2019

On 15 August 2019, the Company received
a winding up petition (“Petition”) filed by
Mr. Qiu Zhen ("Petitioner”) for an order
that the Company may be wound up by the
High Court of Hong Kong pursuant to the
Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong
Kong). The Petition was filed against the
Company for being unable to repay a debt
of amount HK$21,140,987. Details of the
Petition were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 15 August 2019 and
22 August 2019. Subsequently, the legal
representatives of the Company filed a Notice
of Originating Summons to the Court (under
HCMP 1284 of 2019) returnable before a High
Court Judge on 19 September 2019 for an
order to direct the Petitioner to withdraw the
Petition or otherwise to be restrained from
taking further step to prosecute the Petition
on the ground that the Petition is an abuse of
process of the court. On 23 March 2020, leave
was granted to the Company to withdraw
the Originating Motion. As to the winding
up proceedings itself, the parties reached full
and final settlement and the Court had, by its
Order dated on 8 March 2021,
Petition, details of which were disclosed on the
announcement of the Company dated 8 March
2021.

dismissed the

47. ik

0]

(i)

>

ok

D

AR e MR MY 5T

31 December 2021
—F+"A=+—H

“Z— R FHCA 1867
R_E—RFENB+NB &R
BRI EBEEEEREE2E
ek (TLik)) » RABBZA
BIRIESERIEA T4 (TEkED)
REZEREB -RBESK BEE
MAEAABNRBRETEERE
BAEBEEHEEE1T2,500,000
BARBRAMEAEABRE
£%86,069,00058 ¢ (BN18 =B
B) BHRNIZEZZF+Z
BANBEZZE-_—_#+_"H
T HEABR A B ERIETT

T—HEHCCW 243K =T
—NEHCMP 1284
RNZZE—NFNB+HB AR
B EHBIREE (25 AR
BEBEAIENREAT (B
BRSO BRAIBEBSE A
REHALNTDETEREMSZ
255 ((ZE2H) - BIREZ#%ZE2

BLHEARBDEEZEESE
%21,140,987%752{;%% Z=E
BZEBRAABDHPEAZE
—NENEBE+EBKR-ZZE—N
FENBZ+HZRAMREE
HE AREZEEREBARZE
—NFENALA+NABEZERER
BESEEIREZERAMEEN

FHFREEEN RRAZE—AN
EHCMP 1284) » EHanLIER
%%%AW@%Z%%&LX@%%%
EREERRFEABERGRE
E—PITHETZEF - RIE
“EF=-/BT+=H ARAE
EREIRFEZENT O o A S
HERBREFME  EHEXLRD
RE&EME BARIREEERS
“E—F=A/N\BzZHmTH
HZEF BRFEBERAREH
HH?%_V_—E BNANHzZA
R E
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31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H
LITIGATION (continued)

4 A
1 o =

47.

(i)

(iii)

HCCW 243 of 2019 & HCMP 1284 of 2019
(continued)

In addition to the main action relating to the
winding up petition, the Company successfully
obtained a Validation Order of the Court
dated 17 January 2020, under which any
transfer of the issued and fully paid up shares
in the Company since 13 August 2019 shall
not be avoided by s.182 of the Companies
(Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions)
Ordinance (Cap. 32) in the event of a winding-
up order being made against the Company.
Details of the said Order were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 15 May
2020. Further, the Company also obtained
another Validation Order of the Court dated
6 January 2021, under which payments of
HK$569,558.00 made out of the Company’s
bank accounts for the purpose of paying the
legal expenses of the Company shall not be
avoided.

HCMP 1348 of 2019

On 28 August 2019, the legal representatives
of the Company filed a Notice of Originating
Summons to the Court (under HCMP 1348
of 2019) to apply to the Court to dispute a
Statutory Demand dated 24 July 2019 issued
on behalf of Madam F&E for the sum
of HK$20,094,520.55. The case has been
adjourned sine die.
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(i)

(iii)

ZE—hFEHCCW 243K —F
—HEHCMP 1284 (48)

BT RABEREFERZETESR
I ARABIRINESHEAA S
TTTF—A+ T HW AR
A2 it BHEHEAQAFEH
BRGSO BEZZE—AEN
Bt+=HEEHEELAQBBET
KR RS R ERIEAE]
(BB R HIEE ) &E (532
E) FI82EEIL Liidmo
HERAABDHBEAZEE
FERERA+HEHZAHMAKE -
e R AT ERBBEA S
T —FE—BABENEARRA L
B A R B A A B RIT
BR P B3 30569,558.0078 7T F XL
SRR BRERER

—Z—HEHCMP 1348
AZE—-AFENABZHNB R
NEWEERE ABERIER
BHFREEEM RRAZE—N
FHCMP 1348) » UE)ABR G
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. LITIGATION (continued)

(iv)

(v)

HCA 1948 of 2019

On 24 October 2019, the Company received a
writ of summons (under HCA 1948 of 2019)
issued on behalf of Gemini Funds Limited for
an order to direct the Company to deliver
up the share certificate of 5,000,000 (Bonus)
Shares issued in January 2016 and damages
to be assessed. The said Gemini Funds Limited
has also taken out an application for summary

judgment against the Company returnable

before a Master of the High Court on 9 April
2020. The legal representative of the Company
filed an Acknowledgment of Service on 6
November 2019, and the Company has filed a
notice to the Court to oppose the application
by the said Plaintiff to enter judgment against
the Company. The hearing was heard before a
Judge on 21 January 2021 and pursuant to the
Judgement, the Company delivered up the said
share certificate to the Plaintiff on 24 March
2021. At the same time, the Company filed a
Notice to Appeal on 18 February 2021.

HCA 947 of 2020

On 15 June 2020, the Company received a writ
of summons issued on behalf of JJANG SHENGLI
(ZBF)) ("JIANG”) under HCA 947 of 2020.
According to the Statement of Claim, JIANG
being the plaintiff, claims against the Company
for the sum of HK$15,700,000 and the bond
interest. The legal representatives of the
Company filed an Acknowledgment of Service
on 22 June 2020 and stated our intention to
contest the proceedings. Subsequently, the
parties reached full and final settlement and
signed a Settlement Agreement on 25 March
2021, and the action was wholly discontinued
on 31 March 2021.

4= s H

AR e MR MY 5T

31 December 2021

BT —F+ZH=+—H
47- EEDA (nﬁ)
(iv) _ﬁ—hi‘FHCA1948
ACE—AEFA-+mA

(v)

KABZEERFGemini Funds
Limited25 2 2 B LMK FRES
“ZT—AEHCA 1948) > i
ED?TE/‘I‘$@TE\_7_/\¢
B H B2 17RY5,000,0008
(AR IR ERFHENEE
B2 1E o FrittGemini Funds Limited
NHBERABEERPFEETR
“ETZFNBNBESEE
A B ERIRIENE ZH R &R
NEEEREBEARZE—N
F+—HANHERXEIKS
BARABBEMERIERER U
RE EESRE ZNITHYE
RABHFIRZ BB RHANRZE
——FE—BZH+—HEZEERE
IJLTTE’Z*E?)%#'J/? RABRZ
T =R+ HHERSE
ﬁﬁﬁﬂ ZoHILFER AR
BN ZE—F"_A+/\BHIE
R EFEAE -

:%:;EFFHCA947
RZ_E_ZEEXA+HH K
’2\1&3‘%1&?@ H%%IJ( )K
BFzEASK EREAZEZ
TEHCA 947) » IREBEF >
EARE OARBDRELEE
15,700,000 T R EHF B o
AT EERBARZEC
EEXNBI+HEREER
WE IRTEME AR
MIRHIMEI - BR EHEMRT
2R R4 ﬂ]ﬁ@lﬁﬁ\_v——ﬁ
ZSAZ+EBEEENRBE
EE%JJ%"&EE\_V_—E ﬁ
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31 December 2021
—F_—&+_A=+—8
LITIGATION (continued)

4 A
77 (N e |

47.

(vi)

(vii)

HCA 1128 of 2020

On 7 July 2020, the Company received a writ of
summons issued on behalf of FANG XIANGZAI
(75&8) ("FANG") under HCA 1128 of 2020.
According to the Statement of Claim, FANG
being the plaintiff, claims against the Company
for the sum of HK$30,575,000 and the
agreement interest. The legal representatives
of the Company filed an Acknowledgment
of Service on 22 July 2020 and stated
the intention to contest the proceedings.
Subsequently, the parties reached full and final
settlement and signed a Settlement Agreement
dated 1 April 2021, and the action was wholly
discontinued on 4 May 2021.

HCMP 1296 of 2021

On 7 September 2021, the legal representatives
of the Company filed a Notice of Originating
Summons to the Court (under HCMP 1296
of 2021) to apply to the Court to dispute a
Statutory Demand dated 12 August 2021
issued on behalf of Madam LIN TONG (#£f)
for the sum of HK$4,747,254.03. The case has
been adjourned sine die.

On the same subject matter, Madam LIN TONG

(#f) through her legal representatives in
Cayman Islands issued a Statutory Demand on
28 October 2021 to the Company’s registered
address in the Cayman Islands. Then on 13
December 2021, a winding up petition was
issued out of the Grand Court of the Cayman
Islands and returnable on 3 March 2022,
under which the said LIN TONG petitioned
to wind up the Company unless the amount
HK4,942,814.80 was paid. The Company then
settled the matter with the Petitioner, and the
winding up petition had been withdrawn by
the consent of the parties on or about 3 March
2022.
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(vii)

“ET”FHFHCA 1128
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. LITIGATION (continued)
(viii) HCCW 115 of 2022

(ix)

On 25 April 2022, the Company received a
petition (“Petition”) filed by Ms. Yan Huijuan
("Petitioner”) for an order that the Company
may be wound up by the High Court of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
“High Court”) pursuant to the Companies
(Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions)
Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong).
The Petition was filed against the Company
for being unable to repay a debt of amount
HK$5,251,773.03. The Petition will be heard
before the High Court at 9:30 am on 6 July
2022. Details of the Petition were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 25
April 2022.

(2021) Su 0707 Caibao No. 139

On 31 August 2020, the Company's subsidiary,
Lianyungang Huajin Huahong Industrial Co., Ltd.
(EERETERBEBIRAT) received a
civil judgment (REHEE)issued on behalf
of Jiangsu Pinpai Real Estate Co., Ltd. GI&k
mikEFXABRAST)("Pinpai”) under (2021)
Su 0707 Caibao No. 139 ((2021)8070784 1%
1398%) . According to the civil judgment (R
#FHIEE), Pinpai being the plaintiff, requested
to freeze the bank accounts of Lianyungang
Huajin Huahong Industrial Co., Ltd.. The case
has now been appealed to the Lianyungang
Intermediate Court for retrial. Pinpai is now
negotiating settlement with our Lianyungang
Huajin Huahong Industrial Co., Ltd., but
both parties have not reached full and final
settlement yet.

ma B HRRMEE
31 December 2021
2 —H#+"B=+—H

47. iR (48)

(viii)

(ix)

“E T ZHFHCCW 115
RIE-_ &M _+HH>
KRR EHRBRBERERE (T2
BA REBESBEFAENER
B (B MMIEENX) KRS
BRNTHREsE iR (%
EBRL) REHARAEEITER
e Z22F ([ZEF) %=
BLHBARBEEZEESEE
#5,251,773.03B T2 EH &
EEBR_E-_F+tAB~H
EFFAE=4+2RNaFEERE
TRA-FREZEFZFEFER
NASBHHMA_ZE__4£MA
Tt+ABZ RS-

(2021)850707841%1395%
RZEZEFNB=+—H"&K
REAMBABIEEBETER
BEEXBRABDBERKRIEHR
KEXBRAR (MRIK)) HA
ZREHTE RIEA(2021)E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B mRMEE

31 December 2021
—E—F+"HA=+—H

47. LITIGATION (continued)

(x)

(xi)

(2021) Yue 0304 Minchu No. 13651, (2021)
Yue 03 Minzhong No. 23004 and (2022) Yue
Minshen No. 4179
On 26 May 2021, the Company's subsidiary,
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food Distribution
Ltd. (“Green Food”) CRINIEAF & E B R
X AEPR/AT) received a civil judgment (RE ¥
R2)issued on behalf of Shenzhen Zhongdun
United Investment Technology Co., Ltd. (%
N EHMERFTEBRAE) ("Zhongdun ™)
under (2021) Yue 0304 Minchu No. 13651
((2021)E0304E#J136515%) . According to
the civil judgment (RZE¥)’RAE), Zhongdun
being the plaintiff, requested to (i) cancellation
of contract no. 20200403-002 “Rice Sales
Contract”; (ii) return the contract deposit
of RMB3,400,000 to Zhongdun; (iii) pay the
interest of the above deposit of RMB3,400,000;
and (iv) bear all litigation costs. The case has
been appealed to the Shenzhen Intermediate
People’s Court of Guangdong Province and on
25 October 2021, Green Food received a civil
judgment under (2021) Yue 03 Minzhong No.
23004 ((2021)E03ER#823004%%). According
to the civil judgment, (a) the issue in (i) above
being upheld; (b) the issue in (iii) above being
cancelled; (c) referring to the issue in (ii)
above, Green Food has to return RMB760,000
together with interest to Zhongdun; and (d)
reject the issue in (iv) above. Green Food
has applied to the Higher People’s Court of
Guangdong Province for retrial on 8 April 2022
under (2022) Yue Minshen No. 4179 ((2022) &
R 417955 .

During the year, Shenzhen Qianhai
Dahuangyuan Financing Lease Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, have
issued legal letters to several borrowers for
failing to repay their loan receivables. The
expected credit losses on loan receivables was
made in respect of the several borrowers for
approximately HKD100,000,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021. (note 43)
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48.

49.

50.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$47,543,000 and HK$46,885,000 respectively in
respect of lease arrangements for leased properties.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year presentation. These
reclassification have no impact on the Group'’s loss for
the year 31 December 2021 and the total equity as at
31 December 2021.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 April 2022.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HEMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the published audited

TERBAEFERBERLBHREEZRER
BE -BERFERED DEREETE
REZUBRER LEFBEERY EHNH

financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, e
is set out below.
RESULTS E4
Year ended 31 December
HEt-A=t+—-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER THET FET THET FHET
Revenue KA 928,785 859,095 779,305 1,267,140 1,114,635
(Loss)/profit before taxation briRAT (E548) /BA (170,130) 7,681 (341,893) 12,628 123,182
Income tax (expenses)/credit g (%) /% (7,160) (2,224) 984 (851) (12,904)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8 /57 (177,290) 5,457 (340,909) 11,777 110,278
(Loss)/profit attributable to: TR (B18) /a7
Owners of the parent SREEBA (170,916) 14,778 (291,072) 4,650 115,024
Non-controlling interests R (6,374) (9,321) (49,837) 7,127 (4,746)
(177,290) 5,457 (340,909) 1,777 110,278
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS B E - BB RIFHERERD
As at 31 December
“+=-B=+—-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHT FET FET FHET T#T
TOTAL ASSETS BENE 2,880,051 2,994,530 3,012,655 2,547,969 2,652,807
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE (1,775,655) (1,723,857) (1,783,399) (1,035,980) (1,132,871)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER 24,284 14,526 81 (52,980) (57,729)
1,128,680 1,285,199 1,229,337 1,459,009 1,462,207
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